
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                             March 19, 2019 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please obtain a card from the Board Clerk and 
indicate each item you would like to discuss.  Return the completed card to the Board Clerk before the Board considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak. You will be 
allowed to speak about each item before the Board takes action on it.  
 
Any member of the public may also make comments during the scheduled “Public Comment” period on this agenda concerning any subject related to the Board of Supervisors or 
County Government.  No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the “Public Comment” period. 

Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed fewer than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 
March 19, 2019                  

  
8:30 a.m. 1.   PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

2. 
 
 
 

3. 
 
 
 

4. 
 
 

5. 
 
 

6. 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – [Pursuant to paragraph (1) of 
subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9] – Los Angeles Department of Water and Power v. County of 
Inyo, Kern Superior Court Case No. BCV-18-101513-KCT (CEQA). 
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – [Pursuant to paragraph (1) of 
subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9] – County of Inyo v. Los Angeles Department of Water and 
Power, Kern Superior Court Case Nos. BVC-18-101260; BVC-18-101261; and BVC-18-101262.  
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – Initiation of litigation pursuant 
to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9 (one case). 
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – Significant exposure to 
potential litigation pursuant to (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9 (two cases).  
 
CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6] – 
Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law 
Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated 
representatives – Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Rick Benson, Deputy 
Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, and Assistant County Counsel John 
Vallejo. 
 

OPEN SESSION  (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any time and in any order 
during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 
  
10:00 a.m. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 7. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  

 
 8. PUBLIC COMMENT  

 
 9. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes)  

 
 
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                             March 19, 2019 

 10. INTRODUCTION – Emily Lanphear, Librarian, Inyo County Free Library, will be introduced to 
the Board. 
 
 

 11. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Inyo Film Commission – Request Board receive Inyo Film 
Commissioner Chris Langley’s spring oral report on local filming activity. 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL – PERSONNEL ACTIONS 
  
12. 

 
 
 

13. 

ASSESSOR – Request Board, consistent with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Board Approved Budget, reclassify 
the Real Property Appraiser, Range 68 ($4,357 - $5,294) to an Auditor-Appraiser I, Range 70 ($4,569 - 
$5,557). 
 
ASSESSOR – Request Board: A) consistent with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Board Approved Budget, 
reclassify the BPAR Office Technician I, Range 55 ($17.22 - $20.93/hr.) to a full-time Office Technician I, 
Range 55 ($3,213 - $3,907); and B) consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy, find that: 
1. the availability of funding for the requested position exists in the Assessor’s budget, as certified by the 
Assessor and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; 2. where internal 
candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an 
internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified candidates apply; and 3. 
approve the hiring of one (1) Office Technician I, Range 55 ($3,213 - $3,907). 
 

14. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15. 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Museum – Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized 
Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) Curator of Collections and Exhibits exists in 
the Museum budget, as certified by the Department Head and concurred with by the County Administrator 
and Auditor-Controller; B) where there are internal candidates for the position, the vacancy can be filled 
through an internal recruitment; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) Curator of Collections and Exhibits, 
Range 60 ($3,612 - $4,387). 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Personnel – Request Board approve the personal services contract with 
Leslie Chapman as the Assistant County Administrator, at $10,402 per month effective May 23, 2019, and 
authorize the County Administrator to sign. 
 

16. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES – Public Health – Request Board approve the modified Human Services 
Supervisor job description, and find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:  

A) The availability of funding for one (1) Human Services Supervisor exists in non-General Fund 
budgets, as certified by the HHS Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and 
Auditor-Controller;  

B) Where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be 
filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified 
candidates apply; and 

C) Approve the hiring of one (1) Human Services Supervisor at Range 70 ($4,569 - $5,557). 
 

DEPARTMENTAL  (To be considered at the Board’s convenience) 
 

17. 
 
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES – Behavioral Health – Request Board ratify and approve Amendment A01 
to the Standard Agreement between the County of Inyo and the Department of Health Care Services for Drug 
Medi-Cal Substance Use Disorder Services, recognizing an increase of $23,422 for years two and three of the 
contract resulting in a total contract amount of $257,653 for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2020, 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign five original signature pages plus one Certification form and one 
California Civil Rights Law Certification. 
 

18. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC WORKS – Request Board: A) approve Resolution No. 2019-10 authorizing and approving a treasury 
loan to the Public Works Department for the Independence Water System in the amount of $78,000, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign; B) authorize the Chairperson to sign the Inyo County Treasury Loan 
Agreement and Promissory Note; and C) authorize the Public Works Director to accept the loan on behalf of 
the Public Works Department. 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                             March 19, 2019 

19. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20. 

PUBLIC WORKS – Request Board:  
A) Amend the Independence Water System budget (152101) by: 

1. Increasing appropriations in Loan Proceeds (Object Code 4990) by $78,000; 
2. Decreasing appropriations in Rents and Leases of Equipment (Object Code 5281) by $647; 

and 
3. Increasing appropriations in Infrastructure (Object Code 5620) by $78,647 (4/5ths vote 

required); and 
B) Declare HercRentals as a sole-source provider for the supply of 2,840 feet of 12-inch HDPE pipe and 

fittings; and 
C) Approve a purchase order for HercRentals in the amount of $78,646.55. 

 
PUBLIC WORKS – Request Board approve the closure of the portion of Round Valley Road between Pine 
Creek Road and Vanadium Ranch Road between the hours of 8 a.m. and 10:30 a.m. on May 31, 2019 for the 
purpose of the Round Valley Jog-a-thon. 
 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after the 
scheduled time) 

 
11 a.m. 

 

 
21. 

 
AG COMMISSIONER –  Request Board conduct a workshop to discuss and provide direction to 
staff on several aspects of Inyo County’s Commercial Cannabis Permitting Program in 
anticipation of forthcoming license issuance. 
 

 
Note: The agenda items listed below may be considered by the Board at any time during the meeting in the 
Board’s discretion, including before scheduled timed items. 
 
COMMENT  (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
 

22. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

BOARD MEMBER AND STAFF REPORTS 
  
  
  

 



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

I Consent I Departmental lConespondence Action

fl Scheduled Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use OnlY:
AGENDA NUMBER

l2
E Pubtic Hearing

E lnformational

FRoM: Dave Stottlemyre, Assessor

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: March lQrzOtS

SUBJEGT: Reclassification in the Assessods Office

D E PART M EN TAL RE C O M M E NDAT I O N :
calY-ear2018-20l9BoardApprovedBudgettoreclassifrtheRealPropertyAppraiser,

Range 68 ($4,357-$5,29 4) to anAuditor Appraiser I, Range 70 ($4,569-$5'557)

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
@accountingrecordsandotherrelevantrecordsofindustrial,commercial,andagriculturalbusinesses
in connection with the appraisal process. Additionally, this person performs appraisals using the guidelines established by the Board of

Equalization. They muii research appraisal techniques and assessment tax law to support their work, and prepares reports and

conespondence related to audits and-appraisals. They answer public inquiries, represent the Assessor in the assessment appeals

process, and conduct field inspections at various locations within the county.

ALTERNATIWS:
your Board could choose not to approve the hiring of this position, but this would negatively impact the daily operations of the

Assessor's offtce.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT:

FINANCING:
Frmdmg fo. this position is from the General Fund. This position is currently budgeted for in the Assessor's budget 010600, in the

Salaries and Benefits object code.

DEPARTMENT H EAD S'G/VA IURE
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and to

t1q
approved by the

to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by

, qtu o^,.-4k!-,&

director of personnel services prior to

Approved

)to the board
Fen6oruNelbrRECToR:

/,^.C;tu*''

APPROVALS

(The Original plus 14 copies of this document are

L



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COTJNTY OF INYO
EConsent EDepartmental flCorrespondenceAction

fl Scheduled Time for E CtoseO Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

tv
E Puntic Hearing

Ellnformational

FRoM: Dave Stottlemyre, Assessor

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: March 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Request approval to fill vacant position with an Office Technician I

D E PA RTMEN TAL REC OMM ENDATION :
Request Board, consistent with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Board Approved Budget: A) reclassifr the BPAR Offrce Technician I,
Range 55 ($17.22 -$20.93 per hour) to a firll-time Offrce Technician I, Range 55 ($3,363-$4,086) and B) find consistent with the
adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:

A. The availability of funding for this requested position is budgeted in the Assessor's budget as certified by the Assessor and
concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; and where intemal candidates meet the qualifications
for the position, the vacancy could be filled through an internal recruitmen! but an open recruitment would be more
appropriate to ensure quatified candidates apply; and

B. Approve the hiring of one (l) Offrce Technician I, Range 55 ($3,213-$3,907).

CAO RECOMMENDATION:,

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
The current Assessor Offtce Technician I, B-Par position was vacated March22,2019. This position is critical for the operations ofthe
department, including, but not limited to both taxpayer and departmental customer service and the conversion to a new property tax
management system,

ALTERNATIWS: Yow Board could choose not to approve the hiring of this position. This altemative is not recommended
because not filling this position will adversely impact taxpayer service, support to other departments, and the transition/conversion to
the new property tax management system.

OTHERAGENCY INVOLWMENT: Personnel and the Auditor's offrce.

FINANCING: Funding for the Assessor Office Tech I position is budgeted in the Assessor's 201 8-20 19 budget [0 10600, including
all related Salaries and Benefits object codes].

D E P A RTM EN T H E A D S'GA'A TUREJ
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

,1

ft\fr

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be
rcviewed and approved by county nunsel pior to submission to the board clerk)

Approved: Date_
AUDITORYCONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RETATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and apprcved by the auditor+ontroller pior to

tothe boad clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIREGTOR:
submission

RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the of personnel prior to

/e3Approved

board

APPIIOVAI,S

(The Original plus 20 copies of this document are

D.<. 3



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

n Consent X Departmental lCorrespondence Action

n Scheduled Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

r1

n Public Hearing

! lnformational

FROM: Jon Klusmire, Museum Services Administrator

FOR THD BOARD MDETING OF: March 19,2019

SUBJECT: Request to fill vacant Curator of Collections and Exhibits position.

DEPARTMENTIL RI|CO*IMENDATION: Request the Board find that consistent with the adopted Authorized Position
Review Policy:

I ) The availability of funding for the requested position exists as certified by the Department Head with concunence by
the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; and

2) Where there are internal candidates for the position have the position filled with a closed, county-wide recruitment.
3) Authorize the filling of the position of Curator of Collections and Exhibits, Range 60 ($3,612 -- $4,387).

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: The position of Curator of Collections and Exhibits is vacant due to retilement. 'I'his position is critical
to the operation of the Museum. Underthe general supervision of the Museum Services Adminishator, the Curator is responsible for
the documentation ofall donations and current artifacts; provides technical advice and expeftise with regard to handling, storing and

displaying the Museum's roughly 75,000 artifacts, ranging frorn personal lcttcrs to photos to tools to prchistoric objccts; helps design
and create rotating exhibits as well as working to improve and update the Museum's permanent exhibits; helps train Museum staff and

oversees the efforts of Museum volunteers; managcs information, photo and rcscarch rcquests; providcs thc visiting public with
inlormation about the museum.

ALTERNATIVES: Your Board could choose not to authorize filling the vacant position, however, this is not recommended, as the
operation of the Eastern California Museum will suff'er

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: Personnel, Auditor

I'INANCING: Funding for this position is included in the FY 20 I 8-2019 Eastern California Museum Budget (077000), a General
Fund Department.

DEPA RTMENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE :

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION
reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submission to the board

RELATED ITEMS (Musf be

Approved

AUDITOFYCONTROLLER: to

Approved;

(Musl be reviewed and approved by theD ITEMSNANCE AND
the board

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:
to

be reviewed and approved by the of personnel prior to

t7
ITEMS

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are
"1-tq



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO
Consent Xx Departmental lCorrespondence Action

n Scheduled Time for E CtoseO Session

For Clefu's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

l5
! Puolic Hearing

! lnformational

FROM: County Administrator - Personnel

FOR THE BOARD MEETING: M ARCH Ig, 201 9

SU BJ ECT: Assistant Cou nty Ad m inistrator Contract

D E PARTM E NTAL RE C O MM E N DAT I O N :
Request Board approve the personal services contract with Leslie Chapman as the Assistant County Administrator, at
$10,402 per month effective MayA3,2019 and authorize the County Administrator to sign.

SAMMARY DISCUSSION:
Staff, in association with Prothman, completed a nationwide search for Deputy/Assistant County Administrator. At the
conclusion of that process, Leslie Chapman was selected for the Assistant County Administrator job.

Ms. Chapman has wealth of experience in county government and, in particular, county government in the Eastern
Sierra, most recently as the County Administrator for our neighbors to the north Mono County. She had also served as
Finance Director for Mono County. Prior to that, she spent a number of years as the lnyo County Auditor-Controller.

We are very fortunate to find someone with Ms. Chapman's credentials available to fill this critical role with lnyo County

ALTERNATIWS: Your Board could choose to not approve the contract; however, this is not recommended.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT: County Counsel and Personnel

FINANCING: Funding for this position is included in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019.

DEPARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE :
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

COUNry COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by cotunty counsel pior to submr.ssrbn to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_
AUDITORYCONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND REIATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller

d4l

to
submr.ssrbn to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: PERS9{{IEL AND RE|-ATED TTEMS

submrsbioh to the boad cterk.)

--S\^"\ L
(Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel seruices pior to

npprou"O, J o"t"3
BUDGET OFFICER: BUDGET REIATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the budget officer pior to submission to the boad

clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

APPROVALS

(The Original plus 14 copies of this
3 t3



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND LESLIE CHAPMAN

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES
AS ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, Leslie Chapman (hereinafter referred to as "Assistant County Administrator") has been
or will be duly appointed as an Assistant County Administrator for lnyo County; and

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Assistant County
Administrator desire to set forth the manner and means by which Assistant County Administrator will be
compensated for performance of duties.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions
hereinafter contained, County and Assistant County Administrator hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

Assistant County Administrator shall furnish to the County those services and work set forth in
AttachmentA, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.

Services and work provided by Assistant County Administrator under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, resolutions, and directions.

2. ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT.

Assistant County Administrator will report directly to and shall work under the direction of the County
Administrative Officer. As the County's Personnel Director, the County Administrative Officer will administer
this contract

3. TERM

The term of this Agreement shall be from May 23, 2019 until terminated as provided below

4, CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation. County shall pay Assistant County Administrator in accordance with the
Schedule of Fees (set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are
performed by Assistant County Administrator.

B. Travel and Per Diem. County shall reimburse Assistant County Administrator for the travel
expenses and per diem which Assistant County Administrator incurs in providing services and work under
this Agreement. Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in
the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem Payment (Attachment C). County reserves the right to deny
reimbursement to Assistant County Administrator for travel or per diem expenses which are either in excess
of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in Attachment C, or which are incurred by the
Assistant County Administrator without the proper approval of the County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 208

Appointed Assistant County Administrator
Page 1

03t12t19



C. No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Assistant
County Administrator shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration,
compensation, salary, wages, or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.

D. Manner of Pavment. Assistant County Administrator will be paid in the same manner and
on the same schedule of frequency as other County officers and employees.

E. Federal and State Taxes. From all payments made to Assistant County Administrator by

County under the terms and provisions of this Agreement, County shall withhold all appropriate federal and

state income taxes (resident and non-resident)

5. WORKSCHEDULE.

Assistant County Administrator's obligation is to perform the services and work identified in

Attachment A which are needed within the County. lt is understood by Assistant County Administrator that
the performance of these services and work will require a varied schedule. Assistant County Administrator,
in arranging her schedule, will coordinate and make arrangements to fulfill the requirements of the services
and work which is necessary.

6. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipalgovernments
for Assistant County Administrator to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be
procured by Assistant County Administrator and be valid at the time Assistant County Administrator enters
into this Agreement or as othenrvise may be required. Further, during the term of this Agreement, Assistant
County Administrator must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. Licenses,
certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, and professional licenses or
certificates. Assistant County Administrator will provide County, at County's request, evidence of current and
valid licenses, certificates and permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A,

Where there is a dispute between Assistant County Administrator and County as to what licenses,
certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the
right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

7. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC

County shall provide Assistant County Administrator with such supplies, reference materials,
telephone service, and staff as is deemed necessary by the County for Assistant County Administrator to
provide the services identified in Attachment A to this Agreement.

8. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Supplies, Equipment, etc. All supplies, equipment, tools, protective or safety devices,
badges, identification cards, keys, uniforms, vehicles, reference materials, furniture, appliances, etc, provided

to Assistant County Administrator by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination of this
Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. Assistant County Administrator will use
reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Assistant County
Administrator's possession.

B. Products of Assistant Countv Administrator 's Work and Services. Any and all compositions,
publications, plans, designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides,
video tapes, computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio
recordings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents,

trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled,

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 208

Appointed Assistant County Administrator
Page2

03t12t19



compiled by, or are the result or product of, Assistant County Administrator's services or work under this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the
County. At the termination of the Agreement, Assistant County Administrator will convey possession and title
to all such properties to County.

9. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

County shall provide workers' compensation coverage to Assistant County Administrator for all acts
performed in the course and scope of providing the services described in Attachment A to this Agreement. ln

the event a claim is made by Assistant County Administrator for injuries received in the course and scope of
providing such services, County's liability shall be limited to workers'compensation benefits payable under
the California Labor Code.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

ln the event the Assistant County Administrator is sued for acts performed within the course and
scope of providing services and work described in Attachment A of this Agreement, County shall defend,
indemnify, and hold the Assistant County Administrator harmless from any and all liability arising from such
acts as required by law.

11. TERMINATION AND DISCIPLINE

Assistant County Administrator's services under this Agreement may be terminated by County
without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to Assistant County Administrator one hundred eighty
(180) days written notice of such intent to terminate. Assistant County Administrator may terminate this
Agreement without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of
such intent to terminate to County.

12. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the personal services of Assistant County Administrator. County has relied
upon the skills, knowledge, experience, and training of Assistant County Administrator as an inducement to
enter into this Agreement. Assistant County Administrator shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement, or
any part of it, without the express written consent of the County.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

Assistant County Administrator agrees to comply with various provisions of the federal, state, and
county statutes, laws, and ordinances applicable to the County prohibiting discrimination against any person
on specified grounds.

14. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Assistant County Administrator agrees to comply with various provisions of the federal, state, and
county laws and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by the
County, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential. Disclosure of such confidential, privileged, or protected
information shall be made by Assistant County Administrator only as allowed by law.

15. CONFLTCTS.

Assistant County Administrator agrees that Assistant County Administrator has no interest, and shall
not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 208

Appointed Assistant County Administrator
Page 3

03t12t19



of the work and services under this Agreement. Assistant County Administrator agrees to complete and file
appropriate conflict of interest statements.

16. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Assistant County Administrator agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged

information which is gained from the County in the course of providing services and work under this
Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or enhancement. Further, Assistant County Administrator agrees
for a period of two years after the termination of this Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with
any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or
conflicting interest with the County, or who has been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and
concerning such, Assistant County Administrator by virtue of this Agreement has gained access to the
Cou nty's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary i nformation.

17. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

18. NOT|CE.

Any notice, amendments, or additions to this Agreement, including change of address of either party

during the term of this Agreement, which Assistant County Administrator or County shall be required, or may
desire, to make shall be in writing and shall be sent by prepaid first class mail to the respective parties as
follows:

Gounty of Inyo
County Administrator Department
P.O. Drawer N Mailing Address
lndeoendence, CA 93526 City and State

Assistant Gounty Administrator
Leslie Chapman Name

T Ln.
Topaz. CA 96133 City and State

29. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilil llll

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 208
Appointed Assistant County Administrator

Page 4
03t12t19



AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO
AND LESL]E CHAPMAN

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES
AS ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY

COUNTY OF INYO

Dated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

\---g.-r-

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING
FO

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL
REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

ASSTSTANT GOU NTY ADMU.IIST.RAJO R

Prinl or

t ,' .X*u#b*tn*'-r,

3

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 208

Appointed Assistant County Administrator
Page 5

03t12t19



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND LESLIE CHAPMAN

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES
AS ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

TERM:

FROM: Mav 23.2019 TO: TERMINATION

SCOPE OF WORK:

Upon commencing employment, Assistant County Administrator shall perform the duties and
responsibilities as identified in the job description for Assistant County Administrator incorporated herein
by this reference.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 208
Appointed Assistant County Administrator

Page 6
o3t12t19



2.

3.

ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND LESLIE CHAPMAN

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES
AS ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

TERM:

FROM: May 23,2019 TO: TERMINATION

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

After commencing employment, Assistant County Administrator shall be paid $10,402 per month,
and shall be paid every two weeks on County paydays.

The County Administrator will review Assistant County Administrator's performance annually.

Except as othenrvise provided in this contract, Assistant County Administrator shall be
compensated and receive benefits according to lnyo County Resolution Number 2018-02 or a
successor resolution applicable to Management Employees.

County will provide and maintain a motor vehicle for Assistant County Administrator's use
travelling between work locations and in conducting other County business. Said vehicle will be
garaged overnight at a County facility unless prior permission is granted by the County
Administrator or his designee.

Assistant County Administrator shall be credited with one hundred (100) hours of sick leave upon
the first day of Assistant County Administrator's employment. (She may thereafter accrue
additional sick leave in accordance with applicable County policies.)

Assistant County Administrator is entitled to eighty (80) paid administrative hours off every fiscal
year. The administrative leave hours shall not accumulate and will be lost if not utilized during the
fiscalyear. The administrative leave shall have no cash value.

For purposes of vacation and sick leave accrual, and longevity compensation, Assistant County
Administrator will be considered to begin her employment with 10 years of continuous county
service (to which she will add more years of actual service during her employment). Thus, for
example, she will be entitled to receive the 1O-year longevity increase upon commencement of
this Agreement and the 1S-year longevity increase approximately five years later.

The provisions of this Attachment B shall prevail over any contrary provision in any applicable
County personnel policy or rule.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 208
Appointed Assistant County Administrator

Page 7

4.

5

6

7

03t12t19



1

2

ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND LESLIE CHAPMAN

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES
AS ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

TERM:

FROM: May 23,2019 TO: TERMINATION

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT

Subject to Paragraph 2 below, County will reimburse Assistant County Administrator for travel and
per diem expenses in the same amount and to the same extent as County reimburses its permanent
status merit system employees.

Assistant County Administrator will not be reimbursed for intra-county travel by private automobile to
destinations less than seventy-five (75) miles from lndependence, California.

\\\ NOTHING FOLLOWS////

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 208
Appointed Assistant County Administrator

Page 8
o3t12t19



FttEN#sNntilbn

llo

l-lconsent I oepartmentat ! Correspondence Action Public Hearing

f] s"n"out"d rime for Closed Session lnformational

FRoM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES- Public Health

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: March t9,20t9

SUBJECT: Request to approve the modified job description and to hire one full time Human Services Superuisor in the
HHS Public Health & Prevention Division

D E PA RTM E II TA L R ECO M M E N DATIO N :
Request your Board approve the modified Human Seruices Supervisor job description, and find that consistent with the
adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:

A) The availability of funding for the requested position exists in non-General Fund budgets, as certified by the Health
and Human Services Director and concurred with by the County Administrator, and Auditor-Controller; and

B) where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal
recruitment, but an open recruitment would be more appropriate to ensure qualified candidates apply

c) Approve the hiring of one Human seruices supervisor at Range 70 (94,569 - 95,557),

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
The Human Seruices Supervisor in the HHS Public Health and Prevention division recently promoted to the prevention
Program Manager position in the same division. Under new minimum staffing requirements for Tobacco Control programs
that were set with the passage of Prop 56, this position must be dedicated 100o/o to Tobacco Control activities, with at
least one more 0'5 FTE position dedicated to tobacco coalition coordination. In coordination with community agencies the
Human Services Supervisor will be responsible for overall and day-to-day management related to implementingand
evaluating Inyo County's Comprehensive Tobacco Control Plan; onboarding new staff; directing and supervising staff;
preparing or overseeing the preparation of the Tobacco Control plan and progress reports, assisting with preparation of
the budget and cost reports, and maintenance of required documents for auditing purposes,

When reviewing the approved job description for the Human Seruices Supervisor, the Department noticed that the
minimum qualifications had been written more specific to the position working in Behavioral Health and did not provide for
experience working in other fields of health and human seruices, The attached job description has been modified to
reflect minimum standards for the classification to allow for its usage across all divisions in Health and Human Services.
The essentialjob duties will remain consistent across all divisions and when used to hire for specific programs, such as
Tobacco Control, the description can be altered to include a position-specific section to reflect speciaiized job duties.

The Department respectfully request your Board approve the modified job description and authorize the hiring of a
Human Services Superuisor for the Tobacco Control program.

ALTERNATIVES:
Your Board could choose not to fill this position. Doing so would mean that HHS would not be able to meet the minimum
staffing requirements for Tobacco Control, which would impact Inyo County's ability to receive tobacco funding,

OTH ER AGENCY INVOLVEM ENT:
Local schools, Mono county Tobacco control, Inyo county Tobacco coalition

AGENDA REQUEST F'ORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO



FINANCITTG:
State and Federal funding. This position is budgeted 100o/o in Tobacco (6403L7) in the Salaries and Benefits object codes. No
County General Funds.

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGflA Date
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: toRELATEDAND ITEMS be reviewed and the Auditor/Controllet(Must apprcved by
Board CIerk.)

PERSONNEL DIREGTOR: approved by the Director of Personnel Seruices priot to

Approved

AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed
to the



INvo Counrv
Pn'nsoNNn,l Srnvrcns
P. O. Box249
InrnpnurnNcE, CA 93526

DEPARTMENT:
LOCATION:
SALARY:

(760) 878-0s77
FAX (760) 878-0465

AN EQUAL OPPORTTINITY EMPLOYER
(WOMEN, MINORITIES, AND DISABLED ARE ENCOURAGED TO APPLY)

ANNOUNCES AN OPEN RECRUITMENT FOR:

HUMAN SERVICES SUPERVISOR

Health and Human Services
Countywide
Range 70 $4569-$5557 Monthly

**BENEFITS: CaIPERS Retirement System: Existing ("Classic") CaIPERS members as of January 1,
2013, (2% at 55) - Inyo County pays employee contribution for current CaIPERS members; new
CaIPERS members hired after January l, 2073 (2% at 62) will be required to pay at least 50% of normal
cost. Medical Plan - Inyo County pays a portion of employee and dependent monthly premium
on PERS medical plans; 100% of employee and dependent monthly premium paid for dental and vision;
$20,000 term life insurance policy on employee. Vacation - 10 days per year during the first three years;
15 days per year after three years; I additional day for each year of service after ten years to a maximum
of 25 days per year. Sick leave - 15 days per year. Flex (personal days) - 5 days per fiscal year. Paid
holidays- ll peryear.

DEFINITION: Under direction of the HHS Director or her designee, will provide first-line
supervision in the organization and operation of one or more Health and Human Services
programs, including Behavioral Health, Tobacco Control, and Ombudsman services.

ESSENTIAL JOB DUTIES: Supervises and evaluates the work of staff, as well as directly
provides a broad range of health and human services activities which may be specific to one or
more programs, such as prevention, behavioral health, social services or senior services
programs (ESAAA); provides directly andlot affanges for on-going training to volunteers and
staff; develops, facilitates, and supports collaborative efforts with other work units andlor
community stakeholders; develops and implements work unit goals, writes required plans,
monitors, and reports on progress toward goals; makes regular presentations to community
groups and policy makers (i.e., civic clubs, churches, governing boards, etc.) for purposes of
educating about services andlor advocating for policy, systems, and environmental change;
coordinates, and may provide activities to ensure timely and appropriate completion of tasks
and projects; interviews and participates in the selection of staff; conducts employee
conferences to discuss or interpret departmental rules, regulations, policies and procedures, and
performance problems; identifies and resolves operational problems; receives and resolves
employee complaints and makes recommendations to superiors on difficult and complex
personnel matters; supervises and participates in quality control; ensures compliance with
applicable rules, regulations, policies and procedures governing tasks within assigned duties.
May be assigned to additional supervisory, training, investigative and/or routine administrative
responsibilities.



EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS
Education/Experience :

Path 1: A Bachelor's Degree from and accredited 4-year university AND one (1) year of
performing duties in a social services, public health, behavioral health or related health &
human services agency.

-oR-
Path 2: High school graduate or equivalent AND three (3) years of professional experience
performing work consistent with the assigned work unit, including one year of lead or
supervisory experience in such programs, AND completion of the equivalent of 18 semester
units (28 quarter units) in a related field.

-oR-
Path 3: High school graduate or equivalent and one (l) year of front line supervisory experience
in a health & human services agency, public or private.

Knowledge of: The functions of Human Services agencies and the specific issues assigned in
the work unit (e.g. Tobacco Control Program; Mental Health Services Act; Long-Term Care
Ombudsman).

Ability to: Speak and write English using appropriate grammar and paragraph structure, and
produce oral and written reports/presentations concisely and clearly. Plan, assign, monitor, and
supervise the work of others. Apply interpersonal skills effectively. Establish and maintain
cooperative working relationships with community groups, co-workers and the general public.
Work effectively with other work units in the agency. Train and develop staff including
consumers. Operate automated office equipment and systems used by the department. Identify
problems and develop solutions; analyze a situation accurately and adopt an effective course of
action; use available sources of information effectively in determining program goals and
activities. Consistent attendance is an essential function of the position.

SPECIAL TS: Must possess a valid California Driver's License; must successfully
complete a pre-employment background check and physical examination, including drug screen.

SELECTION: Selection procedures will determined by the number and qualifications of applicants
and may include a qualification screening, written examination, and oral interview.

APPI,I Applications must be received in the Personnel Office, P.O. Box 249,
Independence, CA 93526, no later than 5:00 p.m. on (postmarks not accepted).

THIS RECRUITMENT WILL ESTABLISH AN ELIGIBILITY LIST THAT WILL BE USED F'OR ONE YEAR
IN FILLING COUNTYWIDE VACANCIES THAT MAY OCCUR IN THIS JOB CLASSIF'ICATION AND
SALARY RANGE.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH QUALIFYING DISABILITIES: Inyo County
will make reasonable efforts in the examination process on a case-by-case basis to accommodate persons with disabilities.
Ifyou have special needs, please contact (760) 878-0377 prior to the examination process.

CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS: Inyo County employs only U.S. citizens and lawfully authorized non-
citizens in accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.

The County of Inyo has work sites located throughout Inyo County in the Owens Valley (Independence, Bishop, Lone
Pine, Big Pine, and Olancha) and the Death Valley area (Death Valley, Shoshone, and Tecopa). Additionally, the County
of Inyo has work sites located in Mono County. Positions are assigned to a work site based upon the needs of the County.
Positions may be temporarily or permanently reassigned to another work site as deemed necessary by the Department
Head.



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO

Vtfils#;Ntr,fuM

t7

[consent X Departmentat
Hearing

! s"n"ort"d rime for

l-l corr""pondence Action Public

! ctosec Session lnformational

FRoM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - Behavioral Health, Drug Medi-Cal (DMC) Substance Use
Disorder Seruices

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: March 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Ratification and Approval of amendment #1 to the Multi-Year DMC Substance Use Disorder Seruices
contract for Years 20L7-20t8 through 20L9-2020.

D E PA RTM E N TA L RECO M M E N DATIO N :
Request your Board ratify and approve Amendment A01 to the Standard Agreement between the County of Inyo
and the Depaftment of Health Care Services for DMC Substance Use Disorder Seruices, recognizing an increase of
$23,422 for years two and three of the contract resulting in a total contract amount of g257,653 fbr the period of
July 1, 2017 through June 30,2020, and authorize the Chairperson to sign five original signature pages plus one
original signature on the Ceftification (CCC-307) and one original signature on the California Civil Rights Law
Ceftification.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
This Agreement was received by our department on January 31, 2019 and the signed documents are due back to
the State with Board minutes indicating approval by March 31, 2019. This is the first amendment that the
Depaftment of Health Care Services is issuing for DMC services recognizing additional administrative tasks involved
in the contract.

This is the standard contract between the County of Inyo and the Department of Health Care Seruice for DMC
services for a three-year cycle. In addition to the increase of $11,711 for year two of the contract and g11,711 for
year three of the contract, other changes include modification to the terms and conditions as follows:

1) Exhibit A, Attachment I A1 (Program Specifications), which is incorporated in its entirety with amended
language added regarding the additional administrative oversight and monitoring of providers including such
areas as corrective action plans, training, monthly provider enrollment, Medi-Cal eligibility verification, and
dedicated capacity repofting, as well as updated references and sites to submit reports.

2) Exhibit B, Attachment 1 A4 - Funding for FY 20L7-20I8 through FY 20Lg-2020 which is incorporated in its
entirety with increased amount totaling $23,422 for budget years two (2018/2019) and three (Z0L91Z0Z0).

All other terms and conditions shall remain the same.

The Depaftment is respectfully requesting that your Board ratify and approve Amendment A01 to the Standard
Agreement between the County of Inyo and Department of Health Care Services for DMC Substance Use Disordei
Seruices and authorize the Chairperson to sign five original signature pages plus one original signature on the
Certification (CCC-307) and one original signature on the California Civil Rights Law Certification.



ALTERNATIVES:
Your Board could deny or delay this request, which would end or interrupt the flow of State and Federal funds for
substance use disorders programming in the County of Inyo.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
State of California - Health and Human Services Agency-Department of Health Care Services

FINANCING:
This will be brought in as Revenue to the Substance Use Disorders Budget (045315) as Federal Other (4552).

APPROVALS

7

Date 5li"{rsDEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNA
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

COUNTY COUNSEL:

k'-clnt,./"lu.r

AGREEMENTS' CONTRACTS AND OROINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Musfbe
reviewed and approved by County Counsel prior to subnission to the Board Clerk.)

Approved V1D Date: 7lt4 tln
ROLLER:AU ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the Auditor/Controtter prior to/'J*Date:

submrbslon to the Board Clerk.)

DIRECTORPE N

\

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed
submrsslon to the Board Clerk.)

.*/%(tz
"n%ppror"a

JApproved:

by the Dhector of Personnel Services ptior to



orAttsur vALtruKrrrA

STAN DARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
STD. 213A_DHCS (Rev. 03/18)

[l Ctrecx here if additional pages are added: 112 Page(s)

This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below:
State Agency's Name (Also known as DHCS, CDHS, DHS or the State)

Department of Health Care Services

1

Contractor's Name

County of lnyo
(Also refened to as Contractor)

Agreement Number

17-94074

Amendment Number

A01

Regiskation Number:.

2. The term of this Agreement is July 1,2017

through June 30, 2020
3 The maximum amount of this $ 257,653

Agreement after this amendment is: Two Hundred Fifty-Seven Thousand, Six Hundred Fifty-Three Dollars

4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows. All actions noted below are by this reference made a part
of the Agreement and incorporated herein:

l. The effective date of this amendment is the date approved by DHCS.

ll. Purpose of amendment: This amendment 1) modifies the terms and conditions and 2)
increases the budget in years 2 and 3 to compensate the Contractor for performing
additional services.

lll. Certain changes made in this amendment are shown as: Text additions are displayed in
bold and underline. Text deletions are displayed as strike through text (i.e., Stt+ke)

lV. Paragraph 3 (maximum amount payable) on the face of the original STD 213 is increased by
$23,422 and is amended to read:

$257.653 (Two Hundred Fiftv-Seven Thousand. Six Hundred
Fiftv-Three Dollars).

(Continued on next page)

All other terms and conditions shall remain the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this has been executed the hereto.

CONTRACTOR

Contractor's Name (lf other than an individual, state whether a corporation, paftnership, etc.)

County of lnyo
By (Authorized Signature)

6
Printed Name and Title of Person Signing

Address

163 May Street
Bis cA 93514

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
Agency Name

Department of Health Care Services
By (Authorized Signature)

.6
Printed Name and Title of Person Signing

Carrie Talbot, Chief, Contract Management Unit
Address

1000 G Street, 4th Floor, MS 4200, P.O. Box 997413,
Sacramento, CA 95899-741 3

Date Signed (Do not type)

Date Signed (Do not type)

CALIFORNIA
Department of General Services

Use Only

! exempt per: W&l Code 14087.4



ccc 04t20t7

CERTIFICATION

I, the official named below, CERTIFY I-INDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly
authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This
certification is made under the laws of the State of California.

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES

l. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with
the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code $12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REOUIREMENTS: Contractorwill comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,
4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

l) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,
2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment
on the Agreement.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the

C ontractor/B idder F irm Name (Printe d)

County of Inyo

Federal ID Number

95-6005445

By (Authorized Signature)

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing

Date Executed Executed in the County of
Inyo



certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code $8350 et
seq.)

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies
that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal
court has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year
period because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which
orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub.
Contract Code $ 10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $5O.OOO OR MORE- PRO BONO
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1,

2003.

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of
pro bono legal services during each year ofthe contract equal to the lessor of30
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm's offices in the State, with the
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full
year or l0% of its contract with the State.

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future
contracts with the State for legal services.

5. EXPATRTATE CORPORATIONS: Contractor hereby declares that it is not an
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the
State of California.

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:

a. Al1 Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other
than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that
no apparel, garments or coffesponding accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies
furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced in whole
or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or
with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop
labor. The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the
Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial
Relations website located at www.dir.ca.sov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108.

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the
contractor's records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required
by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations,



or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor's compliance with the
requirements under paragraph (a).

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS: For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies
that Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.

8. GENDER IDENTITY: For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35.

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIF'ORNIA

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of
California.

l. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions
regarding current or former state employees. If Contractor has any questions on the
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code $10410):

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services.

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code 910411):

l). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency.

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject
area as the proposed contract within the l2-month period prior to his or her leaving state
service.

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code 910420)

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 910430 (e))



2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS'COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and

Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance
of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700)

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and
guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.)

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of
the name change the State will process the amendment. Payment of invoices presented
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.

5. CORPORATE QUALIFTCATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101as actively engaging in any
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit. Although there are
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing
within the state not be subject to the franchise tax.

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of Califomia) must
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California. Agencies will
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary
of State.

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the
State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body
which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the
agreement.

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor
shall not be; (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated
by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease
and desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water
Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3)
finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water
pollution.

8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD.204: This form must be completed by all
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity.



CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, if a bidder or proposer executes or renews a
contract over $100,000 on or after January 1, 2017 , the bidder or proposer hereby certifies
compliance with the following.

1. CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS: For contracts over $100,000 executed or renewed
after January 1,2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act
(Section 51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the
Government Code); and

2. EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES: For contracts over $100,000 executed or
renewed after January 1,2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign nation
or peoples recognized by the United States government, the Contractor certifies that such
policies are not used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section 51 of the Civil Code) or
the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the Government Code).

CERTIFICATION

l, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Propose r/Bidde r F irm N ame (Printed)

County of Inyo

Federal lD Number

95-6005445

By (Authorized Signatu re)

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing

Date Executed Executed in the County and State of

lnyo, California



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

Part l: Druq Medi-Cal Treatment Proqram Substance Use Disorder Services

Section 1: Formation and Purpose

A. This Exhibit A, Attachment l, Part I of the Contract is entered into by and between the
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) and the Contractor for the purpose of
identifying and providing for covered Drug Medi-Cal (DMC) services for Substance Use
Disorder (SUD) treatment in the Contractor's service area pursuant to Sections
1 1848.5(a) and (b) of the Health and Safety Code (hereinafter referred to as HSC),
Sections 14021.51 - 14021.53, and 14124.20 - 14124.25 of the Welfare & lnstitution
Code (hereinafter referred to as W&l Code), and Title 22 of the California Code of
Regulations (hereinafter referred to as Title 22), Sections 51341 .1, 51490.1 , and
51516.1.

B. lt is further agreed this Contract is controlled by applicable provisions of: (a) the W&l
Code, Chapter 7, Sections 14000, et seq., in particular, but not limited to, Sections
14100.2, 14021, 14021.5, 14021.6, 14043, et seq., (b) Title 22, including but not limited
to Sections 51490.1, 51341.1 and 51516.1; and (c) Division 4 of Title 9 of the California
Code of Regulations (hereinafter referred to as Title 9).

C. lt is understood and agreed that nothing contained in this Contract shall beconstrued
to impair the single state agency authority of DHCS.

D. The objective of this Contract is to make SUD treatment services available to Medi-Cal
beneficiaries through utilization of federal and state funds available pursuant to Title
XIX or Title XXI of the Social Security Act for reimbursable covered services rendered
by certified DMC providers.

Section 2: Govered Services

A. Covered Services

1. Contractor shall establish assessment and referral procedures and shall arrange,
provide, or subcontract for covered services in the Contractor's service area.
Covered services include:

a) Outpatient Drug-Free Treatment

b) Narcotic Replacement Therapy

c) NaltrexoneTreatment

d) lntensive Outpatient Treatment

e) Perinatal Residential Substance Abuse Services (excluding room and board)

Page 1 ot32



County of lnyo
17-94074 Ai01

Exhibit A, Attachment I Al
P rog ram S pecifications

2. ln accordance with W&l Code, Section 14124.22, in addition to Narcotic Treatment
Program (NTP) services, an NTP provider that is also enrolled as a Medi-Cal
provider may provide medically necessary treatment of concurrent health conditions
within the scope of the provider's practice, to Medi-Cal beneficiaries who are not
enrolled in managed care plans. Medi-Cal beneficiaries enrolled in managed care
plans shall be referred to those plans for receipt of medically necessary medical
treatment of concurrent health conditions.

Diagnosis and treatment of concurrent health conditions of Medi-Cal beneficiaries
not enrolled in managed care plans by a NTP provider may be provided within the
Medi-Cal coverage limits. When the services are not part of the SUD treatment
reimbursed pursuant to W&l Code, Section 14021.51, services shall be reimbursed
in accordance with the Medi-Cal program. Services reimbursable under this section
shall include, but not limited to, all of the following:

a) Medical treatment visits

b) Diagnostic blood, urine, and X-rays

c) Psychological and psychiatric tests and services

d) Quantitative blood and urine toxicology assays

e) Medical supplies

An NTP provider, enrolled as a Medi-Calfee-for-service provider, shall not seek
reimbursement from a beneficiary for substance abuse treatment services, if
services for treatment of concurrent health conditions are billed to the Medi-Cal fee-
for-service program.

3. ln the event of a conflict between the definition of services contained in this Section
of the Contract, and the definition of services in Title 22, Sections 51341 .1,51490.1,
and 51 51 6.1 , the provisions of Tltle 22 shall govern.

4. Contractor, to the extent applicable, shall comply with "Sobky v. Smoley"
(Document 2A), 855 F. Supp. 1 123 (E. D. Cal 1 994), incorporated by this reference.

5. Contractor shall comply with federal and state mandates to provide alcohol and
other drug treatment services deemed medically necessary for Medi-Cal eligible: (1)
pregnant and postpartum women and (2) youth under age 21 who are eligible under
the Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic and Treatment (EPSDT) Program.

a) lf DMC services are provided to minor consent beneficiaries, Contractor shall
comply with California Family Code Section 6929, and Title 22, Sections
50147.1, 50030, 50063.5, 50157(fX3), 50167(aX6XD), and 50195(d).

Page 2 ot 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Prog ram Specifications

B. Access to Services

1. Subject to DHCS provider enrollment certification requirements, Contractor shall
maintain continuous availability and accessibility of covered services and facilities,
service sites, and personnel to provide the covered services through use of DMC-
certified providers. Such services shall not be limited due to budgetaryconstraints.

a) When a request for covered services is made by a beneficiary, Contractor shall
require services to be initiated with reasonable promptness. Contractor shall
have a documented system for monitoring and evaluating accessibility of care,
including a system for addressing problems that develop regarding waiting times
and appointments.

b) Contractor shall ensure authorize-residential services are provided in
accordance with the medical necessity criteria specified in Title 22, Section
51303, and the coverage provisions of the approved state Medi-Cal Plan. Room
and board are not reimbursable DMC services. lf services are denied, the
provider shall inform the beneficiary in accordance with Title 22, Section
51341.1 (p)

c) Contractor shall require that treatment programs are accessible to people with
disabilities in accordance with Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations (hereinafter
referred to as CFR), Part 84 and the Americans with Disabilities Act.

d) The failure of the Contractor. or its subcontractors. to complv with Section
2 of this Part will be deemed a breach of this Contract sufficient to
terminate this Gontract for cause.

2. Courtesv Dosinq

a) An NTP/OTP provider mav provide replacement narcotic therapv to visitinq
beneficiaries approved to receive services on a temporarv basis (less than
30 davs) in accordance with Title 9. Section 10295. Prior to providinq
replacement narcotic therapv to a visiting beneficiarv. an NTP/OTP
provider must complv with Title 9. Section 10210(d).

b) The Contractor shall accept. and reimburse. a claim from anv
subcontracted NTP/OTP provider (Referrinq NTP/OTP) that pavs another
NTP/OTP for providinq courtesv dosinq (Dosinq NTP/OTP) to a beneficiary.
The Gontractor shall use the reimbursement rate established in the
NTP/OTP provider's subcontract.

Z 3. Covered services, whether provided directly by the Contractor or through
subcontractors with DMC certified and enrolled programs, shall be provided to
beneficiaries without regard to the beneficiaries' county of residence.

Page 3 of 32



Coun$ of lnyo
17-94074 Ai01

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
P rogram S pecifications

3, The failure ef the Gentraeter' er it+subeentraeters; te eemply with Seetien B ef this
Part will be deemed a breaeh ef this Gentraet suffieient te terminate this Centraet fer

nttaenmentt; Partl];SeetienB;sha

C. Payment for Services

1. DHCS shall make the appropriate payments set forth in Exhibit B and take all
available steps to secure and pay Federal Financial Participation Funds (FFP) and
State General Funds (SGF) to the Contractor, once DHCS receives FFP and SGF,
for claims submitted by the Contractor. DHCS shall notify Contractor and allow
Contractor an opportunity to comment to DHCS when questions are posed by
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), or when there is a federal
deferral, withholding, or disallowance with respect to claims made by the
Contractor.

2. Contractor shall amend its subcontracts for covered services in order to provide
sufficient funds to match allowable Federal Medicaid reimbursements for any
increase in provider DMC services to beneficiaries.

3. ln the event that the Contractor fails to provide covered services in accordancewith
the provisions of this Contract, at the discretion of DHCS, Contractor may be
required to forfeit its county realignment funds pursuant to Government Code
Section 30027.10 (a) through (d) from the Behavioral Health Subaccount that is set
aside for DMC services and surrender its authority to function as the administrator
of covered services in its service area.

4. Contractor shall require all subcontractors to comply with 45 CFR 162.410(a)(1) for
any subpart that would be a covered health care provider if it were a separate legal
entity. For purposes of this paragraph, a covered health care provider shall have
the same definition as set forth in 45 CFR 160.1 03. DHCS shall make payments for
covered services only if Contractor is in compliance with federal regulations.

Section 3: Druq Medi-Cal Certification and Continued Certification

A. DMC Certification and Enrollment

1. DHCS will certify eligible providers to participate in the DMC program

2. DHCS shall certify any county operated or non-governmental providers. This
certification shall be performed prior to the date on which the Contractor beginsto
deliver services under this Contract at these sites.

3. The Contractor shall require that providers of perinatal DMC services are properly
certified to provide these services and comply with the requirements contained in

Title 22, Section 51341.1 , Services for Pregnant and Postpartum Women.

Page 4ot32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Prog ram S pecifications

4. Contractor shall require all the subcontracted providers of services to be licensed,
registered, DMC certified, and/or approved in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Contractor's subcontracts shall require that providers comply with
the following regulations and guidelines:

a) Title 21, CFR Part 1300, et seq., Title 42, CFR, Part 8

b) Title 22, CCR, Sections 51341 .1 , 51490J, and 51 516.1 , (Document 2C)

c) Minimum Quality Treatment Standards, (Document 2F(a))

d) Title 9, CCR, Division 4, Chapter 4, Subchapter 1, Sections 10000, et. seq

e) Title 22, CCR, Division 3, Chapter 3, sections 51000 et. seq

ln the event of conflicts, the provisions of Title22 shall control if they are more
stringent.

5. Contractor shall notify Provider Enrollment Division (PED) of an addition or change
of information in a provider's pending DMC certification application within 35 daysof
receiving notification from the provider. The Contractor must ensure that a new
DMC certification application is submitted to PED reflecting the change.

6. Contractor is responsible for ensuring that any reduction of covered services or
relocations by providers are not implemented until approval is issued by DHCS.
Within 35 days of receiving notification of a provider's intent to reduce covered
services or relocate, the Contractor shall submit, or require the provider to submit, a
DMC certification application to PED. The DMC certification application must be
submitted to PED 60 days prior to the desired effective date of the reduction of
covered services or relocation.

7 . lf, at any time, a subcontractor's license, registration, certification, or approval to
operate a substance use treatment program or provide a covered service is
revoked, suspended, modified, or not renewed by entities other than DHCS, the
Contractor must notify DHCS Program Support and Grants Management Section by
e-mail at DHCSMPF@dhcs.ca.qov within Slle five business days of learning of the
revocation, suspension, modification, or non-renewal.

a) A provider's certification to participate in the DMC program shallautomatically
terminate in the event that the provider or its owners, officers, or directors are
convicted of Medi-Cal fraud, abuse, or malfeasance. For purposes of this
section, a conviction shall include a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.

Page 5 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit A, Attachment I Al
Program Specifications

B. Continued Certification

1. All DMC certified providers shall be subject to continuing certification requirements
at least once every five years.

2. DHCS may allow the provider to continue delivering covered services to
beneficiaries at a site subject to on-site review by DHCS as part of the recertification
process prior to the date of the on-site review, provided the site is operational, the
certification remains valid, and has all required fire clearances.

3. DHCS will conduct recertification on-site visits at clinics for circumstances identified
in W&l Code, Sections 14043.37, 14043.4, and 14043.7.

Section 4: Monitorinq

A. State Monitoring

1. DHCS Postservice Prepavment $4en+t€nng Utilization Reviews (referred to as
Druq Medi-Cal Monitorinq (DMCM) Reviews) and FinancialAudits of Contractor

g) DHCS shall monitor the Contractor's operations for compliance with the
provisions of this Contract, and applicable federal and state law and
regulations. Such monitoring activities shall include, but not be limited to,
inspection and auditing of Contractor services, management systems and
procedures, and books and records, as DHCS deems appropriate, at any
time during the Contractor's or facility's normal business hours.

!l When menitering aetivities identify areas ef nen eemplianee' DHCS shall
issue DMCM reports to the Contractor, with a copv to the subcontracted
DMC provider that provided the service, detailing findings,
recommendations, and l4]gg{ corrective actions. The Contractor shall
be responsible for ensurinq their subcontracted providers and counfu-
run Droqram's deficiencies are remediated oursuant to Sections
4(2XcXiX1 and 2) herein. The Contractor shall aftest the deficiencies
have been remediated and are co nlete- nursuant to Section 4(Al.
Paraqraph (c). herein.

i. All deficiencies identified bv the CM review shall be corrected and
the Contractor shall submit a Contractor-approved GAP to the DMCM
Unit within 60 davs of the date of the DMCM report.

1) The CAP shall:

a. Address each demand for
deficiencv

Page 6 of 32

rv and/or oroorammatic



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

b. Provide a soecific descriotion of how the deficiencv shall be
corrected

c. Soecifv the date of imolem on of the corrective action

d. ldentifv who will be responsibl for correction and who will be
responsible for on-goinq compliance.

2) DHCS shall provide written approval of the CAP to the Contractor
with a copv to the subcontracted DMC provider that provided the
service. lf DHCS does not approve the CAP, DHCS will provide
quidance on the deficient areas and request an updated CAP from
the Contractor with a copv to the provider.

The entifu subcontracted DMG o der that nrovided the services
shall submit an updated CAP to the DMGM Unit within 30 davs of
notification. lf the subcontracted DMG provider that provided the
services does not submit a GAP, or does not implement the
aooroved CAP orovisions withi the desionated timeline. then
DHCS mav withhold funds from the Contractor until the entitv that
provided the services is in compliance with Exhibit A. Attachment
l. Part l. Section 4(d.l(Pl. DHCS shall inform the Contractor when
funds will be withheld

s) Contractor must monitor and attest compliance and/or completion bv
oroviders with CAP reouirements detailed in Section 4. Paraqraph
(AX2Xc) of this Exhibit as required bv anv DMCM review. Contractor
shall attest to DHCS. usinq the form developed bv DHCS. that the
requirements in the GAP have been completed bv the Contractor and/or
the provider. Submission of DHGS Form 8049, as identified in this
section. bv Contractor must be accomplished within the timeline
specified in the approved GAP. as noted bv DHCS.

2. DHCS Postservice Postpayment Utilization Reviews

a) After the DMC services have been rendered and paid, DHCS shallconduct
Postservice Postpayment (PSPP) Utilization Reviews of the subcontracted
DMC providers to determine whether the DMC services were provided in
accordance with Tille 22, Section 51341.1 . Any claimed DMC service may
be reviewed for compliance with all applicable standards, regulations, and
program coverage after services are rendered and the claim is paid.

b) DHCS shall issue the PSPP report to the Contractor with a copy to any

Page 7 ot 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

subcontracted DMC provider. The Contractor shall be responsible for
ensuring their subcontracted providers and county-run program's deficiencies
are remediated pursuant to S€€tion€J-and+ Section 4(AX2Xcl(il(1 and 2l
herein. The Contractor shall attest the deficiencies have been remediated
and are complete, pursuant to Section 4(A), Paragraph 2(c), herein.

c) DHCS shall take appropriate steps in accordance with Title 22, CCR,
Section 51341.1 , to recover payments made if subsequent investigation
uncovers evidence that the claim(s) should not have been paid or that DMC
services have been improperly utilized, and/or shall take the corrective
action as appropriate. lf programmatic or fiscal deficiencies are identified,
the provider shall be required to submit a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) to
the Contractor for review and approval prior to submission to DHCS for final
approval.

Pursuant to Title 22, CCR, Section 51341.1(o), all deficiencies identified by
the PSPP review, whether or not a recovery of funds results, shall be
corrected and the Contractor shall submit
a Contractor-approved CAP to the PSPP Unit within 60 days of the date of
the PSPP report.

1) The plen CAP shall:

a. Address each demand for recovery of payment and/orprogrammatic
deficiency

b. Provide a specific description of how the deficiency shallbe
corrected

c. Specify the date of implementation of the corrective action

d. ldentify who will be responsible for correction and who willbe
responsible for ongoing compliance

2) DHCS will provide written approval of the CAP to the Contractor with a
copy to the provider. lf DHCS does not approve the CAP, DHCS will
provide guidance on the deficient areas and request an updated CAP
from the Contractor with a copy to the provider. The entity that provided
the services must submit an updated CAP to the DMC PSPP Unit within
30 days of notification.

lf the entity that provided the services does not submit a CAP, or does
not implement the approved CAP provisions within the designated
timeline, then DHCS may withhold funds from the Contractor until the
entity that provided the services is in compliance with Exhibit A,
Attachment l, Part l, Section 4(AX2). DHCS shall inform the Contractor
when funds will be withheld.

Page 8 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Prog ram S pecifications

d) Contractor and/or subcontractor may appeal DMC dispositions concerning
demands for recovery of payment and/or programmatic deficiencies of
specific claims. Such appeals shall be handled pursuant to Title 22, CCR,
Section 51341.1 (q). This section shall not apply to those grievances or
complaints arising from the financial findings of an audit or examination
made by or on behalf of DHCS pursuant to Exhibit B, Part lll, Section 2, of
this Contract.

e) DHCS shall monitor the subcontractor's compliance with PSPP utilization
review requirements in accordance with Trlle 22. Contractor shall also
monitor the subcontractor's compliance in accordance with Section 4,
Paragraph (AX2), of this Contract. The federal government may also review
the existence and effectiveness of DHCS's utilization review system.

f) Contractor shall implement and maintain compliance with the system of
review described in Title 22, Section 51341.1(k), for the purposes of
reviewing the utilization, quality, and appropriateness of covered services
and ensuring that all applicable Medi-Cal requirements are met.

g) Contractor shall assure that subcontractor sites keep a record of the
clients/patients being treated at each location. Contractor shall retain client
records for a minimum of th{€e lgg years after the completion of the final
settlement process. When an audit by the Federal Government or DHCS
has been started before the expiration of the thr€elg4-year period, the client
records shall be maintained until completion of the audit and the final
resolution of all issues as a result of the audit.

3. Training

a) Contractor shall ensure subcontractors complete reeeive training on the
requirements of Title 22 regulations and DMC program requirements at least
annually from either DHCS's SUD Program, Policy and Fiscal Division (SUD
PPFD) or the Contractor. Deeumented attendanee ef annual trainings effered by
DHCS sha.llsuffiee te meet the requirements ef this previsien, Contractor shall-
provide documentation of attendance at the annual traininq reB€+
cemplian€e to DHCS' e-m ai I add ress S U DCO U NTYRE PO RTS@d hcs. ca. gov
annually as part of the DHCS Contractor monitoring process.

b) Contractor may request additional technical assistance or training from SUD
PPFD on an ad hoc basis.

B. Contractor Monitoring

1. Program lntegrity: Contractor is responsible forensuring program integrity of its
services and its subcontracted providers through a system of oversight, which shall
include at least the following:

Page 9 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

a) Compliance with state and federal law and regulations, including, but notlimited
to,M&,42cFR433.51,42cFR431.800et.seq.,42CFR440.23o,
42 CFR 440.260,42 CFR 455 et. seq., 42 CFR 456 et. seq., 42 CFR 456.23,22
ccR 51490, 22 CCR 51490.1,n&SW,22CCR 51159, WIC 14124.1,
WIC 14124.2,42 CFR 438.320,42 CFR 438.416,42 CFR 438.10, and 42 CFR
438.206.

b) Contractor shall conduct, at least annually, a utilization review of DMC providers
to assure covered services are being appropriately rendered. The annualreview
must include an on-site visit of the service provider. Reports of the annual
review shall be provided to DHCS's Performance @-!trtgqlity Managemef,+
Branch at:

Substance Use Disorders Program, Policy and Fiscal Division,
Performa nce g4!-!1qtggdly nnanagemen+ Bra nch
Department of Health Care Services
PO Box 997413, MS-2621
Sacramento, CA 95899-741 3:

Or by secure, encrypted email to. SUDCountvReports@dhcs.ca.qov

Review reports shall be provided to DHCS within two weeks of completion by
the Contractor.

Technical assistance is available to counties from DHCS SUD PPFD

c) Contractor shall ensure that Drug and Alcohol Treatment Access Report
(DATAR) submissions, detailed in Part lll, Paragraph E of this contract are
complied with by all treatment providers and subcontracted treatment providers.
Contractor shall attest that each subcontracted provider is enrolled in DATAR at
the time of execution of the subcontract.

d) Contractor must monitor and attest compliance and/or completion by providers
with CAP requirements detailed in Section 4, Paragraph (A)(2)(c) of this Exhibit
as required by any PSPP review. Contractor shall attest to DHCS, using the
form developed by DHCS, that the requirements in the CAP have been
completed by the Contractor and/or the provider. Submission of DHCS Form
8049, as identified in this section, by Contractor must be accomplished within
the timeline specified in the approved CAP, as noted by DHCS.

e) Contractor shall certify the DMC claims submitted to DHCS represent
expenditures eligible for FFP and attest that the submitted claims have been
subject to review and verification process for accuracy and legitimacy (42 CFR
430.30, 433.32, and 433.51). Contractor shall not knowingly submit claims for
services rendered to any beneficiary after the beneficiary's date of death, orfrom
uncertified or decertified providers.

Page 10 ot32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

Deeumented attendanee ef any subeentraete*previder at the annual trainings

eemplianee with this seetien te DHCS annually as part ef the DHCS Ceunty
@

2. Monthly Monitoring

a) Contractor shall, che€k on a monthly basis. monitor the status of all providers-
m€nth]y to ensure @rng thev maintain active pe*ieipatren-
enrollment in the DMC program. Any subcontracted provider that surrenders its
certification or closes its facility must be reported by the Contractor to DHCS'_
Provider Enrollment Division at@
DHCSDMGREGERT@dhcs.ca.qov within Sse five business days of notification
or discovery.

b) During the monthly status check, the Contractor shall monitor for a triggering
recertification event (change in ownership, change in scope of services,
remodeling of facility, or change in location) and report any triggering events to
DHCS'@ provider Enrollment Division at
DHGSDMCREGERT@dhcs.ca.qov within hrle five business days of notification
or discovery.

3. Program Complaints

a) All complaints received by Contractor regarding a DMC-certified facility shall be
fonryarded to the SUD Compliance Division, Complaints Unit within two business
days of receipt as follows:

DMC Complaints are to be submitted to
Department of Health Care Services
Substance Use Disorder Services
P.O. Box 997413
MS# 2601
Sacramento, CA 95899-741 3

Fax form to: (916) 440-5094
Call the Hotline Phone Toll-Free: (800) 822-6222
Email to Fraud@dhcs.ca.oov

Complaints for Residential Adult Alcoholism or Drug Abuse Recovery or
Treatment Facilities may also be made by telephoning the appropriate

Page 11 ot 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 Ai01

Exhibit A, Attachment I Ai
Program Specifications

licensing branch listed below

SUD Compliance Division

Public Number: (916) 322-2911
Toll Free Number: (877) 685-8333

The Complaint Form is available and can be submitted online at
http://www. d hcs. ca. qov/i nd ivid ua ls/Pages/Sud-Cqmplahts-aspx.

b) Contractor shall be responsible for investigating complaints and providing the
results of all investigations to DHCS+-e-mail+ddress by secure, encrypted
e-mail to: SUDCountvReports@dhcs.ca.qov within two business days of
completion.

4. Record Retention

a) Contractor shall include instructions on record retention in any subcontract with
providers and mandate all providers to keep and maintain records for each
service rendered, to whom it was rendered, and the date of service, pursuantto
W&l Code, Section 14124.1 and 42 CFR Seetien 433,32' and 22 CCR Seetien
51341J.

5. Subcontract Termination

a) Contractor shall notify their€s€rgned DHCS'
Prooram Supoort and Grants Manaqement Section by email at:
DHCSMPF@dhcs.ca.qov t+rcugh-e-meil of the termination of any contract with
a certified subcontracted provider, and the basis for termination of the contract,
within twe five business days.

6. Corrective Action Plan

a) lf the Contractor fails to ensure any of the foregoing oversight through an
adequate system of monitoring, utilization review, and fiscal and programmatic
controls, DHCS may request a CAP from the Contractor to address these
deficiencies and a timeline for implementation. Failure to submit a CAP or
adhere to the provisions in the CAP may result in a withholding of funds
allocated to Contractor for the provision of services, and/or termination of this
Contract for cause.

b) Failure to comply with monitoring requirements shall result in

DHCS shall issue a report to Contractor after conducting monitoring,
utilization, or fiscal auditing reviews of the Contractor. When the DHCS
report identifies non-compliant services or processes, it shall require a

Page 12 oI 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Prog ram S pecifications

CAP. Contractor shall submit a CAP to DHCS within the timeframes
required by DHCS.

1) The CAP shall include

a. A statement of the deficiency

b. A list of action steps to be taken to correct the deficiency

c. Target date for implementation of each corrective action

d. Who will be responsible for correction and ongoing compliance

il. DHCS will provide written approval of the CAP to the Contractor. lf DHCS
does not approve the CAP submitted by the Contractor, DHCS willprovide
guidance on the deficient areas and request an updated CAP from the
Contractor with a new deadline for submission.

lf the Contractor does not submit a CAP, or does not implement the
approved CAP provisions within the designated timeline, DHCS may
withhold funds until the Contractor is in compliance. DHCS shall inform the
Contractor 30 calendar days in advance of when funds will be withheld.

Section 5: lnvestiqations and Confidentialitv of Administrative Actions

A. Contractor acknowledges that if a DMC provider is under investigation by DHCS or any
other state, local, or federal law enforcement agency for fraud or abuse, DHCS may
temporarily suspend the provider from the DMC program, pursuant to W&l Code,
Section 14043.36(a). lnformation about a provider's administrative sanction status is
confidential until such time as the action is either completed or resolved. DHCS may
also issue a Payment Suspension to a provider pursuant to W&l Code, Section
14107.11 and 42 CFR Section 455.23. Contractor is to withhold payments from a DMC
provider during the time a Payment Suspension is in effect.

Contractor shall execute the Confidentiality Agreement, attached as Document 5A.
The Confidentiality Agreement permits DHCS to communicate with Contractor
concerning subcontracted providers that are subject to administrative sanctions.

ilt

Page 13 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

Part ll - General

A. Additional Contract Restrictions

This Contract is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted
by the Congress, or any statute enacted by the Congress, which may affect the
provisions, terms, or funding of this Contract in any manner.

B. Nullification of this Contract

The parties agree that if the Contractor fails to comply with the provisions of W&l Code
Section 14124.24, all areas related to the DMC Treatment Program SUD services of
this Contract shall be null and void.

C. No Unlawful Use or Unlawful Use Messages Regarding Drugs

Contractor agrees that information produced through these funds, and which pertains
to drug- and alcohol-related programs, shall contain a clearly written statement that
there shall be no unlawful use of drugs or alcohol associated with the program.
Additionally, no aspect of a drug- and alcohol-related program shall include any
message on the responsible use, if the use is unlawful, of drugs or alcohol (HSC
Section 1 1999-1 1999.3). By signing this Contract, Contractor agrees that it will
enforce, and will require its subcontractors to enforce, these requirements.

D. Noncompliance with Reporting Requirements

Contractor agrees that DHCS has the right to withhold payments until Contractor has
submitted any required data and reports to DHCS, as identified in Exhibit A,
Attachment l, Part lll - Reporting Requirements, or as identified in Document 1F(a),
Reporting Requirements Matrix for Counties.

E. Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996

lf any of the work performed under this Contract is subject to HIPAA, Contractor shall
perform the work in compliance with all applicable provisions of HIPAA. As identified in

Exhibit F, DHCS and the Contractor shall cooperate to assure mutual agreement as to
those transactions between them, to which this provision applies. Refer to Exhibit F for
additional information.

1. Trading Partner Requirements

a) No Changes. Contractor hereby agrees that for the personal health information
(lnformation), it will not change any definition, data condition or use of a data
element or segment as proscribed in the Federal HHS Transaction Standard
Regulation (45 CFR 162.915 (a))

Page 14 ot 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Prog ram S pecifications

b) No Additions. Contractor hereby agrees that for the lnformation, it will notadd
any data elements or segments to the maximum data set as proscribed in the
HHS Transaction Standard Regulation (45 CFR 162.915 (b)).

c) No Unauthorized Uses. Contractor hereby agrees that for the lnformation, itwill
not use any code or data elements that either are marked "not used" in the HHS
Transaction's lmplementation specification or are not in the HHS Transaction
Standard's implementation specifications (45 CFR 162.915 (c)).

d) No Changes to Meaning or lntent. Contractor hereby agrees that for the
lnformation, it will not change the meaning or intent of any of the HHS
Transaction Standard's implementation specification (45 CFR 162.915 (d))

2. Concurrence for Test Modifications to HHS Transaction Standards

Contractor agrees and understands that there exists the possibility that DHCS or
others may request an extension from the uses of a standard in the HHS
Transaction Standards. lf this occurs, Contractor agrees that it will participate in
such test modifications.

3. Adequate Testing

Contractor is responsible to adequately test all business rules appropriate to their
types and specialties. lf the Contractor is acting as a clearinghouse for enrolled
providers, Contractor has obligations to adequately test all business rules
appropriate to each and every provider type and specialty for which they provide
clearinghouse services.

4. Deficiencies

Contractor agrees to correct transactions, errors, or deficiencies identified by
DHCS, and transactions errors or deficiencies identified by an enrolled provider if
the Contractor is acting as a clearinghouse for that provider. When County is a
clearinghouse, Contractor agrees to properly communicate deficiencies and other
pertinent information regarding electronic transactions to enrolled providers for
which they provide clearinghouse services.

5. Code Set Retention

Both parties understand and agree to keep open code sets being processed or
used in this Contract for at least the current billing period or any appeal period,
whichever is longer.

6. Data Transmission Log

Both parties shall establish and maintain a Data Transmission Log, which shall

Page 15 ot 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

record any and all Data Transmissions taking place between the Parties during the
term of this Contract. Each party will take necessary and reasonable steps to
ensure that such Data Transmission Logs constitute a current, accurate, complete,
and unaltered record of any and all Data Transmissions between the parties, and
shall be retained by each party for no less lhan 24 months following the date of the
Data Transmission. The Data Transmission Log may be maintained on computer
media or other suitable means provided that, if it is necessary to do so, the
information contained in the Data Transmission Log may be retrieved in a timely
manner and presented in readable form.

F. Counselor Certification

Any counselor or registrant providing intake, assessment of need for services,
treatment or recovery planning, individual or group counseling to participants, patients,
or residents in a DHCS-licensed or -certified program is required to be registered or
certified as defined in Title 9, Division 4, Chapter 8 (Document 3H).

G. Cultural and Linguistic Proficiency

To ensure equal access to quality care by diverse populations, each service provider
receiving funds from this Contract shall adopt the Federal Office of Minority Health
Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Service (CLAS) national standards (Document
3v).

L H. Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000

Contractor and its subcontractors that provide services covered by this Contract shall
comply with the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2OO0 (22 USC 7104(g)), as
amended by section 1702 of Pub. L. 112-239.

++ l= Tribal Communities and Organizations

Contractor shall regularly assess (e.9. review population information available through
Census, compare to information obtained in CaIOMS Treatment to determine whether
population is being reached, survey Tribal representatives for insight in potential
barriers) the substance use service needs of the American lndian/Alaskan Native
(A|/AN) population within the County geographic area and shall engage in regular and
meaningful consultation and collaboration with elected officials of the tribe, Rancheria,
or their designee for the purpose of identifying issues/barriers to service delivery and
improvement of the quality, effectiveness and accessibility of services available to
AI/NA communities within the County.

J. Perinatal Practice Guidelines

Contractor will follow the quidelines in Document 1G incoroorated by this
reference. "Perinatal Practice Guidelines." in develooinq and implementinq
oerinatal treatment and recoverv oroorams funded under this Exhibit. until such

Page 16 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I Ai
Program Specifications

time as new Perinatal Practice Guidelines are established and adooted. No
formal amendment of this Contract is reouired for new quidelines to be
incoroorated into this Contract.

l= K. Youth Treatment Guidelines

Contractor will follow the guidelines in Document 1V, incorporated by this reference,
"Youth Treatment Guidelines," in developing and implementing youth treatment
programs funded under this Exhibit, until such time as new Youth Treatment Guidelines
are established and adopted. No formal amendment of this Contract is required for
new guidelines to be incorporated into this Contract.

+ L. Nondiscrimination in Employment and Services

By signing this Contract, Contractor certifies that under the laws of the United States
and the State of California, incorporated into this Contract by reference and made a
part hereof as if set forth in full, Contractor will not unlawfully discriminate against any
person.

l( M. Federal Law Requirements

1. Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 2000d, as amended, prohibiting
discrimination based on race, color, or national origin in federally funded programs.

2. Title Vlll of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 USC 3601 et seq.) prohibiting
discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or
national origin in the sale or rental of housing.

3. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (45 CFR Part 90), as amended (42 USC Sections
6101 - 6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age.

4. Age Discrimination in Employment Act (29 CFR Part 1625).

5. Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act (29 CFR Part 1630) prohibiting
discrimination against the disabled in employment.

6. Title ll of the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 CFR Part 35) prohibiting
discrimination against the disabled by public entities.

7. Title lll of the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 CFR Part 36) regarding access

8. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC Section 794),
prohibiting discrimination on the basis of individuals with disabilities.

9. Executive Order 11246,42 USC 2000e et seq., and 41CFR Part 60 regarding
nondiscrimination in employment under federal contracts and construction contracts
greater than $10,000 funded by federal financial assistance.

Page 17 ot32



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit A, Attachment I Al
Prog ram S pecifications

10. Executive Order 13166 (67 FR 41455) to improve access to federal servicesfor
those with limited English proficiency.

1 1 . The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as amended, relating to
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse

12. Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records (42 CFR Part2,
Subparts A - E).

t N. State Law Requirements

1. Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code Section 12900 et seq.) and
the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (2 CCR 7285.0 et seq.).

2. Title 2, Division 3, Article 9.5 of the Government Code, commencing with Section
1 1 135.

3. Title 9, Division 4, Chapter 8 of the CCR, commencing with Section13000

4. No state, federal, or County Realignment funds shall be used by the Contractor or
its subcontractors for sectarian worship, instruction, or proselytization. No state
funds shall be used by the Contractor or its subcontractors to provide direct,
immediate, or substantial support to any religious activity.

5. Noncompliance with the requirements of nondiscrimination in services shall
constitute grounds for DHCS to withhold payments under this Contract or terminate
all, or any type, of funding provided hereunder.

A/l= O. Additional Contract Restrictions

This Contract is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or conditionsenacted
by the federal or state governments that affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this
Contract in any manner.

Al= P. lnformation Access for lndividuals with Limited English Proficiency

1. Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Dymally-Alatorre
Bilingual Services Act (Government Code sections 7290-7299.8) regarding access
to materials that explain services available to the public as well as providing
language interpretation services.

2. Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of Section 1557 of the
Affordable Care Act (45 CFR Part 92), including, but not limited to, 45 CFR 92.201,
when providing access to:

a) Materials explaining services available to the public

Page 18 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I Al
Program Specifications

b) Language assistance

c) Language interpreter and translation services

d) Video remote language interpreting services

+ Q. Subcontract Provisions

Contractor shall include the foregoing Part ll general provisions in all of its
subcontracts.

P R. Participation of County Behavioral Health Director's Association of California.

The County Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Program Administrator shall participate and
represent the County in meetings of the County Behavioral Health Director's
Association of California for the purposes of representing the counties in their
relationship with DHCS with respect to policies, standards, and administration for
alcohol and other drug abuse services.

The County AOD Program Administrator shall attend any special meetings called by
the Director of DHCS. Participation and representation shall also be provided by the
County Behavioral Health Director's Association of California.

Page 19 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 A01

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

Part lll- Reporting Requirements

Contractor agrees that DHCS has the right to withhold payments until Contractor submits
any required data and reports to DHCS, as identified in this Exhibit A, Attachment I or as
identified in Document 1F (a), Reporting Requirement Matrix for Counties.

A. Year-End Cost Settlement Reports

Pursuant to W&l Code, Section 14124.24 (g) (1), Contractor shall submit to DHCS, on
November 1 of each year, the following year-end cost settlement documents, for itself
and its subcontracted providers, by paper or electronic format, as prescribed by
DHCS 

' 
submissien fer the

1. Document 2P, County Certification Year-End Claim for Reimbursement

2. Document 2P(a), Drug Medi-Cal Provider Cost Report ExcelWorkbook

B. Drug Medi-Cal Claims and Reports

Contractors or providers that bill DHCS or the County for services identified in Section
51 516.1 of Title 22 shall submit claims in accordance with DHCS's DMC Provider
Billing Manual (Document 2G).

Contractors and subcontractors that provide DMC services shall be responsible for
verifying the Medi-Cal eligibility of each client for each month of service prior to billing
for DMC services to that client for that month. Medi-Cal eligibility verification sh€u.ld
shall be performed prior to rendering service, in accordance with and as described in

DHCS' DMC Provider Billing Manual. Options for verifying the eligibility of a Medi-Cal
beneficiary are described in the DHCS' DMC Provider Billing Manual.

Claims for DMC reimbursement shall include only those services covered under Title
22, Section 51341.1(c-d) and administrative charges that are allowed under W&l Code,
Sections 14132.44 and 14132.47.

1. Contractor shall submit the "Certified Expenditure" form, reflecting either: (1) the
approved amount of the 837P claim file, after the claims have been adjudicated or
(2) the claimed amount identified on the 837P claim file, which could account for
both approved and denied claims. Contractor shall submit the SHCS Drug Medi-
Cal Certification Form DHCS Form DHCS 1OO224A (Document 4D) to DHCS for
each 837P transaction approved for reimbursement of the federal Medicaid funds.

2. DMC service claims shall be submitted electronically in a Health lnsurance
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) compliant format (837P). All adjudicated
claim information must be retrieved by the Contractor via an 835 HIPAA compliant
format (Health Care Claim PaymenUAdvice).

Page 20 oI 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit A, Attachment I Al
Program Specifications

3. The following forms shall be prepared as needed and retained by the providerfor
review by DHCS:
a) Multiple Billing Override Certification (MC 6700), Document 2K

b) Good Cause Certification (6065A), Document 2L(a)

c) Good Cause Certification (60658), Document 2L(b)

ln the absence of good cause documented on the Good Cause Certification
(6065Aor6065B)form,claimsthatarenotsubmittedwithinW
ef the nenth 6 months of the date of service shall be denied. The existence of
good cause shall be determined by DHCS in accordance with Title 22, CCR,
Sections 51008 and 51008.5.

4. Certified Public Expenditure County Administration

Separate from direct service claims as identified in this section above, €oun+
Contractor may submit an invoice for administrative costs for administering the
DMC program on a quarterly basis. The form requesting reimbursement shall be
submitted to DHCS.

5. lf, while completing the Qualitv Assurance and Utilization Review (QAUR) en+
eua*$+ssurcnee requirements of this Exhibit A, Attachment l, Part l, Section 4,
any of the Contractor's skilled professional medical and personnel directly
supporting staff meet the criteria set forth in 42 CFR 432.50(dxl ), then the
Contractor shall submit a written request that specifically demonstrates how the
skilled professional medical personnel and directly supporting staff meet all of the
applicable criteria set forth in 42 C.F.R. 432.50(d)(1) and outline the duties they will
perform to assist DHCS, or DHCS'skilled professional medical personnel, in
activities that are directly related to the administration of the DMC Program. DHCS
shall respond to the Contractor's written request within 20 days with either a written
agreement pursuant to 42 CFR 432.50(d) (2) approving the request, or a written
explanation as to why DHCS does not agree that the Contractor's skilled
professional medical personnel and directly supporting staff do not meet the criteria
set forth in 42 CFR 432.50(dX1).

C. California Outcomes Measurement System (CalOMS) for Treatment (CalOMS-Tx)

The CaIOMS-Tx Business Rules and Requirements are

1. Contractor shall contract with a software vendor that complies with the CaIOMS-Tx
data collection system requirements for submission of CaIOMS-Tx data. A
Business Associate Agreement (BAA) shall be established between the Contractor
and the software vendor. The BAA shall state that DHCS is allowed to return the
processed CaIOMS-Tx data to the vendor that supplied the data to DHCS.

2. Contractor shall conduct information technology (lT) systems testing and pass

Page 21 ot 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

DHCS certification testing before commencing submission of CaIOMS-Tx data. lf
the Contractor subcontracts with vendor for lT services, Contractor is responsible
for ensuring that the subcontracted lT system is tested and certified by DHCS prior
to submitting CaIOMS-Tx data. lf Contractor changes or modifies the CaIOMS-Tx
lT system, then Contractor shall retest and pass DHCS re-certification prior to
submitting data from a new or modified system.

3. Electronic submission of CaIOMS-Tx data shall be submitted by Contractorwithin
45 days from the end of the last day of the report month.

4. Contractor shall comply with data collection and reporting requirements established
by the DHCS CaIOMS-Tx Data Collection Guide (Document 3J) and all former
Department of Alcohol and Drug Programs Bulletins and DHCS lnformation Notices
relevant to CaIOMS-Tx data collection.

5. Contractor shall submit CaIOMS-Tx admission, discharge, annual update,
resubmissions of records containing errors or in need of correction, and "providerno
activity" report records in an electronic format approved by DHCS.

6. Contractor shall comply with the CaIOMS-Tx Data Compliance Standards
established by DHCS identified in Document 35 for reporting data content, data
quality, data completeness, reporting frequency, reporting deadlines, and reporting
method.

7. Contractor shall participate in CaIOMS-Tx informational meetings, trainings, and
conference calls.

8. Contractor shall implement and maintain a system for collecting and electronically
submitting CaIOMS-Tx data.

9. Contractor shall meet the requirements as identified in Exhibit F, Privacyand
lnformation Security Provisions and Exhibit F, Attachment I - Social Security
Adm in istration Agreement.

D. CaIOMS-Tx General lnformation

1. lf the Contractor experiences system or service failure or otherextraordinary
circumstances of GaIOMS-Tx that affects its ability to tirne{y submit timelv
CaIOMS-Tx data, . the
Contractor shall report the problem in writing by secure, encrypted email to DHCS
at: ley-e-maitat I TServi ce Desk@d h cs. ca. q ov befo re the esta b I i s hed d ata
submission deadlines.

2. lf the Contractor is unable to submit GaIOMS-Tx data due to svstem orservice
failure or other extraordinary circumstance. written notice shall be submitted
prior to the data submission deadline at: SUDcalomssupport@dhcs.ca.qov.
The written notice shall include a remediation plan that is subject to review and

Page 22 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I Al
Prog ram Specifications

approval by DHCS. DHCS may, at its sole discretion, grant a grace period of up to
60 days for the Contractor to resolve the problem.

Z 3. lf DHCS experiences system or service failure, an extension equal to the numberof
business days will be granted for Contractor data submission.

+ 4. Contractor shall comply with the treatment data quality standards established by
DHCS. Failure to meet these standards on an ongoing basis may result in
withholding DMC funds.

+ 5. lf the Contractor submits data after the established deadlines, due to a delay or
problem, Contractor is still responsible for collecting and reporting data from time of
delay or problem.

E. Drug and Alcohol Treatment Access Report (DATAR)

The DATAR business rules and requirements are:

1. The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that the Contractor-operated
treatment services and all treatment providers with whom Contractor makes a
contract or otherwise pays for the services, submit a monthly DATAR report in an
electronic copy format as provided by DHCS.

ln instanees where the Centraeter maintains' either direetly er indireetly; a eentral
i

2. Contractor shall ensure that all DATAR reports are submitted by either Contractor-
operated treatment seF*i€es providers andlgl by each subcontracted treatment
provider to DHCS by the 1Oth of the month following the report activity month.

3. The Contractor shall ensure that treatment providers who reach or exceed 90
oercent of their dedicated caoacitv report this information to
DHGSOWPS@dhcs.ca.qov within seven davs of reachinq capacitv.

g 4. Contractor shall ensure that all applicable providers are enrolled in DHCS' web-
based DATARWeb program for submission of data, accessible on the DHCS
website when executing the subcontract.

+ 5. lf the Contractor or its subcontractor experiences system or service failure or other
extraordinary circumstances that affect its ability to timely submit a monthly DATAR
report, and/or to meet data compliance requirements, the Contractor shall reportthe
problem in writing by secure, encrypted email to: DHCS by e-mail at
lTServiceDesk@dhcs.ca.qov before the established data submission deadlines.
Thewrittennoticeshallincludea@CAPthatissubjectto

Page 23 ot 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

review and approval by DHCS. A grace period of up to 60 days may be granted, at
DHCS' sole discretion, for the Contractor to resolve the problem before DMC
payments are withheld (See Exhibit B, Part ll, Section 2).

+ 6. lf DHCS experiences system or service failure, no penalties will be assessed to
Contractor for late data submission.

& 7. The Contractor shall be considered compliant if a minimum of 957o of required
DATAR reports from the Contractor's treatment providers are received by thedue
date.

F. Failure to meet required reporting requirements shall result in

1. DHCS shall issue a Notice of Deficiency (Deficiencies) to Contractor regarding
specified providers with a deadline to submit the required data and a request for a
CAP to ensure timely reporting in the future. DHCS will approve or reject the CAP
or request revisions to the CAP, which shall be resubmitted to DHCS within 30
days.

2. lf the Contractor has not ensured compliance with the data submission or CAP
request within the designated timeline, then DHCS may withhold funds until alldata
is submitted. DHCS shall inform the Contractor 30 calendar days in advance of
when funds will be withheld.

Page 24 ol 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit A, Attachment I Al
Prog ram S pecifications

Part lV - Definitions

Section 1 - General Definitions

The words and terms of this Contract are intended to have their usual meanings unless a
particular or more limited meaning is associated with their usage pursuant to Division
10.5 of HSC, Section 11750 et seq., and Title g, CCR, Section 9000 et seq.

A. "Available Capacity" means the total number of units of service (bed days, hours,
slots, etc.) that a Contractor actually makes available in the current fiscalyear.

B. "Contractor" means the county identified in the Standard Agreement or authorized by
the County Board of Supervisors to administer SUD programs.

G. "Corrective Action Plan" (CAP)" means the written plan of action document which
the Contractor or its subcontracted service provider develops and submits to DHCS to
address or correct a deficiency or process that is non-compliant with laws, regulations
or standards.

D. "County" means the county in which the Contractor physically provides covered
SUD treatment services.

E. "County Realignment Funds" means Behavioral Health Subaccount funds received
by the County as per Government Code Section 30025.

F. "Days" means calendar days, unless otherwise specified.

G. "Dedicated Capacitv" means the historicallv calculated service capacitv. bv modalitv.
adiusted for the proiected expansion or reduction in services. which the Contractor
aqrees to make available to provide SABG services to persons eliqible for
Contractor's seryices.

e H. "Final Settlement" means permanent settlement of the Contractor's actualallowable
costs or expenditures as determined at the time of audit, which shall be completed
within three years of the date the year-end cost settlement report was accepted for
interim settlement by the DHCS. lf the audit is not completed within three years, the
interim settlement shall be considered as the finalsettlement.

H= L "lnterim Settlement" means temporary settlement of actual allowable costs or
expenditures reflected in the Contractor's year-end cost settlement report.

l= J. "Key points of contact" means common points of access to substance use treatment
services from the county, including but not limited to the county's beneficiary problem
resolution process, county owned or operated or contract hospitals, and any other
central access locations established by the county.

Page 25 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

+ [ "Maximum Payable" means the encumbered amount reflected on the Standard
Agreement of this Contract and supported by Exhibit B, Attachment l.

l( L. "Modality" means those necessary overall general service activities to provide SUD
services as described in Division 10.5 of the HSC.

L M. "Performance" means providing the dedicated capacity in accordance with Exhibit B,

Attachment l, and abiding by the terms of this Exhibit, including all applicable stateand
federal statutes, regulations, and standards, including Alcohol and/or Other Drug
Certification Standards (Document 1P), in expending funds for the provision of
substance use services hereunder.

Sil= N. "Revenue" means Contractor's income from sources other than DHCS allocation

Al= Q "Service Area" means the geographical area under Contractor's jurisdiction

g != "Service Element" is the specific type of service performed within the moregeneral
service modalities.

g Q "State" means the Department of Health Care Services or DHCS.

+ R. "Utilization" means the total actual units of service used by clients and participants

Section 2 - Definitions Specific to Drug Medi-Gal

The words and terms of this Contract are intended to have their usual meaning unless a
specific or more limited meaning is associated with their usage pursuant to the HSC, CCR
Title 9, and/or CCR Title 22. Definilions of covered treatment modalities and services are
found in Title 22 (Document 2C) and are incorporated by this reference.

A. "Administrative Costs" means the Contractor's actual direct costs, as recorded in the
Contractor's financial records and supported by source documentation, to administer
the program or an activity to provide service to the DMC program. Administrative costs
do not include the cost of treatment or other direct services to the beneficiary.
Administrative costs may include, but are not limited to, the cost of training,
programmatic and financial audit reviews, and activities related to billing.
Administrative costs may include Contractor's overhead per the approved indirect cost
rate proposal pursuant to OMB Circular A-87 and the State Controller's Office
Handbook of Cost Plan Procedures.

B. "Authorization" is the approval process for DMC Services prior to the submission of a
DMC claim.

G. "Beneficiary" means a person who: (a) has been determined eligible for Medi-Cal;
(b) is not institutionalized; (c) has a substance-related disorder per the "Diagnostic and
Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders lV (DSM)', or DSM V criteria; and (d) meets the
admission criteria to receive DMC covered services.

Page 26 ot 32



Coun$ of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Program Specifications

D. "Gertified Provider" means a SUD clinic location that has received certification to be
reimbursed as a DMC clinic by the DHCS to provide services as described in Title 22,
California Code of Regulations, Section 51341.1.

E. "Covered Services" means those DMC services authorized by Title XIX or Title XXlof
the Social Security Act, Title 22 Section 51341.1, W&l Code, Section 14124.24, and
California's Medicaid State Plan.

F. "Direct Provider Contract" means a contract established between the DHCS and a
DMC certified provider entered into pursuant to this Agreement for the provision of
DMC services.

G. "Drug Medi-Cal Program" means the state system wherein beneficiaries receive
covered services from DMC-certified SUD treatment providers.

H. "Drug Medi-Gal Termination of Certification" means the provider is no longer
certified to participate in the DMC program upon DHCS issuance of a DMC certification
termination notice.

l. "Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment Program (EPSDT)"
means the federally mandated Medicaid benefit that entitles full-scope Medi-Cal-
covered beneficiaries less than 21 years of age to receive any Medicaid service
necessary to correct or ameliorate a defect, mental illness, or other condition, such asa
substance-related disordert that is discovered during a health screening.

J. "Federal Financial Participation (FFP)" means the share of Federal Medicaidfunds
for reimbursement of DMC services.

K. "Medical Necessitlr" means those substance use treatment services that are
reasonable and necessary to protect life, prevent significant illness or disability, or
alleviate severe pain through the diagnosis and treatment of a disease, illness, orinjury
or in the case of EPSDT services that meet the criteria specified in Title 22, Sections
51303 and 51340.1.

L. "Minor Consent DMC Services" are those covered services that, pursuant to Family
Code Section 6929, may be provided to persons 12-20 years old without parental
consent.

M. "Narcotic Treatment Program" means an outpatient clinic licensed by DHCS to
provide narcotic replacement therapy directed at stabilization and rehabilitation of
persons who are opiate-addicted and have a substance use diagnosis.

N. "Payment Suspension" means the DMC certified provider has been issued a notice
pursuant to W&l Code, Section 14107.11 and is not authorized to receive payments
after the payment suspension date for DMC services, regardless of when the service
was provided.

Page 27 of32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I Al
Program Specifications

O. "Perinatal DMC Selvices" means covered services as well as mother/child habilitative
and rehabilitative services, services access (i.e., provision or arrangement of
transportation to and from medically necessary treatment), education to reduce harmful
effects of alcohol and drugs on the mother and fetus or infant, and coordination of
ancillary services (Title 22, Section 51341.1(c) (a)).

P. "Postpartum", as defined for DMC purposes, means the 60-day period beginning on
the last day of pregnancy, regardless of whether other conditions of eligibility are met.

Eligibility shall end on the last day of the calendar month in which the 60th dayoccurs.

Q. "Postservice Postpayment (PSPP) Utilization Review" means the review for
program compliance and medical necessity conducted by DHCS after service was
rendered and paid. DHCS may recover prior payments of federal and DHCS funds if
such review determines that the services did not comply with the applicable statutes,
regulations, or standards (CCR, Title 22, Section 51341.1 (k)).

R. "Postservice Preoavment Utilization Review" (referred to as Druo Medi-Cal
Monitorinq (DMGM) Review)" means the review for proqram compliance and
or inteoritv conducted bv DHCS. DHCS will nrovide technical assistance for
areas identified that did not complv the aonlicable statutes- reoulations-
or standards (CCR. Title 22. Section 51159(b).

R S. "Projected Units of Service" means the number of reimbursable DMC units of service,
based on historical data and current capacity, the Contractor expects to provide on an
annual basis.

g t "Provider Gertification" means the provider must be certified by the Provider
Enrollment Division of DHCS in order to participate in the Medi-Cal program.

+ U. "Provider of DMG Seryices" means any person or entity that provides direct
substance use treatment services and has been certified by the DHCS in accordance
with CCR, Title22, Section 51000.30-Medi-Cal ProviderApplication for Enrollment,
Continued Enrollment, or Enrollment at a New, Additional, or Change in Location.

t+ V. "Re-certification" means the process by which the DMC certified clinic program is
required to submit an application and specified documentation, as determined by
DHCS, to remain eligible to participate in and be reimbursed in through the DMC
program. Re-certification shall occur no less than every five years from the date of
previous DMC certification or re-certification.

\A W. "Statewide Maximum Allowances (SMA)" means the maximum amountauthorized
to be paid by DMC for each covered unit of service for outpatient drug free, intensive
outpatient treatment, perinatal residential, and Naltrexone treatment services. While
the rates are approved by DHCS, they are subject to change through the regulation
process. The SMA for FY 2017-18 is listed in the "Unit of Service" table in Exhibit B,
Part2, Section 2.

Page 28 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I Ai
Prog ram S pecifications

IAA X. "Subcontract" means an agreement between the Contractor and its subcontractors
A subcontractor shall not delegate its obligation to provide covered services or
otherwise subcontract for the provision of direct patienUclient services.

)C Y. "Subcontractor" means an individual or entity that is DMC certified and has entered
into an agreement with the Contractor to be a provider of covered services. lt may also
mean a vendor who has entered into a procurement agreement with the Contractor to
provide any of the administrative functions related to fulfilling the Contractor's
obligations under the terms of this Exhibit A, Attachment l.

Y Z. "Temporary Suspension" means the provider is temporarily suspended from
participating in the DMC program as authorized by W&l Code, Section 14043.36(a)
The provider cannot bill for DMC services from the effective date of the temporary
suspension.

Page 29 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit A, Attachment I Al
Prog ram S pecifications

DOGUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The fellewing deeuments are hereby ineerperated by referenee inte the Ceunty eentraet
theugh they may net be physieally attaehed te the eentraet but will be issued in a CD under
sepa+ag-eeve+
All DMG documents incorporated bv reference into this contract mav not be phvsicallv
attached to the contract. but can be found at DHCS'website:
https ://www.d hcs.ca.qov/provqovparUPaqes/DMC-Contracts.aspx .

Document 1F(a): Reporting Requirement Matrix - County Submission Requirements for
the Department of Health Care Services

Document 1G: Perinatal Practice Guidelines FY 2018-19

htts,//www, d h es, ea, e ev/i nd ividua l€/Deeurnents/Peri n atal P raetiee
ffi

Document 1K: Drug and Alcohol Treatment Access Report (DATAR) User Manual

Document 1P Alcohol and/or Other Drug Program Certification Standards
(Mareh 15, 200'1 Mav 1 .2017\

dads+df

Document 1V: Youth Treatment Guidelines

http#www:dhes:ca:qo
lines+df

Document 2A: Sobky v. Smoley, Judgment, Signed February 1,1995

Tllle 22, California Code of Regulations

httpi#eer:eal:ea

Document 2C

Document 2F(a): Minimum Quality Druo Treatment Standards for DMC

Page 30 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 A01

Exhibit A, Attachment I A1
Prog ram S pecifications

Document 2G: Drug Medi-Cal Billing Manual

httB ;//vrAJ'/w, d h es, ea, q

fd+

Document 2K:

Document 2L(a)',

Document 2L(b)'

Document 2P:

Document 2P(a)

Document 3G:

Document 3H

Multiple Billing Override Certification (MC 6700)

Good Cause Certification (60654)

Good Cause Certification (60658)

County Certification - Cost Report Year-End Claim for Reimbursement

Drug Medi-Cal Provider Cost Report Excel Workbook

California Code of Regulations, Title 9 - Rehabilitation and
Developmental Services, Division 4 - Department of Alcohol and Drug
Programs, Chapter 4 - Narcotic Treatment Programs

http ://www: €a I reqs : eom
https:#eev[westl

California Code of Regulations, Title 9 - Rehabilitation and
Developmental Services, Division 4 - Department of Alcohol and Drug
Programs, Chapter 8 - Certification of Alcohol and Other Drug
Counselors

http ://www: ea I reqs : eem
httBS#qevt{r/estlaw,

Document 3J: CaIOMS Treatment Data Collection Guide

en Cuide JAN%20201

Document 35: CaIOMS Treatment Data Compliance Standards

nee%2Ostandards

Non-Drug Medi-Cal and Drug Medi-Cal DHCS LocalAssistance
Funding Matrix

Document 3T:

Page 31 of32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Document 3V

Document 4A:

Document 4B:

Document 4D

Document 4E:

Document 4F

Exhibit A, Attachment I Al
P rog ram Specifications

Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS) National
Standards

https://www:thin keulffi

Drug Medi-Cal Claim Submission Certification - Coun$ Contracted
Provider - DHCS Form MC 100186 with lnstructions

Drug Medi-Cal Claim Submission Certification - County Operated
Provider - DHCS Form MC 100187 with lnstructions

Drug Medi-Cal Certification for Federal Reimbursement (DHCS
100224A.)

Treatment Standards for Substance Use Diagnosis: A Guide for
Services (Spring 2010)

Drug Medi-Cal (DMC) Services Quarterly Claim for Reimbursement of
County Administrative Expenses (Form #MC 5312)

Document5A: ConfidentialityAgreement

Page 32 oI 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit B Al
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

Part I - General Fiscal Provisions

Section 1 - General Fiscal Provisions

A. Fiscal Provisions

For services satisfactorily rendered, and upon receipt and approval of documentation
as identified in Exhibit A, Attachment l, Part lll, the Department of Health Care Services
(DHCS) agrees to compensate the Contractor for actual expenditures incurred in
accordance with the rates and/or allowable costs specified herein.

B. Use of State General Funds

Contractor may not use allocated Drug Medi-Cal (DMC) State General Funds to pay for
any non-Drug Medi-Cal services.

C. Funding Authorization

Contractor shall bear the financial risk in providing any substance use disorder services
covered by this Contract.

D. Availability of Funds

It is understood that, for the mutual benefit of both parties, this Contract may have been
written before ascertaining the availability of congressional appropriation of funds in
order to avoid program and fiscal delays that would occur if this Contract were not
executed until after that determination. ln this event, DHCS may amend the amount of
funding provided for in this Contract based on the actual congressional appropriation.

E. Subcontractor Funding Limitations

Contractor shall reimburse its subcontractors that receive a combination of DMC
funding and other federal or county realignment funding for the same service element
and location based on the subcontractor's actual costs in accordance with Medicaid
reimbursement requirements as specified in Title XIX or of the Social Security Act,
Section 51516.1 of California Code of Regulations Title 22, and the Medicaid state
plan. Payments at negotiated rates shall be settled to actual cost at year-end.

F. Budget Contingency Clause

It is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the current year and/or any subsequent
years covered under this Contract does not appropriate sufficient funds for the
program, this Contract shall be of no further force and effect. ln this event, DHCS shall
have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Contractor or to furnish any other

Page 1 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit B A1
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

considerations under this Contract and Contractor shall not be obligated to perform any
provisions of this Contract.

lf funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for purposes of
this program, DHCS shall solely have the option to either cancel this Contract with no
liability occurring to DHCS, or offer an amended contract to Contractor to reflect the
reduced amount.

G. Expense Allowability / Fiscal Documentation

1. lnvoices, received from a Contractor and accepted and/or submitted for payment by
DHCS, shall not be deemed evidence of allowable contract costs.

2. Contractor shall maintain for review and audit, and supply to DHCS upon request,
adequate documentation of all expenses claimed pursuant to this Contract to permit
a determination of expense allowability.

3. lf the allowability or appropriateness of an expense cannot be determined by DHCS
because invoice detail, fiscal records, or backup documentation is nonexistent or
inadequate according to generally accepted accounting principles, and generally
accepted governmental audit standards, all questionable costs may be disallowed
and payment may be withheld by DHCS. Upon receipt of adequate documentation
supporting a disallowed or questionable expense, reimbursement may resume for
the amount substantiated and deemed allowable.

4. Costs and/or expenses deemed unallowable shall not be reimbursed or, if
mistakenly reimbursed, those costs and/or expenses shall be subject to recovery by
DHCS pursuant to Title 22, CCR Section 51458.1.

H. Effective from the date of execution of this Contract, nothing in this Contract waives the
protections provided to Contractor under Section 36 of article Xlll of the California
Constitution ("Proposition 30"). Except where specifically stated in the terms of this
contract, Contractor's performance of any additional legal requirements, including, but
not limited, to court-ordered requirements and statutory or regulatory amendments, is
subject to Proposition 30's funding requirements.

Section 2 - General Fiscal Provisions - Druq Medi-Cal

A. Return of Unexpended Funds

Contractor assumes the total cost of providing covered services on the basis of the
payments delineated in this Exhibit B, Part ll. Any State General Funds or Federal
Medicaid funds paid to the Contractor, but not expended for DMC services shall be
returned to DHCS.

Page 2 of 15



Coun$ of lnyo
17-94074 p.l01

Exhibit B A1
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

B. Amendment or Cancellation Due to lnsufficient Appropriation

This Contract is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made available to
DHCS by the United States Government for the purpose of the DMC program. lt is
mutually agreed that if the Congress does not appropriate sufficient funds for this
program, DHCS solely has the option to void this Contract or to amend the Contract to
reflect any reduction of funds.

C. Exemptions

Exemptions to the provisions of ltem B above, of this Exhibit, may be granted by the
California Department of Finance provided that the Director of DHCS certifies in writing
that federal funds are available for the term of the Contract.

D. Allowable costs

Allowable costs, as used in Section 51516.1 of California Code of Regulations (CCR)
Tltle22 shall be determined in accordance with Title 42, Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR), Chapter lV, Subchapter B, Parts 405 and 413, and Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS), "Medicare Provider Reimbursement Manual (Publication
Number 15)," which can be obtained from the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services, or www.cms.hhs.qov . ln accordance with Welfare and lnstitutions (W&l)
Code, Sections 14132.44 and 14132.47, funds allocated to the Contractor for DMC
services, including funding for alcohol and other drug services for pregnant and
postpartum women pursuant to Title 22, Section 51341.1(c), may not be used as match
for targeted case management services or for DMC administrative activities.

Page 3 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit B A1
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

Part ll - Reimbursements

Section 1. General Reimbursement

A. Prompt Payment Clause

Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in, Government
Code Chapter 4.5, commencing with Section 927.

B. Amounts Payable

1. The amount payable under this Contract shall not exceed the amount identified on
the State of California Standard Agreement form STD 213_DHCS (Rev. 06/16).

2. Reimbursement shall be made for allowable expenses up to the amount annually
encumbered commensurate with the state fiscalyear in which services are
performed and/or goods are received.

3. The funds identified for the fiscal years covered by unCe+ this Gontract Seetient
w*nflc+h€€xhil0r+-are subject to change depending on the availability and amount
of funds appropriated by the Legislature and the Federal Government. The amount
of funds available for expenditure by the Contractor shall be limited to the amount
identified in the final allocations issued by DHCS for that fiscal year. Changes to
allocated funds will require written amendment to the Contract.

4. For each fiscal year, DHCS may settle costs for services to the Contractor and its
subcontractors based on each fiscal year-end cost settlement report as the final
amendment for the specific fiscal year cost settlement report to this the-appr€ved
sing+e€+a+€rceun+C o n tract.

Section 2. Druq Medi-Cal

A. To the extent that the Contractor provides the covered services in a satisfactory
manner in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract, DHCS agrees to
pay the Contractor Federal Medicaid funds according to Exhibit A, Attachment l, Part
lll. Subject to the availability of such funds, Contractor shall receive Federal Medicaid
funds and/or State General Funds for allowable expenditures as established by the
Federal Government and approved by DHCS, for the cost of services rendered to
beneficiaries.

B. Any payment for covered services rendered pursuant to Exhibit A, Attachment l, Part l,

shall only be made pursuant to applicable provisions of Title XIX or Title fil of the
Social Security Act, the W&l Code, the HSC, California's Medicaid State Plan, and Title
22, CCR,Sections 51341.1, 51490.1, 51516.1, and 51532.

Page 4 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit B A1
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

C. lt is understood and agreed that failure by the Contractor or its subcontractors to
comply with applicable federal and state requirements in rendering covered services
shall be sufficient cause for DHCS to deny payments to and/or recover payments from
the Contractor and/or terminate the Contractor or its subcontractor from DMC program
participation. lf DHCS or the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
disallows or denies payments for any claim, Contractor shall repay to DHCS the
Federal Medicaid funds and/or State General Funds it received for all claims so
disallowed or denied. The overpayment shall be recovered by any of the methods
allowed in Title 22, CCR, Sections 510a7@) and (b).

D. Before such denial, recoupment, or disallowances are made, DHCS shall provide the
Contractor with written notice of its proposed action. Such notice shall include the
reason for the proposed action and shall allour the Contractor 60 days to submit
additional information before the proposed action is taken, as required in Title 22,
Section 510a7@). This requirement does not apply to the DMC PostService
PostPayment Utilization Reviews.

E. DHCS shall refund to the Contractor any recovered Federal DMC overpayment that is
subsequently determined to have been erroneously collected, together with interest, in
accordance with Title 22, CCR, Section 510a7(e).

F. Contractor shall be reimbursed by DHCS on the basis of its actual net reimbursable
cost, not to exceed the unit of service maximum rate.

G. Claims submitted to the Contractor by a subcontracted provider that is not certified or
whose certification has been suspended pursuant to the W&l Code section 14107.11
and 42 CFR 455.23, shall not be certified or processed for federal or state
reimbursement by the Contractor. Payments for any DMC services shall be held by the
Contractor until the payment suspension is resolved.

H. ln the event a contract amendment is required pursuant to the preceding paragraph,
Contractor shall submit to DHCS information as identified in Exhibit E, Section 1(D). To
the extent the Contractor is notified of DHCS Budget Act allocation prior to the
execution of the Contract, DHCS and the Contractor may agree to amend the contract
after the issuance of the first revised allocation.

l. Reimbursement for covered services, other than Narcotic Treatment Program (NTP)
services, shall be limited to the lower of:

1. The provider's usual and customary charges to the general public for the same or
similar services.

2. The provider's actual allowable costs.

3. The DMC Statewide Maximum Allowance (SMA) for the modality

Page 5 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit B A1
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

J. Reimbursement to NTP's shall be limited to the lower of either the Uniform Statewide
Daily Reimbursement (USDR) rate, pursuant to W&l Code Section 14021.51(h), or the
provider's usual and customary charge to the general public for the same or similar
service. However, reimbursement paid by a county to an NTP provider for services
provided to any person subject to Penal Code Sections 1210.1 or 3063.1 and for which
the individual client is not liable to pay, does not constitute a usual or customary charge
to the general public for the purpose of this section. (W&l Code Section
14021.51(hX2XA))

K. DHCS shall reimburse the Contractor the State General Funds and/or Federal
Medicaid amount of the approved DMC claims and documents submitted in
accordance with Exhibit A, Attachment l, Part lll.

L. DHCS will adjust subsequent reimbursements to the Contractor to actual allowable
costs.
Actual allowable costs are defined in the Medicare Provider Reimbursement Manual
(CMS-Pub.15), which can be obtained from the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services, Baltimore, Maryland, or www.cms.hhs.qov.

M. Contractors and subcontractors must accept, as payment in full, the amounts paid by
DHCS in accordance with f itle 22, CCR, Section 51516.1 , plus any cost sharing
charges (deductible, coinsurance, or copayment) required to be paid by the client.
However, Contractors and subcontractors may not deny services to any client eligible
for DMC services on account of the client's inability to pay or location of eligibility.
Contractors and subcontractors may not demand any additional payment from DHCS,
client, or other third party payers.

Section 3. Druq Medi-Gal Direct Provider Contracts

A. Pursuant to W&l Code 14124.21, DHCS shall contract Cigtly with qualified DMC
providers within the Contractor's county as necessary to ensure beneficiarv access
to DMC services when a eeunty dees net eentraet te eperate DMC serviees; in whele

B. DHCS will invoice the County for the county realignment share of approved DMC
claims received by DHCS from DHCS's direct contractor providers. The County shall
reimburse DHCS for the county realignment share of the approved DMC claims within
30 days of receipt of the invoice. lf the County does not reimburse DHCS within 30
days of receipt of the invoice, DHCS may offset the amount owed from any other
funding owed to the County by DHCS or any other State agency. The parties
acknowledge that DHCS's direct contractor providers shall be responsible for
repayment of any disallowed claims. However, in no event shall DHCS be liable for
Medicaid reimbursement for any disallowed claims.

Page 6 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit B Al
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

1. Any Contractor contracting with DHCS for the provision of services through NTP
providers may receive reimbursement of the NTP administrative rate.

2. As a result of the direct contract provider's settled cost report, any County
Realignment funds owed to the direct contract provider will be handled through an
invoice process to the Contractor. Additionally, as a result of the direct contract
provider's settled cost report, any County Realignment funds owed to DHCS will be
returned to the Contractor.

Page 7 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 Al01

Exhibit B A1
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

Part lll - FinancialAudit Requirements

Section 1. General Fiscal Audit Requirements

A. ln addition to the requirements identified below, the Contractor and its subcontractors
are required to meet the audit requirements as delineated in Exhibit C, General Terms
and Conditions, and Exhibit D(F), Special Terms and Conditions, of this Contract.

B. All expenditures of county realignment funds, state and federal funds furnished to the
Contractor and its subcontractors pursuant to this Contract are subject to audit by
DHCS. Objectives of such audits may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. To determine whether units of service claimed/reported are properly documented by
service records and accurately accumulated for claiming/reporting.

2. To validate data reported by the Contractor for prospective contract negotiations.

3. To provide technical assistance in addressing current year activities and providing
recommendation on internal controls, accounting procedures, financial records, and
compliance with laws and regulations.

4. To determine the cost of services, net of related patient and participant fees, third-
party payments, and other related revenues and funds.

5. To determine that expenditures are made in accordance with applicable state and
federal laws, regulations, and contract requirements.

6. To determine the facts in relation to analysis of data, complaints, or allegations,
which may be indicative of fraud, abuse, willful misrepresentation, or failure to
achieve the Contract objectives of Exhibit C and D(F).

C. Unannounced visits may be made at the discretion of DHCS to the Contractor and/or
its subcontractors.

D. The refusal of the Contractor or its subcontractors to permit access to and inspection of
electronic or print books and records, physical facilities, and/or refusal to permit
interviews with employees, as described in this part, constitutes an express and
immediate material breach of this Contract and will be sufficient basis to terminate the
Contract for cause or default.

E. Reports of audits conducted by DHCS shall reflect all findings, recommendations,
adjustments, and corrective action as a result of its finding in any areas.

Page 8 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit B Al
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

Section 2. Druq Medi-Cal Financial Audits

A. ln addition to the audit requirements set forth in Exhibit D(F), DHCS may also conduct
financial audits of DMC programs, exclusive of NTP services, to accomplish any of, but
not limited to, the following audit objectives:

1. To review reported costs for validity, appropriate allocation methodology, and
compliance with Medicaid laws and regulations.

2. To ensure that only the cost of allowable DMC activities are included in reported
costs.

3. To determine the provider's usual and customary charge to the general public in
accordance with CMS (The Medicare Provider Reimbursement Manual) (CMS-
Pub.15), which can be obtained from the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services,
Baltimore, Maryland, or www.cms.hhs.qov, for comparison to the DMC cost per unit.

4. To review documentation of units of service and determine the final number of
approved units of service.

5. To determine the amount of clients' third-party revenue and Medi-Cal share of cost
to offset allowable DMC reimbursement.

6. To compute final settlement based on the lower of actual allowable cost, the usual
and customary charge, or the maximum allowance, in accordance with Title 22,
Section 51516.1.

B. ln addition to the audit requirements set forth in Exhibit D(F), DHCS may conduct
financial audits of NTP programs. For NTP services, the audits will address items A(3)
through A(5) above, except that the comparison of the provider's usual and customary
charge in A(3) will be to the DMC USDR rate in lieu of DMC cost per unit. ln addition,
these audits will include, but not be limited to:

1. For those NTP providers required to submit a cost report pursuant to W&l Code
Section 14124.24, a review of cost allocation methodology between NTP and other
service modalities, and between DMC and other funding sources.

2. A review of actual costs incurred for comparison to services claimed

3. A review of counseling claims to ensure that the appropriate group or individual
counseling rate has been used and that counseling sessions have been billed
appropriately.

4. A review of the number of clients in group sessions to ensure that sessions include
no less than two and no more than twelve clients at the same time, with at least one
Medi-Cal client in attendance.

Page 9 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 Ai01

Exhibit B Al
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

5. Computation of final settlement based on the lower of Uniform Statewide Daily
Reimbursement Rate or the provider's usual and customary charge to the general
public.

6. A review of supporting service, time, financial, and patient records to verify the
validity of counseling claims.

C. Contractor shall be responsible for any disallowances taken by the Federal
Government, DHCS, or the Bureau of State Audits as a result of any audit exception
that is related to its responsibilities. Contractor shall not use funds administered by
DHCS to repay one federal funding source with funds provided by another federal
funding source, or to repay federal funds with state funds, or to repay state funds with
federalfunds.

D. Contractor agrees to promptly develop and implement any corrective action plans in a
manner acceptable to DHCS in order to comply with recommendations contained in
any audit report. Such corrective action plans shall include time-specific objectives to
allow for measurement of progress and are subject to verification by DHCS within six
months from the date of the plan.

E. Contractor, in coordination with DHCS, shall provide follow-up on all significant findings
in the audit report, including findings relating to a subcontractor, and submit the results
to DHCS.

lf differences cannot be resolved between DHCS and the Contractor regarding the
terms of.the final financial audit settlements for funds expended under Exhibit B,
Contractor may request an appeal in accordance with the appeal process described in
the Title 22, Section 51341.1(q). When a financial audit is conducted by the Federal
Government, DHCS, or the Bureau of State Audits directly with a subcontractor of the
Contractor, and if the subcontractor disagrees with audit disallowances related to its
programs, claims or services, Contractor shall, at the subcontractor's request, request
an appeal to DHCS in accordance with Title 22, Section 51341.1(q). Contractor shall
include a provision in its subcontracts regarding the process by which a subcontractor
may file an audit appeal via the Contractor.

F. Providers of DMC services shall, upon request, make available to DHCS their fiscal
and other records to assure that such provider have adequate recordkeeping capability
and to assure that reimbursement for covered DMC services are made in accordance
with Title 22, Section 51516.1 . These records include, but are not limited to, matters
pertaining to:

1. Provider ownership, organization, and operation

2. Fiscal, medical, and other recordkeeping systems

Page 10 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit B A1
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

3. Federal income tax status

4. Asset acquisition, lease, sale, or other action

5. Franchise or management arrangements

6. Patient service charge schedules

7. Costs of operation

8. Cost allocation methodology

L Amounts of income received by source and purpose

10. Flow of funds and working capital

G. Contractor shall retain records of utilization review activities required in Exhibit A,
Attachment I Part l, Section 4(B) herein for a minimum of thr€€-!g!! years.

Page 11 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit B A1
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

Part lV - Records

Section 1. General Provisions

A. Maintenance of Records

Contractor shall maintain sufficient books, records, documents, and other evidence
necessary for DHCS to audit contract performance and contract compliance and4iseal
Contractor shall make these records available to DHCS, upon request, to evaluate the
quality and quantity of services, accessibility and appropriateness of services, and to
ensure fiscal accountability. Regardless of the location or ownership of such records,
they shall be sufficient to determine if costs incurred by Contractor are reasonable,
allowable and allocated appropriately. All records must be capable of verification by
qualified auditors.

1. Contractor and subcontractors shall include in any contract with an audit firm a
clause to permit access by DHCS to the working papers of the external independent
auditor, and require that copies of the working papers shall be made for DHCS at its
request.

2. Contractor and subcontractors shall keep adequate and sufficient financial records
and statistical data to support the year-end documents filed with DHCS. All records
must be capable of verification by qualified auditors.

3. Accounting records and supporting documents shall be retained for a three-len-year
period from the date the year-end cost settlement report was approved by DHCS for
interim settlement. When an audit by the Federal Government, DHCS, or the
California State Auditor has been started before the expiration of the th{€e-ten-year
period, the records shall be retained until completion of the audit and final resolution
of all issues that arise in the audit. Final settlement shall be made at the end of the
audit and appeal process. lf an audit has not been completed within th{€+ten
years, the interim settlement shall be considered as the final settlement.

4. Financial records shall be kept so that they clearly reflect the source of funding for
each type of service for which reimbursement is claimed. These documents
include, but are not limited to, all ledgers, books, vouchers, time sheets, payrolls,
appointment schedules, client data cards, and schedules for allocating costs. All
records must be capable of verification by qualified auditors.

5. Contractor's subcontracts shall require that all subcontractors comply with the
requirements of Exhibit A, Attachment l, Part l, Section 3.

6. Should a subcontractor discontinue its contractual agreement with the Contractor,
or cease to conduct business in its entirety, Contractor shall be responsible for
retaining the subcontractor's fiscal and program records for the required retention
period. DHCS Administrative Manual (SAM) contains statutory requirements

Page 12of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit B A1
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

governing the retention, storage, and disposal of records pertaining to state funds
Contractor shall follow SAM requirements located at
http://sam. dqs. ca. qov/TOC/1 600. aspx.

The Contractor shall retain all records required by W&l Code Section 14124.1,42
forreimbursementofservicesandfinancialaudit

purposes.

7. ln the expenditure of funds hereunder, Contractor shall comply with the
requirements of SAM and the laws and procedures applicable to the obligation and
expenditure of federal and state funds.

B. Dispute Resolution Process

1. ln the event of a dispute under this Exhibit A, Attachment l, Part l, other than an
audit dispute, Contractor shall provide written notice of the particulars of the dispute
to DHCS before exercising any other available remedy. Written notice shall include
the contract number. The Director (or designee) of DHCS and the County Drug or
Alcohol Program Administrator (or designee) shall meet to discuss the means by
which they can effect an equitable resolution to the dispute. Contractor shall
receive a written response from DHCS within 60 days of the notice of dispute. The
written response shall reflect the issues discussed at the meeting and state how the
dispute will be resolved.

2. As stated in Part lll, Section 2, of this Exhibit, in the event of a dispute over financial
audit findings between DHCS and the Contractor, Contractor may appeal the audit
in accordance with Title 22, CCR, Section 51341.1 (q). When a financial audit by
the Federal Government, DHCS, or the California State Auditor is conducted
directly with a subcontractor of the Contractor, and if the subcontractor disagrees
with audit disallowances related to its programs, claims or services, Contractor
shall, at the subcontractor's request, request an appeal to DHCS in accordance with
Title 22, Section 51341.1 (q). Contractor shall include a provision in its subcontracts
regarding the process by which a subcontractor may file an audit appeal via the
Contractor.

3. Contractors that conduct financial audits of subcontractors, other than a
subcontractor whose funding consists entirely of non-Department funds, shall
develop a process to resolve disputed financial findings and notify subcontractors of
their appeal rights pursuant to that process. This section shall not apply to those
grievances or compliances arising from the financial findings of an audit or
examination made by or on behalf of DHCS pursuant to Part lll of this Exhibit.

4. To ensure that necessary corrective actions are taken, financial audit findings are
either uncontested or upheld after appeal may be used by DHCS during prospective
contract negotiations.

Page 13 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 A01

Exhibit B Al
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

Part V. Druq Medi-Cal Reimbursement Rates

A. "Uniform Statewide Daily Reimbursement Rate (USDR)" means the rate for NTP
services based on a unit of service that is a daily treatment service provided pursuant
to Title 22, CCR, Sections 51341.1 and 51516.1 and Title 9, CCR, commencing with
Section 10000 (Document 3G), or the rate for individual or group counseling. The
following table shows USDR rates:

(.) The NTP Contractors may be reimbursed for up to 200 minutes (20 ten-minute
increments) of individual and/or group counseling per calendar month. lf a medical
necessity determination is made that requires additional NTP counseling beyond 200
minutes per calendar month, NTP Contractors may bill and be reimbursed for additional
counseling (in 10-minute increments). Medicaljustification for the additional counseling
must be clearly documented in the patient record.

Reimbursement for covered NTP services shall be limited to the lower of the NTP's
usual and customary charge to the general public for the same or similar services or
the USDR rate.

Service Type of Unit of
Service (UOS)

Non-Perinatal
(Regular) Rate Per

UOS
FY 17t18 FY 18/19

Perinatal Rate Per
UOS

FY 17t18 FY 18/19

NTP-Methadone
Dosing Daily $13.11 $13.54 $14.11 $14.58

NTP - lndividual
Counseling (*)

One 10-minute
increment $15.37 $15.88 $16.39 $16.39

NTP - Group
Counseling (.)

One 10-minute
increment

$3.43 $3.43 $4.28 $4.28

Page 14 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit B A1
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions

B. "Unit of Service" means a faceto-face contact on a calendar day for outpatient drug
free, intensive outpatient treatment, perinatal residential, and Naltrexone treatment
services. Only one face-to-face service contact per day is covered by DMC except in
the case of emergencies when an additional face-to-face contact may be covered for
intake crisis intervention or collateral service. To count as a unit of service, the second
contact shall not duplicate the services provided on the first contact, and each contact
shall be clearly documented in the beneficiary's record. While the rates are approved
by DHCS, they are subject to change through the regulation process. Units of service
are identified in the following table:

*" Residential Substance Abuse Seryices for EPSDT eliqible beneficiaries will be
reimbursed at the Perinatal Residential DMC rate, excludinq room and board.

Service
Type of Unit of
Service (UOS)

Non-Perinatal (Regular)
Rate Per UOS

FY 17t18 FY 18/19

Perinatal Rate Per UOS

FY 17t18 FY 18/19
lntensive Outpatient
Treatment

Faceto-Face Visit
$58.53 $s8.53 $84.43 $87.21

Naltrexone Treatment Face-to-Face Visit $19.06 $19.06 NA NA
Outpatient Drug Free Faceto Face Visit

- lndividual (per
oerson)

$76.91 $79.44 $81.93 $81.93

Face-to-Face Visit

- Group (per
person)

$30.8e $30.89 $38.56 $38.56

Perinatal Residential ** Daily - Residential
Dav

NA NA $90.14 $90.14

Page 15 of 15



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Fundino Amount
Oriqinal

25 270
) ao7

24.O77

45.000

5 000

0

50.000

74.o77

Fiscal Year 2017-18

State General Funds
- DMC Non-Perinatal SGF* (08)

- DMC Perinet2l SGF** 1o9\

- Administration Exoenses** (603)

TOTAL

Drud Medi-Cal Fedeml Share

- DMC Non-Perinatal Federal Share (01)

- DMC Perinatal FedeEl Share (03)

- Administration ExDenses (603)

TOTAL

GRAND TOTA

231=214

257.653

ORIGINAL THREE-YEAR TOTAL

AOl THREE.YEAR TOTAL

Exhibit B, Attachment lAl
Funding Amounts

Fundinq Amount
A01

25.270

) ao7

4.2't'l
32.244

45 000

5.000

7-500

57.500

89.788

Original

25.270
2 AO7

o
?ap77

-

45 000

5.000

o

50JOO

74.977

Fiscal Year 2018-19

State General Funds
- DMC Non-Perinatal SGF* (08)

- DMC Perinatal SGF"* 1O9\

- Administration Exoenses"' (603)

TOTAL

Druo Medi-Cal Federal Share
- DMC Non-Perinatal Federal Share (01)

- DMC Perinatal Federal Share (03)

- Administration Exoenses (603)

TOTAL

GRAND TOTAL

**State General Fund amounts are based on biannual DMC estimates approved by the Department
of Finance. DHCS will revise the amounts through the contract amendment process for each new

allocation.

Fundinq Amount
A0t

25.270

2 ao7

L 211

45 000

5.000

7.500

57.500

89-788

Oriqinal

25.270
2 AO7

€

4p7f

45 000

5.000

o

50J00

zA=rE

Fiscal Year 2019-20

Slale Gcneral Funds

- DMC Non-Perinatal SGF"'(08)
- DMC Perin2tal SGF** 10sl

- Administration Exoenses** (603)

TOTAL

Druo Medi-Cal Federal Share
- DMC Non-Perinatel Federal Share {Oll
- DMC Perinatal Federal Share (03)

- Administmtion Fxnenses 1603)

TOTAL

GRAND TOTAL

Page 1 of 1



California Departunent of Health Care Services Exhibit D(F)

Special Terms and Gonditions

(For federally funded seruice contracts or agreements and grant agreements)

The use of headings or titles throughout this exhibit is for convenience only and shall not be used to interpret
or to govern the meaning of any specific term or condition.

The terms "contract", "Contractor" and "Subcontractor" shall also mean, "agreement", "grant", "grant
agreement", "Grantee" and "Subgrantee" respectively.

The terms "California Department of Health Care Services", "California Department of Health Services",
'Department of Health Care Services", "Department of Health Services", 'CDHCS', 'DHCS', "CDHS", and
'DHS' shall all have the same meaning and refer to the California State agency that is a party to this
Agreement.

This exhibit contains provisions that require strict adherence to various contracting laws and policies. Some
provisions herein are conditional and only apply if specified conditions exist (i.e., agreement total exceeds a
certain amount; agreement is federally funded, etc.). The provisions herein apply to this Agreement unless
the provisions are removed by reference on the face of this Agreement, the provisions are superseded by an
alternate provision appearing elsewhere in this Agreement, or the applicable conditions do not exist.

lndex of Special Terms and Gonditions

1 Federal Equal Employment Opportunity
Requirements

Traveland Per Diem Reimbursement

Procurement Rules

Equipment Ownership / lnventory / Disposition

Subcontract Requirements

lncome Restrictions

Audit and Record Retention

Site lnspection

Federal Contract Funds

lntellectual Property Rights

Air or Water Pollution Requirements

Prior Approval of Training Seminars, Workshops
or Conferences

Confidentiality of lnformation

Documents, Publications, and Written Reports

Dispute Resolution Process

Financial and Compliance Audit Requirements

Human Subjects Use Requirements

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18. NovationRequirements

19. Debarm ent and Suspension Certification

20. Smoke-Free Workplace Certification

21. Covenant Against Contingent Fees

22. Payment Withholds

23. Performance Evaluation

24. Officials Not to Benefit

25. Four-Digit Date Compliance

26. Prohibited Use of State Funds for Software

27. Use of Small, Minority Owned and Women's
Businesses

28. Alien lneligibility Certification

29. Union Organizing

30. Contract Uniformity (Fringe Benefit
Allowability)

31. Suspension or Stop Work Notification

32. Public Communications

33. Lobbying Restrictions and Disclosure
Certification

DHCS-Exhibit D(F) (9/18)
Page 1 of26



Department of Health Care Services . Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

1. Federal Equal Opportunity Requirements

(Applicable to all federally funded agreements entered into by the Department of Health Care Services)

a. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of
race, color, religion, sex, national origin, physical or mental handicap, disability, age or status as a
disabled veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure
that qualified applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without
regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, physical or mental handicap, disability, age
or status as a disabled veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era. Such action shall include, but not be
limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and career
development opportunities and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment,
notices to be provided by the Federal Government or DHCS, setting forth the provisions of the Equal
Opportunity clause, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the affirmative action clause
required by the Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 (38 U.S.C. 4212).
Such notices shall state the Contractor's obligation under the law to take affirmative action to
employ and advance in employment qualified applicants without discrimination based on their race,
color, religion, sex, national origin physical or mental handicap, disability, age or status as a disabled
veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era and the rights of applicants and employees.

b. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advancements for employees placed by or on behalf of the
Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without
regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin physical or mental handicap, disability, age or
status as a disabled veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era.

c. The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding a notice, to be provided by the
Federal Government or the State, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the
Contractor's commitments under the provisions herein and shall post copies of the notice in
conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

d. The Contractor will comply with all provisions of and furnish all information and reports required by
Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Vietnam Era Veterans'
Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 (38 U.S.C. 4212) and of the Federal Executive Order No.
11246 as amended, including by Executive Order 11375, 'Amending Executive Order 11246
Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,' and as supplemented by regulation at 41 CFR part 60,
"Office of the Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department
of Labor," and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Federal Executive Order No.
11246 as amended, including by Executive Order 113;75,'Amending Executive Order 11246
Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,' and as supplemented by regulation at 41 CFR part 60,
"Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of
Labor," and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary
of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to its books, records, and accounts by the
State and its designated representatives and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to
ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

f. ln the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the requirements of the provisions herein or
with any federal rules, regulations, or orders which are referenced herein, this Agreement may be
cancelled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared
ineligible for further federal and state contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Federal
Executive Order No. 11246 as amended and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies
invoked as provided in Federal Executive Order No. 11246 as amended, including by Executive
Order 11375, 'Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,' and as
supplemented by regulation at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs,
Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," or by rule, regulation, or order of the
Secretary of Labor, or as othenivise provided by law.

Page2 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

g. The Contractor will include the provisions of Paragraphs a through g in every subcontract or
purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued
pursuant to Federal Executive Order No. 11246 as amended, including by Executive Order 11375,
'Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,' and as
supplemented by regulation at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs,
Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," or Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 or (38 U.S.C. 4212) of the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment Assistance Act, so that such
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action
with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the Director of the Office of Federal Contract
Compliance Programs or DHCS may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance provided, however, that in the event the Contractor becomes involved
in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by
DHCS, the Contractor may request in writing to DHCS, who, in turn, may request the United States
to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State and of the United States.

2, Traveland Per Diem Reimburcement

(Applicable if travel and/or per diem expenses are reimbursed with agreement funds.)

Reimbursement for travel and per diem expenses from DHCS under this Agreement shall, unless
otherwise specified in this Agreement, be at the rates currently in effect, as established by the California
Department of Human Resources (CalHR), for nonrepresented state employees as stipulated in DHCS'
Travel Reimbursement lnformation Exhibit. lf the CaIHR rates change during the term of the
Agreement, the new rates shall apply upon their effective date and no amendment to this Agreement
shall be necessary. Exceptions to CaIHR rates may be approved by DHCS upon the submission of a
statement by the Contractor indicating that such rates are not available to the Contractor. No travel
outside the State of California shall be reimbursed without prior authorization from DHCS. Verbal
authorization should be confirmed in writing. Written authorization may be in a form including fax or
email confirmation.

3. Procurement Rules

(Applicable to agreements in which equipmenUproperty, commodities and/or supplies are furnished by
DHCS or expenses for said items are reimbursed by DHCS with state or federal funds provided under
the Agreement.)

a. EquipmenUProperty definitions

Wherever the term equipment and/or property is used, the following definitions shall apply:

(1) Major equipmenUproperty: A tangible or intangible item having a base unit cost of $5.000 or
more with a life expectancy of one (1) year or more and is either furnished by DHCS or the cost
is reimbursed through this Agreement. Software and videos are examples of intangible items
that meet this definition.

(2) Minor equipmenUproperty: A tangible item having a base unit cost of !q!@$!r!00 with a
life expectancy of one (1) year or more and is either furnished by DHCS or the cost is
reimbursed through this Agreement.

b. Government and public entities (including state colleges/universities and auxiliary organizations),
whether acting as a contractor and/or subcontractor, may secure all commodities, supplies,
equipment and services related to such purchases that are required in performance of this
Agreement. Said procurements are subject to Paragraphs d through h of Provision 3. Paragraph c
of Provision 3 shall also apply, if equipmenUproperty purchases are delegated to subcontractors that
are nonprofit organizations or commercial businesses.

c. Nonprofit organizations and commercial businesses, whether acting as a contractor and/or
subcontractor, may secure commodities, supplies, equipmenVproperty and services related to such
purchases for performance under this Agreement.

Page 3 of 26



Departrnent of Health Care Services - Special Te.ms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

(1) EquipmenUproperty purchases shall not exceed $50,000 annually

To secure equipmenUproperty above the annual maximum limit of $50,000, the Contractor shall
make arrangements through the appropriate DHCS Program Contract Manager, to have all
remaining equipmenUproperty purchased through DHCS' Purchasing Unit. The cost of
equipmenVproperty purchased by or through DHCS shall be deducted from the funds available
in this Agreement. Contractor shall submit to the DHCS Program Contract Manager a list of
equipmenVproperty specifications for those items that the State must procure. DHCS may pay
the vendor directly for such arranged equipmenVproperty purchases and title to the
equipmenUproperty will remain with DHCS. The equipmenUproperty will be delivered to the
Contractor's address, as stated on the face of the Agreement, unless the Contractor notifies the
DHCS Program Contract Manager, in writing, of an alternate delivery address.

(2) All equipmenVproperty purchases are subject to Paragraphs d through h of Provision 3.
Paragraph b of Provision 3 shall also apply, if equipmenVproperty purchases are delegated to
subcontractors that are either a government or public entity.

(3) Nonprofit organizations and commercial businesses shall use a procurement system that meets
the following standards:

(a) Maintain a code or standard of conduct that shall govern the performance of its officers,
employees, or agents engaged in awarding procurement contracts. No employee, officer,
or agent shall participate in the selection, award, or administration of a procurement, or bid
contract in which, to his or her knowledge, he or she has a financial interest.

(b) Procurements shall be conducted in a manner that provides, to the maximum extent
practical, open, and free competition.

(c) Procurements shall be conducted in a manner that provides for all of the following:

[1] Avoid purchasing unnecessary or duplicate items.

[2] EquipmenVproperty solicitations shall be based upon a clear and accurate description
of the technical requirements of the goods to be procured.

[3] Take positive steps to utilize small and veteran owned businesses.

d. Unless waived or otherwise stipulated in writing by DHCS, prior written authorization from the
appropriate DHCS Program Contract Manager will be required before the Contractor will be
reimbursed for any purchase of $5,000 or more for commodities, supplies, equipmenVproperty, and
services related to such purchases. The Contractor must provide in its request for authorization all
particulars necessary, as specified by DHCS, for evaluating the necessity or desirability of incurring
such costs. The term "purchase" excludes the purchase of services from a subcontractor and
public utility services at rates established for uniform applicability to the general public.

e. ln special circumstances, determined by DHCS (e.9., when DHCS has a need to monitor certain
purchases, etc.), DHCS may require prior written authorization and/or the submission of paid vendor
receipts for any purchase, regardless of dollar amount. DHCS reserves the right to either deny
claims for reimbursement or to request repayment for any Contractor and/or subcontractor
purchase that DHCS determines to be unnecessary in carrying out performance under this
Agreement.

f. The Contractor and/or subcontractor must maintain a copy or narrative description of the
procurement system, guidelines, rules, or regulations that will be used to make purchases under
this Agreement. The State reserves the right to request a copy of these documents and to inspect
the purchasing practices of the Contractor and/or subcontractor at any time.

g. For all purchases, the Contractor and/or subcontractor must maintain copies of all paid vendor
invoices, documents, bids and other information used in vendor selection, for inspection or audit.
Justifications supporting the absence of bidding (i.e., sole source purchases) shall also be
maintained on file by the Contractor and/or subcontractor for inspection or audit.

Page 4 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

h. DHCS may, with cause (e.9., with reasonable suspicion of unnecessary purchases or use of
inappropriate purchase practices, etc.), withhold, cancel, modify, or retract the delegated purchase
authority granted under Paragraphs b and/or c of Provision 3 by giving the Contractor no less than
30 calendar days written notice.

4. EquipmenUProperty Ownership / lnventory / Disposition

(Applicable to agreements in which equipmenUproperty is furnished by DHCS and/or when said items
are purchased or reimbursed by DHCS with state or federal funds provided under the Agreement.)

a. Wherever the term equipment and/or property is used in Provision 4, the definitions in Paragraph a
of Provision 3 shall apply.

Unless otherwise stipulated in this Agreement, all equipment and/or property that is
purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by DHCS under the terms of this
Agreement shall be considered state equipment and the property of DHCS.

(1) Reporting of EquipmenUProperty Receipt - DHCS requires the reporting, tagging and annual
inventorying of all equipment and/or property that is furnished by DHCS or
purchased/reimbursed with funds provided through this Agreement.

Upon receipt of equipment and/or property, the Contractor shall report the receipt to the DHCS
Program Contract Manager. To report the receipt of said items and to receive property tags,
Contractor shall use a form or format designated by DHCS' Asset Management Unit. lf the
appropriate form (i.e., Contractor Equipment Purchased with DHCS Funds) does not
accompany this Agreement, Contractor shall request a copy from the DHCS Program Contract
Manager.

(2) Annual EquipmenUProperty lnventory - lf the Contractor enters into an agreement with a
term of more than twelve months, the Contractor shall submit an annual inventory of state
equipment and/or property to the DHCS Program Contract Manager using a form or format
designated by DHCS' Asset Management Unit. lf an inventory report form (i.e.,
lnventory/Disposition of DHCS-Funded Equipment) does not accompany this Agreement,
Contractor shall request a copy from the DHCS Program Contract Manager. Contractor shall:

(a) lnclude in the inventory report, equipment and/or property in the Contractor's possession
and/or in the possession of a subcontractor (including independent consultants).

(b) Submit the inventory report to DHCS according to the instructions appearing on the
inventory form or issued by the DHCS Program Contract Manager.

(c) Contact the DHCS Program Contract Manager to learn how to remove, trade-in, sell,
transfer or survey off, from the inventory report, expired equipment and/or property that is
no longer wanted, usable or has passed its life expectancy. lnstructions will be supplied by
either the DHCS Program Contract Manager or DHCS' Asset Management Unit.

b. Title to state equipment and/or property shall not be affected by its incorporation or attachment to
any property not owned by the State.

c. Unless otherwise stipulated, DHCS shall be under no obligation to pay the cost of restoration, or
rehabilitation of the Contractor's and/or Subcontractor's facility which may be affected by the
removal of any state equipment and/or property.

d. The Contractor and/or Subcontractor shall maintain and administer a sound business program for
ensuring the proper use, maintenance, repair, protection, insurance and preservation of state
equipment and/or property.

(1) ln administering this provision, DHCS may require the Contractor and/or Subcontractor to repair
or replace, to DHCS' satisfaction, any damaged, lost or stolen state equipment and/or property.
ln the event of state equipment and/or miscellaneous property theft, Contractor and/or
Subcontractor shall immediately file a theft report with the appropriate police agency or the

Page 5 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Spscial Terms and conditions Exhibit D(F)

California Highway Patrol and Contractor shall promptly submit one copy of the theft report to
the DHCS Program Contract Manager.

e. Unless otherwise stipulated by the Program funding this Agreement, equipment and/or property
purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by DHCS under the terms of this
Agreement, shall only be used for performance of this Agreement or another DHCS agreement.

f. Within sixty (60) calendar days prior to the termination or end of this Agreement, the Contractor
shall provide a final inventory report of equipment and/or property to the DHCS Program Contract
Manager and shall, at that time, query DHCS as to the requirements, including the manner and
method, of returning state equipment and/or property to DHCS. Final disposition of equipment
and/or property shall be at DHCS expense and according to DHCS instructions. Equipment and/or
property disposition instructions shall be issued by DHCS immediately after receipt of the final
inventory report. At the termination or conclusion of this Agreement, DHCS may at its discretion,
authorize the continued use of state equipment and/or property for performance of work under a
different DHCS agreement.

g. Motor Vehicles

(Applicable only if motor vehicles are purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by
DHCS under this Agreement.)

(1) lf motor vehicles are purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by DHCS under
the terms of this Agreement, within thirty (30) calendar days prior to the termination or end of
this Agreement, the Contractor and/or Subcontractor shall return such vehicles to DHCS and
shall deliver all necessary documents of title or registration to enable the proper transfer of a
marketable title to DHCS.

(2) lf motor vehicles are purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by DHCS under
the terms of this Agreement, the State of California shall be the legal owner of said motor
vehicles and the Contractor shall be the registered owner. The Contractor and/or a
subcontractor may only use said vehicles for performance and under the terms of this
Agreement.

(3) The Contractor and/or Subcontractor agree that all operators of motor vehicles,
purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by DHCS under the terms of this
Agreement, shall hold a valid State of California driver's license. ln the event that ten or more
passengers are to be transported in any one vehicle, the operator shall also hold a State of
California Class B driver's license.

(4) lf any motor vehicle is purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by DHCS
under the terms of this Agreement, the Contractor and/or Subcontractor, as applicable, shall
provide, maintain, and certify that, at a minimum, the following type and amount of automobile
liability insurance is in effect during the term of this Agreement or any extension period during
which any vehicle remains in the Contractor's and/or Subcontractor's possession:

Automobile Liability lnsurance

(a) The Contractor, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies that it possesses or will obtain
automobile liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury
and property damage combined. Said insurance must be obtained and made effective
upon the delivery date of any motor vehicle, purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or
furnished by DHCS under the terms of this Agreement, to the Contractor and/or
Subcontractor.

(b) The Contractor and/or Subcontractor shall, as soon as practical, furnish a copy of the
certificate of insurance to the DHCS Program Contract Manager. The certificate of
insurance shall identify the DHCS contract or agreement number for which the insurance
applies.

(c) The Contractor and/or Subcontractor agree that bodily injury and property damage liability
insurance, as required herein, shall remain in effect at all times during the term of this

Page 6 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Te.ms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

Agreement or until such time as the motor vehicle is returned to DHCS.

(d) The Contractor and/or Subcontractor agree to provide, at least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration date of said insurance coverage, a copy of a new certificate of insurance
evidencing continued coverage, as indicated herein, for not less than the remainder of the
term of this Agreement, the term of any extension or continuation thereof, or for a period of
not less than one (1) year.

(e) The Contractor and/or Subcontractor, if not a self-insured government and/or public entity,
must provide evidence, that any required certificates of insurance contain the following
provisions:

[1] The insurer will not cancel the insured's coverage without giving thirty (30) calendar
days prior written notice to the State (California Department of Health Care Services).

[2] The State of California, its officers, agents, employees, and servants are included as
additional insureds, but only with respect to work performed for the State under this
Agreement and any extension or continuation of this Agreement.

[3] The insurance carrier shall notify the California Department of Health Care Services
(DHCS), in writing, of the Contractor's failure to pay premiums; its cancellation of such
policies; or any other substantial change, including, but not limited to, the status,
coverage, or scope of the required insurance. Such notices shall contain a reference to
each agreement number for which the insurance was obtained.

(0 The Contractor and/or Subcontractor is hereby advised that copies of certificates of
insurance may be subject to review and approval by the Department of General Services
(DGS), Office of Risk and lnsurance Management. The Contractor shall be notified by
DHCS, in writing, if this provision is applicable to this Agreement. lf DGS approval of the
certificate of insurance is required, the Contractor agrees that no work or services shall be
performed prior to obtaining said approval.

(g) ln the event the Contractor and/or Subcontractor fails to keep insurance coverage, as
required herein, in effect at all times during vehicle possession, DHCS may, in addition to
any other remedies it may have, terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of such
event.

5. Subcontract Requirements

(Applicable to agreements under which services are to be performed by subcontractors including
independent consultants.)

a. Prior written authorization will be required before the Contractor enters into or is reimbursed for any
subcontract for services costing $5,000 or more. Except as indicated in Paragraph a(3) herein,
when securing subcontracts for services exceeding $5,000, the Contractor shall obtain at least three
bids or justify a sole source award.

(1) The Contractor must provide in its request for authorization, all information necessary for
evaluating the necessity or desirability of incurring such cost.

(2) DHCS may identify the information needed to fulfill this requirement.

(3) Subcontracts performed by the following entities or for the service types listed below are exempt
from the bidding and sole source justification requirements:

(a) A local governmental entity or the federal government,

(b) A State college or State university from any State,

(c) A Joint Powers Authority,

(d) An auxiliary organization of a California State University or a California community college,

Page 7 of 26



Department of Health care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

(e) A foundation organized to support the Board of Governors of the California Community
Colleges,

(0 An auxiliary organization of the Student Aid Commission established under Education Code
s 69522,

(g) Firms or individuals proposed for use and approved by DHCS' funding Program via
acceptance of an application or proposal for funding or pre/post contract award
negotiations,

(h) Entities and/or service types identified as exempt from advertising and competitive bidding
in State Contracting Manual Chapter 5 Section 5.80 Subsection 8.2. View this publication
at the following lnternet address:
http://www. dqs. ca. qov/ols/Resources/StateContractManual.aspx.

b. DHCS reserves the right to approve or disapprove the selection of subcontractors and with advance
written notice, require the substitution of subcontractors and require the Contractor to terminate
subcontracts entered into in support of this Agreement.

(1) Upon receipt of a written notice from DHCS requiring the substitution and/or termination of a
subcontract, the Contractor shall take steps to ensure the completion of any work in progress
and select a replacement, if applicable, within 30 calendar days, unless a longer period is
agreed to by DHCS.

c. Actual subcontracts (i.e., written agreement between the Contractor and a subcontractor) of $5,000
or more are subject to the prior review and written approval of DHCS. DHCS may, at its discretion,
elect to waive this right. All such waivers shall be confirmed in writing by DHCS.

d. Contractor shall maintain a copy of each subcontract entered into in support of this Agreement and
shall, upon request by DHCS, make copies available for approval, inspection, or audit.

e. DHCS assumes no responsibility for the payment of subcontractors used in the performance of this
Agreement. Contractor accepts sole responsibility for the payment of subcontractors used in the
performance of this Agreement.

f. The Contractor is responsible for all performance requirements under this Agreement even though
performance may be carried out through a subcontract.

g. The Contractor shall ensure that all subcontracts for services include provision(s) requiring
compliance with applicable terms and conditions specified in this Agreement.

h. The Contractor agrees to include the following clause, relevant to record retention, in all
subcontracts for services:

"(Subcontractor Name) agrees to maintain and preserve, until three years after termination
of (Agreement Numbell and final payment from DHCS to the Contractor, to permit DHCS or
any duly authorized representative, to have access to, examine or audit any pertinent
books, documents, papers and records related to this subcontract and to allow interviews of
any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records."

Unless otherwise stipulated in writing by DHCS, the Contractor shall be the subcontractor's sole
point of contact for all matters related to performance and payment under this Agreement.

Contractor shall, as applicable, advise all subcontractors of their obligations pursuant to the
following numbered provisions of this Exhibil: 1,2,3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19,20,24,
32 andlor other numbered provisions herein that are deemed applicable.

6. lncome Restrictions

Unless otherwise stipulated in this Agreement, the Contractor agrees that any refunds, rebates, credits,
or other amounts (including any interest thereon) accruing to or received by the Contractor under this
Agreement shall be paid by the Contractor to DHCS, to the extent that they are properly allocable to
costs for which the Contractor has been reimbursed by DHCS under this Agreement.

Page 8 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

7. Auditand Record Retention

(Applicable to agreements in excess of $10,000.)

a. The Contractor and/or Subcontractor shall maintain books, records, documents, and other
evidence, accounting procedures and practices, sufficient to properly reflect all direct and indirect
costs of whatever nature claimed to have been incurred in the performance of this Agreement,
including any matching costs and expenses. The foregoing constitutes "records" for the purpose of
this provision.

b. The Contractor's and/or subcontractor's facility or office or such part thereof as may be engaged in
the performance of this Agreement and his/her records shall be subject at all reasonable times to
inspection, audit, and reproduction.

c. Contractor agrees that DHCS, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or
their designated representatives including the Comptroller General of the United States shall have
the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the
performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records
during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have
information related to such records. Further, the Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the
State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this
Agreement. (GC 8546.7, CCR Title 2, Section 1896.77)

d. The Contractor and/or Subcontractor shall preserve and make available his/her records (1) for a
period of three years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, and (2) for such longer
period, if any, as is required by applicable statute, by any other provision of this Agreement, or by
subparagraphs (1) or (2) below.

(1) lf this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the work
terminated shall be preserved and made available for a period of three years from the date of
any resulting final settlement.

(2) lf any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving the records has been started
before the expiration of the three-year period, the records shall be retained until completion of
the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the regular three-
year period, whichever is later.

e. The Contractor and/or Subcontractor may, at its discretion, following receipt of final payment under
this Agreement, reduce its accounts, books and records related to this Agreement to microfilm,
computer disk, CD ROM, DVD, or other data storage medium. Upon request by an authorized
representative to inspect, audit or obtain copies of said records, the Contractor and/or Subcontractor
must supply or make available applicable devices, hardware, and/or software necessary to view,
copy and/or print said records. Applicable devices may include, but are not limited to, microfilm
readers and microfilm printers, etc.

f. The Contractor shall, if applicable, comply with the Single Audit Act and the audit reporting
requirements set forth in OMB Circular A-133.

8. Site lnspection
The State, through any authorized representatives, has the right at all reasonable times to inspect or
otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed hereunder including subcontract supported
activities and the premises in which it is being performed. lf any inspection or evaluation is made of the
premises of the Contractor or Subcontractor, the Contractor shall provide and shall require
Subcontractors to provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of the
authorized representatives in the performance of their duties. All inspections and evaluations shall be
performed in such a manner as will not unduly delay the work.

Page 9 of 26



Department of Health care Services - Spscial Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

9. Federal Gontract Funds

(Applicable only to that portion of an agreement funded in part or whole with federal funds.)

a. lt is mutually understood between the parties that this Agreement may have been written before
ascertaining the availability of congressional appropriation of funds, for the mutual benefit of both
parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays which would occur if the Agreement were
executed after that determination was made.

b. This agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made available to the State by
the United States Government for the fiscal years covered by the term of this Agreement. ln
addition, this Agreement is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by
the Congress or any statute enacted by the Congress which may affect the provisions, terms or
funding of this Agreement in any manner.

c. lt is mutually agreed that if the Congress does not appropriate sufficient funds for the program, this
Agreement shall be amended to reflect any reduction in funds.

d. DHCS has the option to invalidate or cancel the Agreement with 3O-days advance written notice or
to amend the Agreement to reflect any reduction in funds.

10. lntellectual Property Rights

a. Ownership

(1) Except where DHCS has agreed in a signed writing to accept a license, DHCS shall be and
remain, without additional compensation, the sole owner of any and all rights, title and interest in
all lntellectual Property, from the moment of creation, whether or not jointly conceived, that are
made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or DHCS and which result
directly or indirectly from this Agreement.

(2) For the purposes of this Agreement, lntellectual Property means recognized protectable rights
and interest such as: patents, (whether or not issued) copyrights, trademarks, service marks,
applications for any of the foregoing, inventions, trade secrets, trade dress, logos, insignia, color
combinations, slogans, moral rights, right of publicity, author's rights, contract and licensing
rights, works, mask works, industrial design rights, rights of priority, know how, design flows,
methodologies, devices, business processes, developments, innovations, good will and all other
legal rights protecting intangible proprietary information as may exist now and/or here after
come into existence, and all renewals and extensions, regardless of whether those rights arise
under the laws of the United States, or any other state, country or jurisdiction.

(a) For the purposes of the definition of lntellectual Property, "works" means all literary works,
writings and printed matter including the medium by which they are recorded or reproduced,
photographs, art work, pictorial and graphic representations and works of a similar nature,
film, motion pictures, digital images, animation cells, and other audiovisualworks including
positives and negatives thereof, sound recordings, tapes, educational materials, interactive
videos and any other materials or products created, produced, conceptualized and fixed in a
tangible medium of expression. lt includes preliminary and final products and any materials
and information developed for the purposes of producing those final products. Works does
not include articles submitted to peer review or reference journals or independent research
projects.

(3) ln the performance of this Agreement, Contractor will exercise and utilize certain of its
lntellectual Property in existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement. ln addition, under
this Agreement, Contractor may access and utilize certain of DHCS' lntellectual Property in
existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement. Except as otherwise set forth herein,
Contractor shall not use any of DHCS' lntellectual Property now existing or hereafter existing for
any purposes without the prior written permission of DHCS. Except as othenrvise set forth
herein, neither the Contractor nor DHCS shall give any ownership interest in or rights to
its lntellectual Property to the other Party. lf during the term of this Agreement, Contractor
accesses any third-party lntellectual Property that is licensed to DHCS, Contractor agrees to

Page 10 of26



Department of Health care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

abide by all license and confidentiality restrictions applicable to DHCS in the third-party's license
agreement.

(4) Contractor agrees to cooperate with DHCS in establishing or maintaining DHCS' exclusive
rights in the lntellectual Property, and in assuring DHCS' sole rights against third parties with
respect to the lntellectual Property. lf the Contractor enters into any agreements or
subcontracts with other parties in order to perform this Agreement, Contractor shall require the
terms of the Agreement(s) to include all lntellectual Property provisions. Such terms must
include, but are not limited to, the subcontractor assigning and agreeing to assign to DHCS all
rights, title and interest in lntellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to
practice by the subcontractor, Contractor or DHCS and which result directly or indirectly from
this Agreement or any subcontract.

(5) Contractor further agrees to assist and cooperate with DHCS in all reasonable respects, and
execute all documents and, subject to reasonable availability, give testimony and take all further
acts reasonably necessary to acquire, transfer, maintain, and enforce DHCS' lntellectual
Property rights and interests.

b. Retained Rights / License Rights

(1) Except for lntellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by
Contractor or DHCS and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement, Contractor shall
retain title to all of its lntellectual Property to the extent such lntellectual Property is in existence
prior to the effective date of this Agreement. Contractor hereby grants to DHCS, without
additional compensation, a permanent, non-exclusive, royalty free, paid-up, worldwide,
irrevocable, perpetual, non-terminable license to use, reproduce, manufacture, sell, offer to sell,
import, export, modify, publicly and privately display/perform, distribute, and dispose
Contractor's lntellectual Property with the right to sublicense through multiple layers, for any
purpose whatsoever, to the extent it is incorporated in the lntellectual Property resulting from
this Agreement, unless Contractor assigns all rights, title and interest in the lntellectual Property
as set forth herein.

(2) Nothing in this provision shall restrict, limit, or otherwise prevent Contractor from using any
ideas, concepts, know-how, methodology or techniques related to its performance under this
Agreement, provided that Contractor's use does not infringe the patent, copyright, trademark
rights, license or other lntellectual Property rights of DHCS or third party, or result in a breach or
default of any provisions of this Exhibit or result in a breach of any provisions of law relating to
confidentiality.

c. Gopyright

(1) Contractor agrees that for purposes of copyright law, all works [as defined in Paragraph a,
subparagraph (2Xa) of this provisionl of authorship made by or on behalf of Contractor in
connection with Contractor's performance of this Agreement shall be deemed "works made for
hire". Contractor further agrees that the work of each person utilized by Contractor in
connection with the performance of this Agreement will be a "work made for hire," whether that
person is an employee of Contractor or that person has entered into an agreement with
Contractor to perform the work. Contractor shall enter into a written agreement with any such
person that: (i) allwork performed for Contractor shall be deemed a "work made for hire" under
the Copyright Act and (ii) that person shall assign all right, title, and interest to DHCS to any
work product made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or DHCS and
which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement.

(2) All materials, including, but not limited to, visual works or text, reproduced or distributed
pursuant to this Agreement that include lntellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or
reduced to practice by Contractor or DHCS and which result directly or indirectly from this
Agreement, shall include DHCS' notice of copyright, which shall read in 3mm or larger typeface:
"@ [Enter Current Year e.g., 2010, etc.], California Department of Health Care Services. This
material may not be reproduced or disseminated without prior written permission from the
California Department of Health Care Services." This notice should be placed prominently on

Page11of26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

the materials and set apart from other matter on the page where it appears. Audio productions
shall contain a similar audio notice of copyright.

d. Patent Rights

With respect to inventions made by Contractor in the performance of this Agreement, which did not
result from research and development specifically included in the Agreement's scope of work,
Contractor hereby grants to DHCS a license as described under Section b of this provision for
devices or material incorporating, or made through the use of such inventions. lf such inventions
result from research and development work specifically included within the Agreement's scope of
work, then Contractor agrees to assign to DHCS, without additional compensation, all its right, title
and interest in and to such inventions and to assist DHCS in securing United States and foreign
patents with respect thereto.

e. Third-Party Intellectual Property

Except as provided herein, Contractor agrees that its performance of this Agreement shall not be
dependent upon or include any lntellectual Property of Contractor or third party without first: (i)
obtaining DHCS' prior written approval; and (ii) granting to or obtaining for DHCS, without additional
compensation, a license, as described in Section b of this provision, for any of Contractor's or third-
party's lntellectual Property in existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement. lf such a
license upon the these terms is unattainable, and DHCS determines that the lntellectual Property
should be included in or is required for Contractor's performance of this Agreement, Contractor shall
obtain a license under terms acceptable to DHCS.

f. Warranties

(1) Contractor represents and warrants that:

(a) lt is free to enter into and fully perform this Agreement.

(b) lt has secured and will secure all rights and licenses necessary for its performance of this
Agreement.

(c) Neither Contractor's performance of this Agreement, nor the exercise by either Party of the
rights granted in this Agreement, nor any use, reproduction, manufacture, sale, offer to sell,
import, export, modification, public and private display/performance, distribution, and
disposition of the lntellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to
practice by Contractor or DHCS and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement
will infringe upon or violate any lntellectual Property right, non-disclosure obligation, or other
proprietary right or interest of any third-party or entity now existing under the laws of, or
hereafter existing or issued by, any state, the United States, or any foreign country. There
is currently no actual or threatened claim by any such third party based on an alleged
violation of any such right by Contractor.

(d) Neither Contractor's performance nor any part of its performance will violate the right of
privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against any person or entity.

(e) lt has secured and will secure all rights and licenses necessary for lntellectual Property
including, but not limited to, consents, waivers or releases from all authors of music or
performances used, and talent (radio, television and motion picture talent), owners of any
interest in and to real estate, sites, locations, property or props that may be used or shown.

(f) lt has not granted and shall not grant to any person or entity any right that would or might
derogate, encumber, or interfere with any of the rights granted to DHCS in this Agreement.

(g) lt has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that state funds will not be used
in the performance of this Agreement for the acquisition, operation or maintenance of
computer software in violation of copyright laws.

Page 12 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

(h) lt has no knowledge of any outstanding claims, licenses or other charges, liens, or
encumbrances of any kind or nature whatsoever that could affect in any way Contractor's
performance of this Agreement.

(2) DHCS MAKES NO WARRANTY THAT THE INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RESULTING FROM
THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT INFRINGE UPON ANY PATENT, TRADEMARK,
COPYRIGHT OR THE LIKE, NOW EXISTING OR SUBSEQUENTLY ISSUED.

S. lntellectual Property lndemnity

(1) Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless DHCS and its licensees and assignees,
and its officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives, successors, and users of its
products, ("lndemnitees") from and against all claims, actions, damages, losses, liabilities (or
actions or proceedings with respect to any thereof), whether or not rightful, arising from any and
all actions or claims by any third party or expenses related thereto (including, but not limited to,
all legal expenses, court costs, and attorney's fees incurred in investigating, preparing, serving
as a witness in, or defending against, any such claim, action, or proceeding, commenced or
threatened) to which any of the lndemnitees may be subject, whether or not Contractor is a
party to any pending or threatened litigation, which arise out of or are related to (i) the
incorrectness or breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements of
Contractor pertaining to lntellectual Property; or (ii) any lntellectual Property infringement, or any
other type of actual or alleged infringement claim, arising out of DHCS' use, reproduction,
manufacture, sale, offer to sell, distribution, import, export, modification, public and private
performance/display, license, and disposition of the lntellectual Property made, conceived,
derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or DHCS and which result directly or
indirectly from this Agreement. This indemnity obligation shall apply irrespective of whether the
infringement claim is based on a patent, trademark or copyright registration that issued after the
effective date of this Agreement. DHCS reserves the right to participate in and/or control, at
Contractor's expense, any such infringement action brought against DHCS.

(2) Should any lntellectual Property licensed by the Contractor to DHCS under this Agreement
become the subject of an lntellectual Property infringement claim, Contractor will exercise its
authority reasonably and in good faith to preserve DHCS' right to use the licensed lntellectual
Property in accordance with this Agreement at no expense to DHCS. DHCS shall have the right
to monitor and appear through its own counsel (at Contractor's expense) in any such claim or
action. ln the defense or settlement of the claim, Contractor may obtain the right for DHCS to
continue using the licensed lntellectual Property; or, replace or modify the licensed lntellectual
Property so that the replaced or modified lntellectual Property becomes non-infringing provided
that such replacement or modification is functionally equivalent to the original licensed
lntellectual Property. lf such remedies are not reasonably available, DHCS shall be entitled to a
refund of all monies paid under this Agreement, without restriction or limitation of any other
rights and remedies available at law or in equity.

(3) Contractor agrees that damages alone would be inadequate to compensate DHCS for breach of
any term of this lntellectual Property Exhibit by Contractor. Contractor acknowledges DHCS
would suffer irreparable harm in the event of such breach and agrees DHCS shall be entitled to
obtain equitable relief, including without limitation an injunction, from a court of competent
jurisdiction, without restriction or limitation of any other rights and remedies available at law or in
equity.

h. Federal Funding

ln any agreement funded in whole or in part by the federal government, DHCS may acquire and
maintain the lntellectual Property rights, title, and ownership, which results directly or indirectly from
the Agreement; except as provided in 37 Code of Federal Regulations part 401.14; however, the
federal government shall have a non-exclusive, nontransferable, irrevocable, paid-up license
throughout the world to use, duplicate, or dispose of such lntellectual Property throughout the world
in any manner for governmental purposes and to have and permit others to do so.

Page 13 of26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

i. Survival

The provisions set forth herein shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement or any
project schedule.

11. Air or Water Pollution Requirements

Any federally funded agreement and/or subcontract in excess of $100,000 must comply with the
following provisions unless said agreement is exempt by law.

Government contractors agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements
issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 USC 7606) section 508 of the Clean Water Act
(33 U.S.C. '1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations.

b. lnstitutions of higher education, hospitals, nonprofit organizations and commercial businesses agree
to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under the Clean Air Act (42
U.S.C. 7401 et seq.), as amended, and the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 el seq.), as amended.

12. Prior Approval of Training Seminars, Workshops or Conferences

Contractor shall obtain prior DHCS approval of the location, costs, dates, agenda, instructors,
instructional materials, and attendees at any reimbursable training seminar, workshop, or conference
conducted pursuant to this Agreement and of any reimbursable publicity or educational materials to be
made available for distribution. The Contractor shall acknowledge the support of the State whenever
publicizing the work under this Agreement in any media. This provision does not apply to necessary
staff meetings or training sessions held for the staff of the Contractor or Subcontractor to conduct
routine business matters.

13. Gonfidentialityof lnformation

a. The Contractor and its employees, agents, or subcontractors shall protect from unauthorized
disclosure names and other identifying information concerning persons either receiving services
pursuant to this Agreement or persons whose names or identifying information become available or
are disclosed to the Contractor, its employees, agents, or subcontractors as a result of services
performed under this Agreement, except for statistical information not identifying any such person.

b. The Contractor and its employees, agents, or subcontractors shall not use such identifying
information for any purpose other than carrying out the Contractor's obligations under this
Agreement.

c. The Contractor and its employees, agents, or subcontractors shall promptly transmit to the DHCS
Program Contract Manager all requests for disclosure of such identifying information not emanating
from the client or person.

d. The Contractor shall not disclose, except as otherwise specifically permitted by this Agreement or
authorized by the client, any such identifying information to anyone other than DHCS without prior
written authorization from the DHCS Program Contract Manager, except if disclosure is required by
State or Federal law.

e. For purposes of this provision, identity shall include, but not be limited to name, identifying number,
symbol, or other identifying particular assigned to the individual, such as finger or voice print or a
photograph.

f. As deemed applicable by DHCS, this provision may be supplemented by additional terms and
conditions covering personal health information (PHl) or personal, sensitive, and/or confidential
information (PSCI). Said terms and conditions will be outlined in one or more exhibits that will either
be attached to this Agreement or incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

Page 14 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

14. Documents, Publications and Written Reports

(Applicable to agreements over $5,000 under which publications, written reports and documents are
developed or produced. Government Code Section 7550.)

Any document, publication or written report (excluding progress reports, financial reports and normal
contractual communications) prepared as a requirement of this Agreement shall contain, in a separate
section preceding the main body of the document, the number and dollar amounts of all contracts or
agreements and subcontracts relating to the preparation of such document or report, if the total cost for
work by nonemployees of the State exceeds $5,000.

15. Dispute Resolution Process

a. A Contractor grievance exists whenever there is a dispute arising from DHCS' action in the
administration of an agreement. lf there is a dispute or grievance between the Contractor and
DHCS, the Contractor must seek resolution using the procedure outlined below.

(1) The Contractor should first informally discuss the problem with the DHCS Program Contract
Manager. lf the problem cannot be resolved informally, the Contractor shall direct its grievance
together with any evidence, in writing, to the program Branch Chief. The grievance shall state
the issues in dispute, the legal authority or other basis for the Contractor's position and the
remedy sought. The Branch Chief shall render a decision within ten (10) working days after
receipt of the written grievance from the Contractor. The Branch Chief shall respond in writing
to the Contractor indicating the decision and reasons therefore. lf the Contractor disagrees with
the Branch Chief's decision, the Contractor may appeal to the second level.

(2) When appealing to the second level, the Contractor must prepare an appeal indicating the
reasons for disagreement with Branch Chief's decision. The Contractor shall include with the
appeal a copy of the Contractor's original statement of dispute along with any supporting
evidence and a copy of the Branch Chief's decision. The appeal shall be addressed to the
Deputy Director of the division in which the branch is organized within ten (10) working days
from receipt of the Branch Chief's decision. The Deputy Director of the division in which the
branch is organized or his/her designee shall meet with the Contractor to review the issues
raised. A written decision signed by the Deputy Director of the division in which the branch is
organized or his/her designee shall be directed to the Contractor within twenty (20) working days
of receipt of the Contractor's second level appeal.

b. lf the Contractor wishes to appeal the decision of the Deputy Director of the division in which the
branch is organized or his/her designee, the Contractor shall follow the procedures set forth in
Health and Safety Code Section 100171.

c. Unless otherwise stipulated in writing by DHCS, all dispute, grievance and/or appeal
correspondence shall be directed to the DHCS Program Contract Manager.

d. There are organizational differences within DHCS' funding programs and the management levels
identified in this dispute resolution provision may not apply in every contractual situation. When a
grievance is received and organizational differences exist, the Contractor shall be notified in writing
by the DHCS Program Contract Manager of the level, name, and/or title of the appropriate
management official that is responsible for issuing a decision at a given level.

16. Financial and Compliance Audit Requirements

a. The definitions used in this provision are contained in Section 38040 of the Health and Safety Code,
which by this reference is made a part hereof.

b. Direct service contract means a contract or agreement for services contained in local assistance or
subvention programs or both (see Health and Safety [H&S] Code Section 38020). Direct service
contracts shall not include contracts, agreements, grants, or subventions to other governmental
agencies or units of government nor contracts or agreements with regional centers or area agencies
on aging (H&S Code Section 38030).

Page 15 of26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

c. The Contractor, as indicated below, agrees to obtain one of the following audits:

(1) lf the Contractor is a nonprofit organization (as defined in H&S Code Secfion 38040) and
receives $25.000 or more from anv State aqencv under a direct service contract or aqreement;
the Contractor agrees to obtain an annual single, organization wide, financial and compliance
audit. Said audit shall be conducted according to Generally Accepted Auditing Standards. This
audit does not fulfill the audit requirements of Paragraph c(3) below. The audit shall be
completed by the 1Sth day of the fifth month following the end of the Contractor's fiscal year,
and/or

(2) lt the Contractor is a nonprofit organization (as defined in H&S Code Secfion 38040) and
receives less than $25.000 per vear from anv State aqency under a direct service contract or
aqreement, the Contractor agrees to obtain a biennial single, organization wide financial and
compliance audit, unless there is evidence of fraud or other violation of state law in connection
with this Agreement. This audit does not fulfill the audit requirements of Paragraph c(3) below.
The audit shall be completed by the 15th day of the fifth month following the end of the
Contractor's fiscal year, and/or

(3) If the Contractor rb a Sfafe or Local Government entity or Nonprofit organization (as
defined by the Federal Office of Management and Budget IOMB] Circular A-133) and
expends $500,000 or more in Federal awards, the Contractor agrees to obtain an annual single,
organization wide, financial and compliance audit according to the requirements specified in
OMB Circular A-133 entitled "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations". An audit conducted pursuant to this provision will fulfill the audit requirements
outlined in Paragraphs c(1) and c(2) above. The audit shall be completed by the end of the
ninth month following the end of the audit period. The requirements of this provision apply if:

(a) The Contractor is a recipient expending Federal awards received directly from Federal
awarding agencies, or

(b) The Contractor is a subrecipient expending Federal awards received from a pass-through
entity such as the State, County or community based organization.

(4) lf the Contractor submits to DHCS a report of an audit other than an OMB A-133 audit, the
Contractor must also submit a certification indicating the Contractor has not expended $500,000
or more in federal funds for the year covered by the audit report.

d. Two copies of the audit report shall be delivered to the DHCS program funding this Agreement. The
audit report must identify the Contractor's legal name and the number assigned to this Agreement.
The audit report shall be due within 30 days after the completion of the audit. Upon receipt of said
audit report, the DHCS Program Contract Manager shall forward the audit report to DHCS'Audits
and lnvestigations Unit if the audit report was submitted under Section 16.c(3), unless the audit
report is from a City, County, or Special District within the State of California whereby the report will
be retained by the funding program.

The cost of the audits described herein may be included in the funding for this Agreement up to the
proportionate amount this Agreement represents of the Contractor's total revenue. The DHCS
program funding this Agreement must provide advance written approval of the specific amount
allowed for said audit expenses.

The State or its authorized designee, including the Bureau of State Audits, is responsible for
conducting agreement performance audits which are not financial and compliance audits.
Performance audits are defined by Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards.

g. Nothing in this Agreement limits the State's responsibility or authority to enforce State law or
regulations, procedures, or reporting requirements arising thereto.

h. Nothing in this provision limits the authority of the State to make audits of this Agreement, provided
however, that if independent audits arranged for by the Contractor meet Generally Accepted
Governmental Auditing Standards, the State shall rely on those audits and any additional audit work
and shall build upon the work already done.

Page 16 of 26



Deparlment of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

The State may, at its option, direct its own auditors to perform either of the audits described above.
The Contractor will be given advance written notification, if the State chooses to exercise its option
to perform said audits.

The Contractor shall include a clause in any agreement the Contractor enters into with the audit firm
doing the single organization wide audit to provide access by the State or Federal Government to
the working papers of the independent auditor who prepares the single organization wide audit for
the Contractor.

k. Federal or state auditors shall have "expanded scope auditing" authority to conduct specific program
audits during the same period in which a single organization wide audit is being performed, but the
audit report has not been issued. The federal or state auditors shall review and have access to the
current audit work being conducted and will not apply any testing or review procedures which have
not been satisfied by previous audit work that has been completed.

The term "expanded scope auditing" is applied and defined in the U.S. GeneralAccounting Office
(GAO) issued Standards for Audit of Government Organizations, Programs, Activities and
Functions, better known as the "yellow book".

17. Human Subjects Use Requirements

(Applicable only to federally funded agreements/grants in which performance, directly or through a
subcontracVsubaward, includes any tests or examination of materials derived from the human body.)

By signing this Agreement, Contractor agrees that if any performance under this Agreement or any
subcontract or subagreement includes any tests or examination of materials derived from the human
body for the purpose of providing information, diagnosis, prevention, treatment or assessment of
disease, impairment, or health of a human being, all locations at which such examinations are
performed shall meet the requirements of 42 U.S.C. Section 263a (CLIA) and the regulations
thereunder.

18. NovationRequirements

lf the Contractor proposes any novation agreement, DHCS shall act upon the proposal within 60 days
after receipt of the written proposal. DHCS may review and consider the proposal, consult and
negotiate with the Contractor, and accept or reject all or part of the proposal. Acceptance or rejection of
the proposal may be made orally within the 60-day period and confirmed in writing within five days of
said decision. Upon written acceptance of the proposal, DHCS will initiate an amendment to this
Agreement to formally implement the approved proposal.

19. Debarment and Suspension Gertification

(Applicable to all agreements funded in part or whole with federal funds.)

a. By signing this Agreement, the Contractor/Grantee agrees to comply with applicable federal
suspension and debarment regulations including, but not limited to 2 CFR 180,2 CFR 376

b. By signing this Agreement, the Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency;

(2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal/agreement been
convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State
or local) violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes; er commission of embezzlement, theft,
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion,
receiving stolen property, making false claims, obstruction of justice, or the commission of any

Page 17 of26



Department of Health Care Services - Special TErms and conditions Exhibit D(F)

other offense indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously affects its
business honesty;

(3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in Paragraph b(2)
herein; and

(4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal/agreement had one or
more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(5) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal/agreement, engaged in
any of the violations listed under 2 CFR Part 180, Subpart C as supplemented by 2 CFR Part
376.

(6) Shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed
for debarment under federal regulations (i.e., 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4), debarred,
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in such transaction,
unless authorized by the State.

(7) Will include a clause entitled, "Debarment and Suspension Certification" that essentially sets
forth the provisions herein, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower
tier covered transactions.

c. lf the Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, the Contractor shall
submit an explanation to the DHCS Program Contract Manager.

d. The terms and definitions herein have the meanings set out in 2 CFR Part 180 as supplemented by
2 CFR Part 376.

e. lf the Contractor knowingly violates this certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal Government, the DHCS may terminate this Agreement for cause or default.

20. Smoke-Free Workplace Certification

(Applicable to federally funded agreements/grants and subcontracts/subawards, that provide health, day
care, early childhood development services, education or library services to children under 18 directly or
through local governments.)

a. Public Law 103-227, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be
permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an entity and
used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, early childhood development
services, education or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by
federal programs either directly or through state or local governments, by federal grant, contract,
loan, or loan guarantee. The law also applies to children's services that are provided in indoor
facilities that are constructed, operated, or maintained with such federal funds. The law does not
apply to children's services provided in private residences; portions of facilities used for inpatient
drug or alcohol treatment; service providers whose sole source of applicable federal funds is
Medicare or Medicaid; or facilities where WIC coupons are redeemed.

b. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary
penalty of up to $1,000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance
order on the responsible party.

c. By signing this Agreement, Contractor or Grantee certifies that it will comply with the requirements
of the Act and will not allow smoking within any portion of any indoor facility used for the provision of
services for children as defined by the Act. The prohibitions herein are effective
December 26,1994.

d. Contractor or Grantee further agrees that it will insert this certification into any subawards
(subcontracts or subgrants) entered into that provide for children's services as described in the Act.

Page 18 of 26



Department of Health Care Services . Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

21. Covenant Against Gontingent Fees

(Applicable only to federally funded agreements.)

The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to
soliciUsecure this Agreement upon an agreement of understanding for a commission, percentage,
brokerage, or contingent fee, except bona fide employees or bona fde established commercial or selling
agencies retained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this
warranty, DHCS shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to deduct
from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission,
percentage, and brokerage or contingent fee.

22. Payment Withholds

(Applicable only if a final report is required by this Agreement. Not applicable to government entities.)

Unless waived or otherwise stipulated in this Agreement, DHCS may, at its discretion, withhold 10
percent (10%) of the face amount of the Agreement, 50 percent (50%) of the final invoice, or $3,000
whichever is greater, until DHCS receives a final report that meets the terms, conditions and/or scope of
work requirements of this Agreement.

23. PerformanceEvaluation

(Not applicable to grant agreements.)

DHCS may, at its discretion, evaluate the performance of the Contractor at the conclusion of this
Agreement. lf performance is evaluated, the evaluation shall not be a public record and shall remain on
file with DHCS. Negative performance evaluations may be considered by DHCS prior to making future
contract awards.

24. Officials Not to Benefit

No members of or delegate of Congress or the State Legislature shall be admitted to any share or part
of this Agreement, or to any benefit that may arise therefrom. This provision shall not be construed to
extend to this Agreement if made with a corporation for its general benefits.

25. Four-Digit Date Gompliance

(Applicable to agreements in which lnformation Technology (lT) services are provided to DHCS or if lT
equipment is procured.)

Contractor warrants that it will provide only Four-Digit Date Compliant (as defined below) Deliverables
and/or services to the State. "Four Digit Date compliant" Deliverables and services can accurately
process, calculate, compare, and sequence date data, including without limitation date data arising out
of or relating to leap years and changes in centuries. This warranty and representation is subject to the
warranty terms and conditions of this Contract and does not limit the generality of warranty obligations
set forth elsewhere herein.

26. Prohibited Use of State Funds for Software

(Applicable to agreements in which computer software is used in performance of the work.)

Contractor certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that state funds will
not be used in the performance of this Agreement for the acquisition, operation or maintenance of
computer software in violation of copyright laws.

27. Use of Small, Minority Owned and Women's Businesses

(Applicable to that portion of an agreement that is federally funded and entered into with institutions of
higher education, hospitals, nonprofit organizations or commercial businesses.)

Page 19 of26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

Positive efforts shall be made to use small businesses, minority-owned firms and women's business
enterprises, whenever possible (i.e., procurement of goods and/or services). Contractors shall take all
of the following steps to further this goal.

(1) Ensure that small businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's business enterprises are used to
the fullest extent practicable.

(2) Make information on forthcoming purchasing and contracting opportunities available and arrange
time frames for purchases and contracts to encourage and facilitate participation by small
businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's business enterprises.

(3) Consider in the contract process whether firms competing for larger contracts intend to subcontract
with small businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's business enterprises.

(4) Encourage contracting with consortiums of small businesses, minority-owned firms and women's
business enterprises when a contract is too large for one of these firms to handle individually.

(5) Use the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Federal Small
Business Administration and the U.S. Department of Commerce's Minority Business Development
Agency in the solicitation and utilization of small businesses, minority-owned firms and women's
business enterprises.

28. AlienlneligibilityCertification

(Applicable to sole proprietors entering federally funded agreements.)

By signing this Agreement, the Contractor certifies that he/she is not an alien that is ineligible for state
and local benefits, as defined in Subtitle B of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Act. (8

U.S.C. 1601, et seq.)

29. Union Organizing

(Applicable only to grant agreements.)

Grantee, by signing this Agreement, hereby acknowledges the applicability of Government Code
Sections 16645 through 16649 to this Agreement. Furthermore, Grantee, by signing this Agreement,
hereby certifies that:

a. No state funds disbursed by this grant will be used to assist, promote or deter union organizing.

b. Grantee shall account for state funds disbursed for a specific expenditure by this grant, to show
those funds were allocated to that expenditure.

c. Grantee shall, where state funds are not designated as described in b herein, allocate, on a pro-rata
basis, all disbursements that support the grant program.

d. lf Grantee makes expenditures to assist, promote or deter union organizing, Grantee will maintain
records sufficient to show that no state funds were used for those expenditures, and that Grantee
shall provide those records to the Attorney General upon request.

30. Gontract Uniformity (Fringe Benefit Allowability)

(Applicable only to nonprofit organizations.)

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 7 (commencing with Section 100525) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of
Division 101 of the Health and Safety Code, DHCS sets forth the following policies, procedures, and
guidelines regarding the reimbursement of fringe benefits.

As used herein fringe benefits shall mean an employment benefit given by one's employer to an
employee in addition to one's regular or normal wages or salary.

Page 20 of 26



Department of Health Care Sewices . Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

b. As used herein, fringe benefits do not include

(1) Compensation for personal services paid currently or accrued by the Contractor for services of
employees rendered during the term of this Agreement, which is identified as regular or normal
salaries and wages, annual leave, vacation, sick leave, holidays, jury duty and/or military
leave/training.

(2) Directo/s and executive committee member's fees.
(3) lncentive awards and/or bonus incentive pay.
(4) Allowances for off-site pay.
(5) Location allowances.
(6) Hardship pay.
(7) Cost-of-living differentials

c. Specific allowable fringe benefits include:

(1) Fringe benefits in the form of employer contributions for the employer's portion of payroll taxes
(i.e., FICA, SUl, SDI), employee health plans (i.e., health, dental and vision), unemployment
insurance, worker's compensation insurance, and the employer's share of pension/retirement
plans, provided they are granted in accordance with established written organization policies
and meet all legal and lnternal Revenue Service requirements.

d. To be an allowable fringe benefit, the cost must meet the following criteria

(1) Be necessary and reasonable for the performance of the Agreement.
(2) Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
(3) Be consistent with policies that apply uniformly to all activities of the Contractor

e. Contractor agrees that all frinqe benefits shall be at actual cost.

f. Earned/AccruedCompensation

(1) Compensation for vacation, sick leave and holidays is limited to that amount earned/accrued within
the agreement term. Unused vacation, sick leave and holidays earned from periods prior to the
agreement term cannot be claimed as allowable costs. See Provision f (3Xa) for an example.

(2) For multiple year agreements, vacation and sick leave compensation, which is earned/accrued but
not paid, due to employee(s) not taking time off may be carried over and claimed within the overall
term of the multiple years of the Agreement. Holidays cannot be carried over from one agreement
year to the next. See Provision f (3)(b) for an example.

(3) For single year agreements, vacation, sick leave and holiday compensation that is earned/accrued
but not paid, due to employee(s) not taking time off within the term of the Agreement, cannot be
claimed as an allowable cost. See Provision f (3)(c) for an example.

(a) Example No. 1

lf an employee, John Doe, earns/accrues three weeks of vacation and twelve days of sick leave
each year, then that is the maximum amount that may be claimed during a one year agreement.
lf John Doe has five weeks of vacation and eighteen days of sick leave at the beginning of an
agreement, the Contractor during a one-year budget period may only claim up to three weeks of
vacation and twelve days of sick leave as actually used by the employee. Amounts
earned/accrued in periods prior to the beginning of the Agreement are not an allowable cost.

(b) Example No.2

lf during a three-year (multiple year) agreement, John Doe does not use his three weeks of
vacation in year one, or his three weeks in year two, but he does actually use nine weeks in year
three; the Contractor would be allowed to claim all nine weeks paid for in year three. The total
compensation over the three-year period cannot exceed 156 weeks (3 x 52 weeks).

Page 21 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

(c) Example No.3

lf during a single year agreement, John Doe works fifty weeks and used one week of vacation
and one week of sick leave and all fifty-two weeks have been billed to DHCS, the remaining
unused two weeks of vacation and seven days of sick leave may not be claimed as an allowable
cost.

31. Suspension or Stop Work Notification

a. DHCS may, at any time, issue a notice to suspend performance or stop work under this Agreement.
The initial notification may be a verbal or written directive issued by the funding Program's Contract
Manager. Upon receipt of said notice, the Contractor is to suspend and/or stop all, or any part, of
the work called for by this Agreement.

b. Written confirmation of the suspension or stop work notification with directions as to what work (if
not all) is to be suspended and how to proceed will be provided within 30 working days of the verbal
notification. The suspension or stop work notification shall remain in effect until further written
notice is received from DHCS. The resumption of work (in whole or part) will be at DHCS' discretion
and upon receipt of written confirmation.

(1) Upon receipt of a suspension or stop work notification, the Contractor shall immediately comply
with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize or halt the incurrence of costs allocable
to the performance covered by the notification during the period of work suspension or

. stoppage.

(2) Within 90 days of the issuance of a suspension or stop work notification, DHCS shall either:

(a) Cancel, extend, or modify the suspension or stop work notification; or

(b) Terminate the Agreement as provided for in the Cancellation / Termination clause of the
Agreement.

c. lf a suspension or stop work notification issued under this clause is canceled or the period of
suspension or any extension thereof is modified or expires, the Contractor may resume work only
upon written concurrence of funding Program's Contract Manager.

d. lf the suspension or stop work notification is cancelled and the Agreement resumes, changes to the
services, deliverables, performance dates, and/or contract terms resulting from the suspension or
stop work notification shall require an amendment to the Agreement.

e. lf a suspension or stop work notification is not canceled and the Agreement is cancelled or
terminated pursuant to the provision entitled Cancellation / Termination, DHCS shall allow
reasonable costs resulting from the suspension or stop work notification in arriving at the settlement
costs.

f. DHCS shall not be liable to the Contractor for loss of profits because of any suspension or stop work
notification issued under this clause.

32. PublicGommunications

Electronic and printed documents developed and produced, for public communications shall follow the
following requirements to comply with Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act and the American with
Disabilities Act:

Ensure visual-impaired, hearing-impaired and other special needs audiences are provided material
information in formats that provide the most assistance in making informed choices.

33. Lobbying Restrictions and Disclosure Gertification

(Applicable to federally funded agreements in excess of $100,000 per Section 1352 ol the 31 , U.S.C.)

Page22 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

a. Certification and Disclosure Requirements

(1) Each person (or recipient) who requests or receives a contract or agreement, subcontract,
grant, or subgrant, which is subject to Section 1352 of the 31, U.S.C., and which exceeds
$100,000 at any tier, shall file a certification (in the form set forth in Attachment 1, consisting of
one page, entitled "Certification Regarding Lobbying") that the recipient has not made, and will
not make, any payment prohibited by Paragraph b of this provision.

(2) Each recipient shall file a disclosure (in the form set forth in Attachment 2, entitled "Standard
Form-LLL 'disclosure of Lobbying Activities"') if such recipient has made or has agreed to make
any payment using nonappropriated funds (to include profits from any covered federal action) in
connection with a contract, or grant or any extension or amendment of that contract, or grant,
which would be prohibited under Paragraph b of this provision if paid for with appropriated
funds.

(3) Each recipient shall file a disclosure form at the end of each calendar quarter in which there
occurs any event that requires disclosure or that materially affect the accuracy of the
information contained in any disclosure form previously filed by such person under Paragraph
a(2) herein. An event that materially affects the accuracy of the information reported includes:

(a) A cumulative increase of $25,000 or more in the amount paid or expected to be paid for
influencing or attempting to influence a covered federal action;

(b) A change in the person(s) or individuals(s) influencing or attempting to influence a covered
federalaction; or

(c) A change in the office(s), employee(s), or member(s) contacted for the purpose of
influencing or attempting to influence a covered federal action.

(4) Each person (or recipient)who requests or receives from a person referred to in Paragraph a(1)
of this provision a contract or agreement, subcontract, grant or subgrant exceeding $100,000 at
any tier under a contract or agreement, or grant shall file a certification, and a disclosure form, if
required, to the next tier above.

(5) All disclosure forms (but not certifications) shall be forwarded from tier to tier until received by
the person referred to in Paragraph a(1) of this provision. That person shall forward all
disclosure forms to DHCS Program Contract Manager.

b. Prohibition

Section 1352of Title 31, U.S.C., provides in part that no appropriated funds may be expended by
the recipient of a federal contract or agreement, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with any of the following covered federal actions: the awarding of any federal contract or
agreement, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of
any federal contract or agreement, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

Page 23 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

Attachment 1

State of California
Department of Health Gare Services

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) NoFederalappropriatedfundshavebeenpaidorwillbepaid,byoronbehalfoftheundersigned,to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the
making, awarding or entering into of this Federal contract, Federal grant, or cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of this Federal contract, grant, or cooperative
agreement.

(2) lf any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency of the United States Government, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and
submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontractors, subgrants, and contracts under grants and
cooperative agreements) of $100,000 or more, and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S.C., any person who fails to file the required certification shall
be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Name of Contractor Printed Name of Person Signing for Contraclor

Contract / Grant Number Signature of Person Signing for Contraclor

Date Title

After execution by or on behalf of Contractor, please return to:

California Department of Health Care Services

DHCS reserves the right to notifiy the contractor in writing of an alternate submission address

Page 24 of 26



Departmont of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions

Attachment 2

Exhibit D(F)

Approved by OMB

034E-0M6

CERTIFICATION REGARDI NG LOBBYI NG
Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C

(See reverse for public burden disclosure)
1352

Type of Federal Action:

I ] a. contract
b. grant
c. cooperativeagreement
d. loan
e. loan guarantee
f. loan insurance

2, Status of Federal Action:

t I a. bid/offer/application
b. initial award
c. poslaward

3. Report Type:

I I a. initial filing
b. material change

For Material Change Only:

Year _ quarter _
date of last report _.

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:

E Prime E Subawardee
Tier _, if known:

Condressinnrl Distri.J lf knoum'

5. lf Reporting Entig in No. 4 is Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

Conoressional Disirict. lf known:

6. FederalDeparlmenUAgency 7. FederalProgramName/Description:

CDFA Number, if applicable: _
8. Federal Action Number, if known: L Award Amount, if known

$

10.a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant
(lf individual, last name, lirst name, Ml):

b. lndividuals Performing Services (including address if
different from 10a.
(Last name, First name, Ml):

11. lnformalion requested through this form is authorized by title 31

U.S.C. sec,lion 1352. This disclosure of lobbying aciivities is a material
representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier
above when this transaclion was made or entered into. This
disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This informalion
will be available for public inspec{ion. Any person that fails io file the
required disclosure shall be subjecl to a not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Telephone No.:

Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form-LLL (Rev. 7-97)

Page 25 of 26



Department of Health Care Services - Special Terms and Conditions Exhibit D(F)

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF.LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the inil:ation or receipt of a covered Federal

action,oramaterial changetoapreviousfiling,pursuanttotille3lU.S.C.section1352. Thefilingof aformisrequiredforeachpaymentoragreementtomake
payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting lo influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in conneclion with a covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both lhe initial liling and

material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

ldentify the lype of covered Federal ac{ion for which lobbing aclivity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal aclion.

ldentify the status of the covered Federal action.

ldentify lhe appropriateclassification of this report. lf this is a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the
year and quarler in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporling entity for this covered Federal aclion.

1.

2.

3.

4. Enterthefull name, address, city, Staieand zipcodeof the reporting entity. lncludeCongressional District, if known. Checkthe
of the reporting entity lhat designates if itis, or expects to be,a prime or subaward recipient. ldentify the tier of ihe subawardee, e.g
theprimeisthelsttier. Subawardsincludebutarenotlimitedtosubcontracts,subgrantsandconiraclawardsundergrants.

appropriate classifi cation
.. the first subawardee of

6.

lf lhe organization filing the report in ilem 4 checks "Subawardee," then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal recipienl.
lnclude Congressional District, if known.

Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. lnclude at leasl one organizationallevel below agency name, if known. For
example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.

Enler the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal aclion (item 1). lf known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) number for granls, cooperative agreements, Ioans, and loan commitments.

Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identitied in item 1 (e.9., Request for Proposal (RFP) number;
lnvitation for Bid (lFB) number; grant announcement number; lhe contract, granl, or loan award number; lhe application/proposal control number assigned
by the Federal agency). lnclude pretixes, e.g.,'RFP-DE-90-001".

9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan
commitment for the prime entity identilied in item 4 or 5.

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, Slale and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Aci of 1995 engaged by the reporting
entity idenlified in item 4 to intluence the covered Federal aclion.

(b) Enter lhe full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 1 0 (a). Enter Last Name, Firsl Name, and Middle
lnitial (Ml).

1 1. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no
persons are required to respond to a collection of information

7

8.

Page 26 of 26



County of lnyo
17-94074 A{01

Exhibit E A1
Additional Provisions

1. Amendment Process

The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) may amend the Contract.

Should either party, during the term of this Contract, desire a change or amendment
to the terms of this Contract, such changes or amendments shall be proposed in
writing to the other party, who will respond in writing as to whether the proposed
changes/amendments are accepted or rejected. lf accepted and after negotiations
are concluded, the agreed upon changes shall be made through the DHCS's official
contract amendment process. No amendment will be considered binding on either
party until it is formally approved by the both parties and the Department of General
Services (DGS), if DGS approval is required.

A contract amendment shall be required to change encumbered amounts for each
year of a multi-year contract period.

The Contractor may request Contract amendments until May 1 of each of the
Contract's fiscal years. An amendment proposed by either the Contractor or DHCS
shall be forwarded in writing to the other party

1) The Contractor's proposed amendment shall include the proposed changes
and a statement of the reason for the proposed change.

2) Amendments shall be duly approved by the County Board of Supervisors or
its authorized designee, and signed by a duly authorized representative.

Contractor shall return an executed Contract amendment to DHCS within 90
calendar days from the date of its issuance.

Contractor acknowledges that any newly allocated funds that are in excess of the
initial amount for each fiscal year shall not be encumbered if DHCS does not receive
a fully executable Contract amendment on or before June 30, 2O2O.

G DHCS shall settle costs for substance use disorder services based on the year-end
cost settlement report as the final amendment to the approved single State/County
Contract.

2. Gancellation / Termination

This Contract may be cancelled by DHCS without cause upon 30 calendar days
advance written notice to the Contractor.

DHCS reserves the right to cancel or terminate this Contract immediately for cause

The term "for cause" shall mean that the Contractor fails to meet the terms,
conditions, and/or responsibilities of this Contract.

A.

B.

c

D

E

F

A.

B.

C.

Page I of 4



D

E

F

G

County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit E A1
Additional Provisions

Contract termination or cancellation shall be effective as of the date indicated in
DHCS' notification to the Contractor. The notice shall stipulate any final
performance, invoicing or payment requirements.

Upon receipt of a notice of termination or cancellation, the Contractor shall take
immediate steps to stop performance and to cancel or reduce subsequent Contract
costs.

ln the event of early termination or cancellation, the Contractor shall be entitled to
payment for all allowable costs authorized under this Contract and incurred up to the
date of termination or cancellation, including authorized non-cancelable obligations,
provided such expenses do not exceed the stated maximum amounts payable.

ln the event of changes in law that affect provisions of this Contract, the parties
agree to amend the affected provisions to conform to the changes in law retroactive
to the effective date of such changes in law. The parties further agree that the terms
of this Contract are severable and in the event that changes in law render provisions
of the Contract void, the unaffected provisions and obligations of this Contract will
remain in fullforce and effect.

H. The following additional provisions regarding termination apply to this Contract:

1) ln the event the Federal Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as DHHS), or DHCS determines Contractor does not
meet the requirements for participation in the Drug Medi-Cal (DMC)
Treatment Program, DHCS will terminate payments for services provided
pursuant to Exhibit A, Attachment l, Part l, of this Contract for cause.

2) Contractor's obligations to provide covered services under this Contract shall
automatically terminate on the etfective date of any termination of this
Contract. Contractor shall be responsible for providing or arranging for
covered services to beneficiaries until the effective date of termination or
expiration of the Contract.

Contractor shall be responsible for processing and paying invoices and
statements for covered services and utilization reviews until the effective date
of termination or expiration of the Contract.

3) ln the event this Contract is terminated, Contractor shall refer DMC clients to
providers who are certified to provide the type(s) of services the client has
been receiving.

l. ln the event this Contract is terminated, Contractor shall deliver its entire fiscal and
program records pertaining to the performance of this Contract to DHCS, which will
retain the records for the required retention period.

Avoidance of Conflicts of lnterest by Contractor

Page 2 of 4

3



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit E Al
Additional Provisions

A. DHCS intends to avoid any real or apparent conflict of interest on the part of the
Contractor, subcontractors, or employees, officers and directors of the Contractor or
subcontractors. Thus, DHCS reserves the right to determine, at its sole discretion,
whether any information, assertion or claim received from any source indicates the
existence of a real or apparent conflict of interest; and, if a conflict is found to exist,
to require the Contractor to submit additional information or a plan for resolving the
conflict, subject to DHCS review and prior approval.

B. Conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to:

1) An instance where the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, or any
employee, officer, or director of the Contractor or any subcontractor has an
interest, financial or otherwise, whereby the use or disclosure of information
obtained while performing services under the Contract would allow for private
or personal benefit or for any purpose that is contrary to the goals and
objectives of the Contract.

An instance where the Contractor's or any subcontractor's employees,
otficers, or directors use their positions for purposes that are, or give the
appearance of being, motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or
others, such as those with whom they have family, business or other ties.

lf DHCS is or becomes aware of a known or suspected conflict of interest, the
Contractor will be given an opportunity to submit additional information or to resolve
the conflict. A Contractor with a suspected conflict of interest will have five (5)
working days from the date of notification of the conflict by DHCS to provide
complete information regarding the suspected conflict. lf a conflict of interest is
determined to exist by DHCS and cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of DHCS,
the conflict will be grounds for terminating the Contract. DHCS may, at its discretion
upon receipt of a written request from the Contractor, authorize an extension of the
timeline indicated herein.

D Contractor acknowledges that state laws on conflict of interest, found in the Political
Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et seq.), Public Contract Code
Section 10365.5, and Government Code Section 1090, apply to this Contract.

4, Freeze Exemptions

A Contractor agrees that any hiring freeze not mandated by the State during the term
of this Contract shall not be applied to the positions funded, in whole or part, by this
Contract.

Contractor agrees not to implement any personnel policy, which may adversely
affect performance or the positions funded, in whole or part, by this Contract.

Contractor agrees that any travel freeze or travel limitation policy adopted by the

Page 3 of 4

2)

c

B.

C.



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit E A1
Additional Provisions

Contractor during the term of this Contract shall not restrict travel funded, in whole or
part, by this Contract.

D Contractor agrees that any purchasing freeze or purchase limitation policy adopted
by the Contractor during the term of this Contract shall not restrict or limit purchases
funded, in whole or part, by this Contract.

5. Domestic Partners

This provision supersedes and replaces Provision 7 (Domestic Partners) in the Department
of General Services' Contractor Certification Clauses incorporated by reference within the
General Terms and Conditions (GTC) cited on the face of the Contract. Based upon an
existing program exemption from Chapter 2 of Part2 of Division 2 of the Public Contract
Code that applies to this Contract, DHCS concludes that this Contract is not subject to the
requirements of Public Contract Code Section 10295.3 governing domestic partners.

6. Force Majeure

Neither party shall be responsible for delays or failures in performance resulting from acts
beyond the control of the offending party. Such acts shall include but not be limited to acts
of God, fire, flood, earthquake, other natural disaster, nuclear accident, strike, lockout, riot,
freight-embargo, related-utility, or governmental statutes or regulations super-imposed after
the fact. lf a delay or failure in performance by the Contractor arises out of a default of its
subcontractor, and if such default of its subcontractor, arises out of causes beyond the
control of both the Contractor and subcontractor, and without the fault or negligence of
either of them, the Contractor shall not be liable for damages of such delay or failure,
unless the supplies or services to be furnished by the subcontractor were obtainable from
other sources in sufficient time to permit the Contractor to meet the required performance
schedule.

ldentification of Gontractor vers us S u breci pient

DHCS has classified this Gontract as a procurement contract. Therefore, the
Contractor is considered a contractor. and not a subrecipient. for the purposes of
U.S. Office of Manaqement and Budqet Uniform Guidance pursuant to 2 CFR 200.330

7

Page 4 of 4



County of lnyo

17-94074 401

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

This Exhibit F is intended to protect the privacy and security of specified Department
information that the Contractor may access, receive, or transmit under this
Agreement. The Department information covered under this Exhibit F consists of: (1)
Protected Health lnformation (PHl) as defined under the Health lnsurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 ("H|PAA") and (2) Personal
lnformation (Pl) as defined under the California lnformation Practices Act (CIPA), at
California Civil Code Section 1798.3.

Exhibit F consists of the following parts:

1. Exhibit F-1, HIPAA Business Associate Addendum, which provides for the
privacy and security of PHl.

2. Exhibit F-2 provides for the privacy and security of Pl under Civil Code Section
1798.3(a) and 1798.29.

3. Exhibit F-3, Miscellaneous Provision, sets forth additional terms and conditions
that extend to the provisions of Exhibit F in its entirety.

Page 1 of32



1. Recitals

County of lnyo

17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1
Privacy and Information Security Provisions

F-l
HIPAA Business Associate Addendum

A business associate relationship under the Health lnsurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 ("H|PA4";, the Health

lnformation Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, Public Law

111-005 ("the HITECH Act"),42 U.S.C. Section 17921 et seq., and their
implementing privacy and security regulations at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164

("the HIPAA regulations") and the Final Omnibus Rule of 2013 between
Department and Contractor arises only to the extent that Contractor creates,

receives, maintains, transmits, uses or discloses PHI or ePHl on the
Department's behalf, or provides services, arranges, performs, or assists in

the performance of functions or activities on behalf of the Department that
are included in the definition of "business associate" in 45 CFR. 160.103
where the provision of the service involves the disclosure of PHI or
ePHl from the Department, including but not limited to, utilization review,
quality assurance, or benefit management. To the extent Contractor
performs these services, functions, and activities on behalf of Department,
Contractor is the Business Associate of the Department, acting on the
Department's behalf. The Department and Contractor are each a party to
this Agreement and are collectively referred to as the "parties." A business
associate is also directly liable and subject to civil penalties for failing to

safeguard electronic protected health information in accordance with the
HIPAA Security Rule. A "business associate" also is a subcontractor that
creates, receives, maintains, or transmits protected health information on

behalf of another business associate. Business Associate shall incorporate,
when applicable, the relevant provisions of this Addendum into each

subcontract or sub-award to such agents, subcontractors and vendors,
including the requirement that any security incidents or breaches of
unsecured PHI or Pl be reported to Business Associate.

A

Page 2 of 32



B

Coun$ of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

The Department wishes to disclose to Contractor certain information
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, some of which may constitute
Protected Health lnformation ("PHl'), including protected health
information in electronic media ("ePHl"), under Federal law, to be used or
disclosed in the course of providing services and activities as set forth in
Section 1.A. of Exhibit F-1 of this Agreement. This information is
hereafter referred to as "Department PHl".

The purpose of this Exhibit F-1 is to protect the privacy and security of
the PHI and ePHI that may be created, received, maintained, transmitted,
used or disclosed pursuant to this Agreement, and to comply with certain
standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, and the HIPAA
regulations and the Final Omnibus Rule of 2O13, including, but not
limited to, the requirement that the Department must enter into a contract
containing specific requirements with the Contractor prior to the
disclosure of PHI to Contractor, as set forth in 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164
and the HITECH Act and the Final Omnibus Rule of 2013. To the extent
that data is both PHI or ePHl and Personally ldentifying lnformation, both
Exhibit F-2 and this Exhibit F-1 shall apply.

The terms used in this Exhibit F-1, but not otherwise defined, shall have
the same meanings as those terms have in the HIPAA regulations. Any
reference to statutory or regulatory language shall be to such language
as in effect or as amended.

c

D

2. Definitions.

A.

B

c

Breach shall have the meaning given to such term under HIPAA,
the HITECH Act, the HIPAA regulations and the Final Omnibus
Rule of 2013.

Business Associate shall have the meaning given to such term under
HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA regulations and the Final Omnibus
Rule of 2013.

Department PHI shall mean Protected Health lnformation or Electronic
Protected Health lnformation, as defined below, accessed by Contractor
in a database maintained by the Department, received by Contractor
from the Department or acquired or created by Contractor in connection
with performing the functions, activities and services on behalf of the
Department as specified in Section 1.A. of Exhibit F-1 of this Agreement.
The terms PHI as used in this document shall mean Department PHl.

Page 3 of 32



D

E.

F

County of lnyo
17-94074 At01

Exhibit F Al
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

Electronic Health Records shall have the meaning given to such term in
the HITECH Act, including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17921
and implementing regulations.

Electronic Protected Health lnformation (ePHl) means individually
identifiable health information transmitted by electronic media or
maintained in electronic media, including but not limited to
electronic media as set forth under 45 CFR section 160.103.

lndividually ldentifiable Health lnformation means health information,
including demographic information collected from an individual, that is
created or received by a health care provider, health plan, employer, or
health care clearinghouse, and relates to the past, present, or future
physical or mental health or condition of an individual, the provision of
health care to an individual, or the past, present, or future payment for
the provision of health care to an individual, that identifies the individual
or where there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be
used to identify the individual, as set forth under 45 CFR Section
160.103.

Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulations that are found at 45 CFR
Parts 160 and 164, subparts A and E.

Protected Health lnformation (PHl) means individually identifiable
health information that is transmitted by electronic media, maintained in
electronic media, or is transmitted or maintained in any other form or
medium, as set forth under 45 CFR Section 160.103 and as defined
under HIPAA.

Required by law means a mandate contained in law that compels an
entity to make a use or disclosure of PHI that is enforceable in a court of
law. This includes, but is not limited to, court orders and court-ordered
warrants, subpoenas or summons issued by a court, grand jury, a
governmental or tribal inspector general, or an administrative body
authorized to require the production of information, and a civil or an
authorized investigative demand. lt also includes Medicare conditions of
participation with respect to health care providers participating in the
program, and statutes or regulations that require the production of
information, including statutes or regulations that require such information
if payment is sought under a government program providing public
benefits.

G

H

Page 4 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 A01

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

Secretary means the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services ("HHS") or the Secretary's designee.

Security lncident means the attempted or successful unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of Department PHl,
or confidential data utilized by Contractor to perform the services,
functions and activities on behalf of Department as set forth in Section
1.A. of Exhibit F-1 of this Agreement; or interference with system
operations in an information system that processes, maintains or stores
Department PHl.

Security Rule shall mean the HIPAA regulations that are found at 45 CFR
Parts 160 and 164.

M Unsecured PHI shall have the meaning given to such term under the
HITECH Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 17932(h), any guidance issued by the
Secretary pursuant to such Act and the HIPAA regulations.

3. Terms of Agreement.

A. Permitted Uses and Disclosures of Department PHI by Contractor.

Except as otherwise indicated in this Exhibit F-1, Contractor may use or
disclose Department PHI only to perform functions, activities, or services
specified in Section 1.A of Exhibit F-1 of this Agreement, for, or on behalf
of the Department, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate
the HIPAA regulations or the limitations set forth in 42 CFR Part2, or any
other applicable law, if done by the Department. Any such use or
disclosure, if not for purposes of treatment activities of a health care
provider as defined by the Privacy Rule, must, to the extent practicable, be
limited to the limited data set, as defined in 45 CFR Section 16a.51a@)Q),
or, if needed, to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended
purpose of such use or disclosure, in compliance with the HITECH Act
and any guidance issued pursuant to such Act, and the HIPAA
regulations.

Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions. Except as otherwise indicated
in this Exhibit F-1, Contractor may:

1) Use and Disclose for Management and Administration. Use and
disclose Department PHI for the proper management and
administration of the Contractor's business, provided that such
disclosures are required by law, or the Contractor obtains

J

K.

L

B

Page 5 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 Ai01

Exhibit F Al
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is
disclosed, in accordance with section D(7) of this Exhibit F-1, that it
will remain confidential and will be used or further disclosed only as
required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the
person, and the person notifies the Contractor of any instances of
which it is aware that the confidentiality of the information has been
breached.

Provision of Data Aggregation Services. Use Department PHI to
provide data aggregation services to the Department to the extent
requested by the Department and agreed to by Contractor. Data
aggregation means the combining of PHI created or received by the
Contractor, as the Business Associate, on behalf of the Department
with PHI received by the Business Associate in its capacity as the
Business Associate of another covered entity, to permit data
analyses that relate to the health care operations of the Department

C. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures.

1) Contractor shall not disclose Department PHI about an individual
to a health plan for payment or health care operations purposes if
the Department PHI pertains solely to a health care item or
service for which the health care provider involved has been paid
out of pocket in full and the individual requests such restriction, in
accordance with 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(a) and 45 CFR Section
164.522(a).

2) Contractor shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in
exchange for Department PHl.

D. ResponsibilitiesofContractor.

Contractor agrees:

2)

2)

1) Nondisclosure. Not to use or disclose Department PHI other
than as permitted or required by this Agreement or as required
by law, including but not limited to 42 CFR Part2.

Compliance with the HIPAA Security Rule. To implement
administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably
and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and
availability of the Department PHl, including electronic PHl, that it
creates, receives, maintains, uses or transmits on behalf of the

Page 6 of 32



3)

County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

Department, in compliance with 45 CFR Sections 164.308,
164.310 and 164.312, and to prevent use or disclosure of
Department PHI other than as provided for by this Agreement.
Contractor shall implement reasonable and appropriate policies
and procedures to comply with the standards, implementation
specifications and other requirements of 45 CFR Section 164,
subpart C, in compliance with 45 CFR Section 164.316. Contractor
shall develop and maintain a written information privacy and
security program that includes administrative, technical and
physical safeguards appropriate to the size and complexity of the
Contractor's operations and the nature and scope of its activities,
and which incorporates the requirements of section 3, Security,
below. Contractor will provide the Department with its current and
updated policies upon request.

Security. Contractor shall take any and all steps necessary to
ensure the continuous security of all computerized data systems
containing PHI and/or Pl, and to protect paper documents
containing PHI and/or Pl. These steps shall include, at a minimum

a. Complying with all of the data system security precautions
listed in Attachment A, Data Security Requirements.

b. Achieving and maintaining compliance with the HIPAA
Security Rule (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), as necessary in
conducting operations on behalf of DHCS under this
Agreement.

c. Providing a level and scope of security that is at least
comparable to the level and scope of security established by
the Office of Management and Budget in OMB Circular No.
A-130, Appendix lll - Security of FederalAutomated
lnformation Systems, which sets forth guidelines for
automated information systems in Federal agencies.

Security Officer. Contractor shall designate a Security Officer to
oversee its data security program who shall be responsible for
carrying out the requirements of this section and for communicating
on security matters with the Department.

Mitigation of Harmful Effects. To mitigate, to the extent
practicable, any harmful effect that is known to Contractor of a use
or disclosure of Department PHI by Contractor or its subcontractors
in violation of the requirements of this Exhibit F.

4)

5)

Page 7 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F Al
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

6) Reporting Unauthorized Use or Disclosure. To report to
Department any use or disclosure of Department PHI not provided
for by this Exhibit F of which it becomes aware.

7) Contractor's Agents and Subcontractors

a To enter into written agreements with any agents, including
subcontractors and vendors to whom Contractor provides
Department PHl, that impose the same restrictions and
conditions on such agents, subcontractors and vendors that
apply to Contractor with respect to such Department PHI
under this Exhibit F, and that require compliance with all
applicable provisions of HIPAA, the HITECH Act the HIPAA
regulations, and the Final Omnibus Rule of 2013 including
the requirement that any agents, subcontractors or vendors
implement reasonable and appropriate administrative,
physical, and technical safeguards to protect such PHl. As
required by HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA regulations
and the Final Omnibus Rule of 2013, including 45 CFR
Sections 164.308 and 1 64.314, Contractor shall
incorporate, when applicable, the relevant provisions of this
Exhibit F-1 into each subcontract or sub-award to such
agents, subcontractors and vendors, including the
requirement that any security incidents or breaches of
unsecured PHI be reported to Contractor.

ln accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.504(e)(1)(ii), upon
Contractor's knowledge of a material breach or violation by
its subcontractor of the agreement between Contractor and
the subcontractor, Contractor shall:

ii)

Provide an opportunity for the subcontractor to cure
the breach or end the violation and terminate the
agreement if the subcontractor does not cure the
breach or end the violation within the time specified
by the Department; or

lmmediately terminate the agreement if the
subcontractor has breached a material term of the
agreement and cure is not possible.

Availability of lnformation to the Department and lndividuals to
Provide Access and lnformation:

b

i)

8)

Page 8 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 A01

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

ct- To provide access as the Department may require, and in

the time and manner designated by the Department (upon
reasonable notice and during Contractor's normal
business hours) to Department PHI in a Designated
Record Set, to the Department (or, as directed by the
Department), to an lndividual, in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.524. Designated Record Set means the group
of records maintained for the Department health plan
under this Agreement that includes medical, dental and
billing records about individuals; enrollment, payment,
claims adjudication, and case or medical management
systems maintained for the Department health plan for
which Contractor is providing services under this
Agreement; or those records used to make decisions
about individuals on behalf of the Department. Contractor
shall use the forms and processes developed by the
Department for this purpose and shall respond to requests
for access to records transmitted by the Department within
fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the request by
producing the records or verifying that there are none.

lf Contractor maintains an Electronic Health Record with
PHl, and an individual requests a copy of such
information in an electronic format, Contractor shall
provide such information in an electronic format to enable
the Department to fulfill its obligations under the HITECH
Act, including but not limited lo, 42 U.S.C. Section
17935(e) and the HIPAA regulations.

9) Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records.
Contractor agrees to comply with all confidentiality requirements set
forth in Tille 42 Code of Federal Regulations, Chapter l, Subchapter
A, Part 2. Contractor is aware that criminal penalties may be
imposed for a violation of these confidentiality requirements.

10) Amendment of Department PHl. To make any amendment(s) to
Department PHI that were requested by a patient and that the
Department directs or agrees should be made to assure
compliance with 45 CFR Section 164.526, in the time and manner
designated by the Department, with the Contractor being given a
minimum of twenty days within which to make the amendment.

b

Page 9 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F Al
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

11) lnternal Practices. To make Contractor's internal practices,
books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of
Department PHI available to the Department or to the Secretary,
for purposes of determining the Department's compliance with
the HIPAA regulations. lf any information needed for this
purpose is in the exclusive possession of any other entity or
person and the other entity or person fails or refuses to furnish
the information to Contractor, Contractor shall provide written
notification to the Department and shall set forth the efforts it
made to obtain the information.

12) Documentation of Disclosures. To document and make
available to the Department or (at the direction of the Department)
to an individual such disclosures of Department PHl, and
information related to such disclosures, necessary to respond to a
proper request by the subject lndividual for an accounting of
disclosures of such PHl, in accordance with the HITECH Act and
its implementing regulations, including but not limited to 45 CFR
Section 164.528 and 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(c). lf Contractor
maintains electronic health records for the Department as of
January 1, 2009 and later, Contractor must provide an accounting
of disclosures, including those disclosures for treatment, payment
or health care operations. The electronic accounting of
disclosures shall be for disclosures during the three years prior to
the request for an accounting.

13) Breaches and Security lncidents. During the term of this
Agreement, Contractor agrees to implement reasonable
systems for the discovery and prompt reporting of any breach
or security incident, and to take the following steps:

lnitial Notice to the Department. (1) To notify the
Department immediately by telephone call or email or
fax upon the discovery of a breach of unsecured PHI in
electronic media or in any other media if the PHI was, or is
reasonably believed to have been, accessed or acquired by
an unauthorized person. (2) To notify the Department
within 24 hours by email or fax of the discovery of any
suspected security incident, intrusion or unauthorized
access, use or disclosure of PHI in violation of this
Agreement or this Exhibit F-1 or potential loss of
confidential data affecting this Agreement. A breach shall
be treated as discovered by Contractor as of the first day on

a

Page 10 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 Ai01

Exhibit F Al
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

b.

which the breach is known, or by exercising reasonable
diligence would have been known, to any person (other
than the person committing the breach)who is an
employee, officer or other agent of Contractor.

Notice shall be provided to the lnformation Protection Unit,
Office of HIPAA Compliance. lf the incident occurs after
business hours or on a weekend or holiday and involves
electronic PHl, notice shall be provided by calling the
lnformation Protection Unit (916) 445-4646, (866) 866-
0602 or by emailing privacvofficer@dhcs.ca.gov. Notice
shall be made using the DHCS "Privacy lncident Report"
form, including all information known at the time.
Contractor shall use the most current version of this form,
which is posted on the DHCS lnformation Security Officer
website (www.dhcs.ca.gov, then select "Privacy" in the left
column and then "Business Partner" near the middle of the
page) or use this link:
http://www.d hcs.ca.qov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Paoes/DH
CS B usi nessAssociatesOn ly. aspx

Upon discovery of a breach or suspected security incident,
intrusion or unauthorized access, use or disclosure of
Department PHl, Contractor shall take:

i) Prompt corrective action to mitigate any risks or
damages involved with the breach and to protect the
operating environment.

ii) Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure
required by applicable Federal and State laws and
regulations.

lnvestigation and lnvestigation Report. To
immediately investigate such suspected security incident,
security incident, breach, or unauthorized access, use or
disclosure of PHl. Within 72 hours of the discovery,
Contractor shall submit an updated "Privacy lncident
Report" containing the information marked with an
asterisk and all other applicable information listed on the
form, to the extent known at that time, to the lnformation
Protection Unit.

Page 11 of32



County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

c.

d

Complete Report. To provide a complete report of the
investigation to the Department Program Contract Manager
and the lnformation Protection Unit within ten working days of
the discovery of the breach or unauthorized use or disclosure.
The report shall be submitted on the "Privacy lncident Report"
form and shall include an assessment of all known factors
relevant to a determination of whether a breach occurred
under applicable provisions of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, and
the HIPAA regulations. The report shall also include a full,
detailed corrective action plan, including information on
measures that were taken to halt and/or contain the improper
use or disclosure. lf the Department requests information in
addition to that listed on the "Privacy lncident Report" form,
Contractor shall make reasonable efforts to provide the
Department with such information. lf, because of the
circumstances of the incident, Contractor needs more than
ten working days from the discovery to submit a complete
report, the Department may grant a reasonable extension of
time, in which case Contractor shall submit periodic updates
until the complete report is submitted. lf necessary, a
Supplemental Report may be used to submit revised or
additional information after the completed report is submitted,
by submitting the revised or additional information on an
updated "Privacy lncident Report" form. The Department will
review and approve the determination of whether a breach
occurred and whether individual notifications and a corrective
action plan are required.

Responsibility for Reporting of Breaches, lf the cause of a
breach of Department PHI is attributable to Contractor or its
agents, subcontractors or vendors, Contractor is responsible
for all required reporting of the breach as specified in 42
U.S.C. section 17932 and its implementing regulations,
including notification to media outlets and to the Secretary
(after obtaining prior written approval of DHCS). lf a breach
of unsecured Department PHI involves more than 500
residents of the State of California or under its jurisdiction,
Contractor shall first notify DHCS, then the Secretary of the
breach immediately upon discovery of the breach. lf a breach
involves more than 500 California residents, Contractor shall
also provide, after obtaining written prior approval of DHCS,
notice to the Attorney General for the State of California,
Privacy Enforcement Section. lf Contractor has reason to

Page 12 of 32



Coun$ of lnyo
17-94074 Al01

Exhibit F A1
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

e

believe that duplicate reporting of the same breach or incident
may occur because its subcontractors, agents, or vendors
may report the breach or incident to the Department in
addition to Contractor, Contractor shall notify the Department,
and the Department and Contractor may take appropriate
action to prevent duplicate reporting.

Responsibility for Notification of Affected lndividuals. lf
the cause of a breach of Department PHI is attributable to
Contractor or its agents, subcontractors or vendors and
notification of the affected individuals is required under state
or Federal law, Contractor shall bear all costs of such
notifications as well as any costs associated with the
breach. In addition, the Department reserves the right to
require Contractor to notify such affected individuals, which
notifications shall comply with the requirements set forth in
42U.S.C. section 17932 and its implementing regulations,
including, but not limited to, the requirement that the
notifications be made without unreasonable delay and in no
event later than 60 calendar days after discovery of the
breach. The Department Privacy Officer shall approve the
time, manner and content of any such notifications and their
review and approval must be obtained before the
notifications are made. The Department will provide its
review and approval expeditiously and without
unreasonable delay.

Department Contact lnformation. To direct
communications to the above referenced Department staff,
the Contractor shall initiate contact as indicated herein. The
Department reserves the right to make changes to the
contact information below by giving written notice to the
Contractor. Said changes shall not require an amendment
to this Addendum or the Agreement to which it is
incorporated.

f

Page 13o132



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

14) Termination of Agreement. ln accordance with Section
13404(b) of the HITECH Act and to the extent required by the
HIPAA regulations, if Contractor knows of a material breach or
violation by the Department of this Exhibit F-1, it shall take the
following steps.

Provide an opportunity for the Department to cure the breach
or end the violation and terminate the Agreement if the
Department does not cure the breach or end the violation
within the time specified by Contractor or

lmmediately terminate the Agreement if the Department has
breached a material term of the Exhibit F-1 and cure is not
possible.

15) Sanctions and/or Penalties. Contractor understands that a
failure to comply with the provisions of HIPAA, the HITECH Act
and the HIPAA regulations that are applicable to Contractors may
result in the imposition of sanctions and/or penalties on Contractor
under HIPAA, the HITECH Act and the HIPAA regulations.

E. Obligations of the Department.

The Department agrees to

a

b

Department
Program Contract
Manaoer

DHCS Privacy Officer DHCS lnformation Security
Officer

See the Exhibit A,
Scope of Work for
Program Contract
Manager
information

lnformation Protection Unit
c/o: Office of HIPAA
Compliance Department of
Health Care Services
P.O. Box 997413, MS 4722
Sacramento, CA 95899-741 3
(916) 445-4646; (866) 866-
0602

Email:
privacvofficer@d hcs. ca. qov

Fax: (916) 440-7680

lnformation Security Officer
DHCS lnformation Security Office
P.O. Box 997413, MS 6400
Sacramento, CA 95899-741 3

Email: iso@dhcs.ca.qov

Telephone: ITSD Service Desk (916)
440-70oo; (800) 579-
o874

Fax: (916) 440-5537

Page 14 ot 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

1) Permission by lndividuals for Use and Disclosure of PHl.
Provide the Contractor with any changes in, or revocation of,
permission by an lndividual to use or disclose Department PHl, if
such changes affect the Contractor's permitted or required uses
and disclosures.

Notification of Restrictions. Notify the Contractor of any
restriction to the use or disclosure of Department PHI that the
Department has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect the
Contractor's use or disclosure of PHl.

Requests Conflicting with HIPAA Rules. Not request the
Contractor to use or disclose Department PHI in any manner that
would not be permissible under the HIPAA regulations if done by
the Department.

4) Notice of Privacy Practices. Provide Contractor with the web link
to the Notice of Privacy Practices that DHCS produces in
accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, as well as any changes
to such notice. Visit the DHCS website to view the most current
Notice of Privacy Practices at:
http://www.d hcs. ca. qov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Paqes/NoticeofPriv
acvPractices.aspx or the DHCS website at www.dhcs.ca.gov
(select "Privacy in the right column and "Notice of Privacy
Practices" on the right side of the page).

F. Audits, lnspection and Enforcement.

lf Contractor is the subject of an audit, compliance review, or complaint
investigation by the Secretary or the Office for Civil Rights, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, that is related to the
performance of its obligations pursuant to this HIPAA Business
Associate Exhibit F-l,Contractor shall immediately notify the
Department. Upon request from the Department, Contractor shall
provide the Department with a copy of any Department PHI that
Contractor, as the Business Associate, provides to the Secretary or the
Office of Civil Rights concurrently with providing such PHI to the
Secretary. Contractor is responsible for any civil penalties assessed due
to an audit or investigation of Contractor, in accordance with 42 U.S.C.
Section 17934(c).

2)

3)

Page 15 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

G. Termination.

1)

2)

Term. The Term of this Exhibit F-1 shall extend beyond the
termination of the Agreement and shall terminate when all
Department PHI is destroyed or returned to the Department, in
accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.504(e)(2xiiXJ).

Termination for Cause. ln accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.504(e)(1Xiii), upon the Department's knowledge of a material
breach or violation of this Exhibit F-1 by Contractor, the Department
shall:

Provide an opportunity for Contractor to cure the breach or
end the violation and terminate this Agreement if
Contractor does not cure the breach or end the violation
within the time specified by the Department or

lmmediately terminate this Agreement if Contractor has
breached a material term of this Exhibit F-1 and cure is not
possible.

a

b

Page 16o132



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

1,

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

F-2
Privacy and Security of Personal lnformation and Personally ldentifiable

lnformation Not Subject to HIPAA

Recitals.

ln addition to the Privacy and Security Rules underthe Health lnsurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) the Department is
subject to various other legal and contractual requirements with respect to
the personal information (Pl) and personally identifiable information (Pll) it
maintains. These include:

1) The California lnformation Practices Act of 1977 (California Civil
Code SS1798 et seq.).

2) Title 42 CFR, Chapter l, Subchapter A, Part2.

The purpose of this Exhibit F-2 is to set forth Contractor's privacy and
security obligations with respect to Pl and Pll that Contractor may create,
receive, maintain, use, or disclose for, or on behalf of Department,
pursuant to this Agreement. Specifically this Exhibit applies to Pl and Pll
which is not Protected Health lnformation (PHl) as defined by HIPAA and
therefore is not addressed in Exhibit F-1 of this Agreement, the HIPAA
Business Associate Addendum; however, to the extent that data is both
PHI or ePHl and Pll, both Exhibit F-1 and this Exhibit F-2 shall apply

The terms used in this Exhibit F-2, but not otherwise defined, shall have
the same meanings as those terms have in the above referenced statute
and Agreement. Any reference to statutory, regulatory, or contractual
language shall be to such language as in effect or as amended.

2. Definitions

Breach shall have the meaning given to such term under HIPAA, the
HITECH Act, the HIPAA regulations, and the Final Omnibus Rule.

Business Associate shall have the meaning given to such term under
HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA regulations, and the final Omnibus
Rule.

Electronic Health Record shall have the meaning given to such term in the
HITECH Act, including, but not limited to,42 U.S.C Section 17921 and
implementing regulations.

Electronic Protected Health lnformation (ePHl) means individually
identifiable health information transmitted by electronic media or

A.

B

c

A.

B.

c

D

Page 17 of32



E

County of Inyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

maintained in electronic media, including but not limited to electronic
media as set forth under 45 CFR section 160.103.

I ndividually ldentifiable Health lnformation means health information,
including demographic information collected from an individual, that is
created or received by a health care provider, health plan, employer or
health care clearinghouse, and relates to the past, present or future
physical or mental health or condition of an individual, the provision of
health care to an individual, or the past, present, or future payment for the
provision of health care to an individual, that identifies the individual or
where there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used
to identify the individual, as set forth under 45 CFR section 160.103.

Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is found at 45 CFR
Parts 160 and 164.

Personal lnformation (Pl) shall have the meaning given to such term in
California Civil Code section 1798.29.

Protected Health lnformation (PHl) means individually identifiable health
information that is transmitted by electronic media, maintained in
electronic media, or is transmitted or maintained in any other form or
medium, as set forth under 45 CFR section 160.103.

Required by law means a mandate contained in law that compels an entity
to make a use or disclosure of PHI that is enforceable in a court of law.
This includes, but is not limited to, court orders and court-ordered
warrants, subpoenas or summons issued by a court, grand jury, a
governmental or tribal inspector general, or an administrative body
authorized to require the production of information, and a civil or an
authorized investigative demand. lt also includes Medicare conditions of
participation with respect to health care providers participating in the
program, and statutes or regulations that require the production of
information, including statutes or regulations that require such information
if payment is sought under a government program providing public
benefits.

Security lncident means the attempted or successful unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of PHI or Pl, or confidential
data that is essential to the ongoing operation of the Business Associate's
organization and intended for internal use; or interference with system
operations in an information system.

Security Rule shall mean the HIPAA regulation that is found at 45 CFR
Parts 160 and 164.

F

G

H

J

K.

Page 18 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

3. Terms of Agreement.

A. Permitted Uses and Disclosures of Department Pl and Pll by
Contractor

Except as otherwise indicated in this Exhibit F-2, Contractor may use or
disclose Department Pl only to perform functions, activities or services for
or on behalf of the Department pursuant to the terms of this Agreement
provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the California
lnformation Practices Act (CIPA) if done by the Department.

B. Responsibilities of Gontractor

Contractor agrees.

1) Nondisclosure. Not to use or disclose Department Pl or Pll other
than as permitted or required by this Agreement or as required by
applicable state and Federal law.

2l Safeguards. To implement appropriate and reasonable
administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to protect the
security, confidentiality and integrity of Department Pl and Pll, to
protect against anticipated threats or hazards to the security or
integrity of Department Pl and Pll, and to prevent use or disclosure
of Department Pl or Pll other than as provided for by this
Agreement. Contractor shall develop and maintain a written
information privacy and security program that include administrative,
technical and physical safeguards appropriate to the size and
complexity of Contractor's operations and the nature and scope of
its activities, which incorporate the requirements of section 3,

Security, below. Contractor will provide DHCS with its current
policies upon request.

3) Security. Contractor shall take any and all steps necessary to
ensure the continuous security of all computerized data systems
containing PHI and/or Pl, and to protect paper documents containing
PHI and/or Pl. These steps shall include, at a minimum:

a. Complying with all of the data system security precautions
listed in Attachment A, Business Associate Data Security
Requirements;

b. Providing a level and scope of security that is at least
comparable to the level and scope of security established by

Page 19 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 Ai01

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

the Office of Management and Budget in OMB Circular No. A-
130, Appendix lll- Security of Federal Automated lnformation
Systems, which sets forth guidelines for automated
information systems in Federal agencies.

4l Mitigation of Harmful Effects. To mitigate, to the extent
practicable, any harmful effect that is known to Contractor of a use
or disclosure of Department Pl or Pll by Contractor or its
subcontractors in violation of this Exhibit F-2.

5) Gontractor's Agents and Subcontractors. To impose the same
restrictions and conditions set forth in this Exhibit F-2 on any
subcontractors or other agents with whom Contractor subcontracts
any activities under this Agreement that involve the disclosure of
Department Pl or Pll to the subcontractor.

6) Availability of lnformation to DHCS. To make Department Pl
and Pll available to the Department for purposes of oversight,
inspection, amendment, and response to requests for records,
injunctions, judgments, and orders for production of Department Pl
and Pll. lf Contractor receives Department Pll, upon request by
DHCS, Contractor shall provide DHCS with a list of all employees,
contractors and agents who have access to Department Pll,
including employees, contractors and agents of its subcontractors
and agents.

7l Cooperation with DHCS, With respect to Department Pl, to
cooperate with and assist the Department to the extent necessary
to ensure the Department's compliance with the applicable terms of
the CIPA including, but not limited to, accounting of disclosures of
Department Pl, correction of errors in Department Pl, production of
Department Pl, disclosure of a security breach involving
Department Pl and notice of such breach to the affected
individual(s).

8) Gonfidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records.
Contractor agrees to comply with all confidentiality requirements set
forth in Tltle 42 Code of Federal Regulations, Chapter l, Subchapter
A, Part 2. Contractor is aware that criminal penalties may be
imposed for a violation of these confidentiality requirements.

9) Breaches and Security lncidents. During the term of this
Agreement, Contractor agrees to implement reasonable
systems for the discovery and prompt reporting of any breach
or security incident, and to take the following steps:

Page 2O of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

a. lnitial Notice to the Department (1) To notify the Department
immediately by telephone call or email or fax upon the
discovery of a breach of unsecured Department Pl or Pll in
electronic media or in any other media if the Pl or Pll was, or
is reasonably believed to have been, accessed or acquired
by an unauthorized person, or upon discovery of a suspected
security incident involving Department Pll. (2) To notify the
Department within 24 hours by email or fax of the
discovery of any suspected security incident, intrusion or
unauthorized access, use or disclosure of Department Pl or
Pll in violation of this Agreement or this Exhibit F-1 or
potential loss of confidential data affecting this Agreement. A
breach shall be treated as discovered by Contractor as of the
first day on which the breach is known, or by exercising
reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person
(other than the person committing the breach) who is an
employee, officer or other agent of Contractor.

b. Notice shall be provided to the lnformation Protection Unit,
Office of HIPAA Compliance. lf the incident occurs after
business hours or on a weekend or holiday and involves
electronic Department Pl or Pll, notice shall be provided by
calling the Department lnformation Security Officer. Notice
shall be made using the DHCS "Privacy lncident Report"
form, including all information known at the time. Contractor
shall use the most current version of this form, which is
posted on the DHCS lnformation Security Officer website
(www.dhcs.ca.qov, then select "Privacy" in the left column
and then "Business Partne/' near the middle of the page) or
use this link:
http://www.dhcs.ca. qov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Paqes/DHCS
BusinessAssociatesOnlv.aspx .

c Upon discovery of a breach or suspected security incident,
intrusion or unauthorized access, use or disclosure of
Department Pl or Pll, Contractor shall take:

Prompt corrective action to mitigate any risks or damages
involved with the breach and to protect the operating
environment; and

Page 21 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

d

Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure
required by applicable Federal and State laws and
regulations.

lnvestigation and lnvestigation Report. To immediately
investigate such suspected securi$ incident, security
incident, breach, or unauthorized access, use or disclosure of
PHl. Within 72 hours of the discovery, Contractor shall
submit an updated "Privacy lncident Report" containing the
information marked with an asterisk and all other applicable
information listed on the form, to the extent known at that
time, to the Department lnformation Security Officer.

Gomplete Report. To provide a complete report of the
investigation to the Department Program Contract Manager
and the lnformation Protection Unit within ten working days of
the discovery of the breach or unauthorized use or
disclosure. The report shall be submitted on the "Privacy
lncident Report" form and shall include an assessment of all
known factors relevant to a determination of whether a
breach occurred. The report shall also include a full, detailed
corrective action plan, including information on measures that
were taken to halt and/or contain the improper use or
disclosure. lf the Department requests information in addition
to that listed on the "Privacy lncident Report" form, Contractor
shall make reasonable efforts to provide the Department with
such information. lf, because of the circumstances of the
incident, Contractor needs more than ten working days from
the discovery to submit a complete report, the Department
may grant a reasonable extension of time, in which case
Contractor shall submit periodic updates until the complete
report is submitted. lf necessary, a Supplemental Report
may be used to submit revised or additional information after
the completed report is submitted, by submitting the revised
or additional information on an updated "Privacy lncident
Report" form. The Department will review and approve the
determination of whether a breach occurred and whether
individual notifications and a corrective action plan are
required.

Responsibility for Reporting of Breaches. lf the cause of a
breach of Department Pl or Pll is attributable to Contractor or
its agents, subcontractors or vendors, Contractor is

e

f.

Page 22 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

responsible for all required reporting of the breach as
specified in CIPA, section 1798.29. Contractor shall bear all
costs of required notifications to individuals as well as any
costs associated with the breach. The Privacy Officer shall
approve the time, manner and content of any such
notifications and their review and approval must be obtained
before the notifications are made. The Department will
provide its review and approval expeditiously and without
unreasonable delay.

g. lf Contractor has reason to believe that duplicate reporting of
the same breach or incident may occur because its
subcontractors, agents or vendors may report the breach or
incident to the Department in addition to Contractor,
Contractor shall notify the Department, and the Department
and Contractor may take appropriate action to prevent
duplicate reporting.

h. Department Gontact lnformation. To direct communications
to the above referenced Department staff, the Contractor shall
initiate contact as indicated herein. The Department reserves
the right to make changes to the contact information below by
giving written notice to the Contractor. Said changes shall not
require an amendment to this Addendum or the Agreement to
which it is incorporated.

Department
Program
Gontract
Manager

DHCS Privacy Officer DHCS lnformation Security
Officer

See the Exhibit
A, Scope of
Work for
Program
Contract
Manager
information

lnformation Protection Unit
c/o: Office of HIPAA
Compliance Department of
Health Care Services
P.O. Box 997413, MS 4722
Sacramento. CA 95899-741 3
(916) 445-4646
Email:
privacyofficer@d hcs. ca. gov

Telephone: (9 1 6) 445-4646

Fax: (916) 440-7680

lnformation Security Officer
DHCS lnformation Security Office
P.O. Box 997413, MS 6400
Sacramento, CA 95899-741 3

Email: iso@d hcs.ca.oov

Telephone: ITSD Service Desk
(916)440-7000 or
(800) 579-0874

Fax: (916) 440-5537

Page 23 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F Al
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

10) Designation of lndividual Responsible for Security.

Contractor shall designate an individual, (e.9., Security Officer), to
oversee its data security program who shall be responsible for carrying
out the requirements of this Exhibit F-2 and for communicating on
security matters with the Department.

Page 24 of 32



1)

County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

F-3

Miscellaneous Terms and Gonditions

Applicable to Exhibit F

Gonfidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records. Contractor
agrees to comply with all confidentiality requirements set forth in Title 42 Code of
Federal Regulations, Chapter l, Subchapter A, Parl2. Contractor is aware that
criminal penalties may be imposed for a violation of these confidentiality
requirements.

Disclaimer. The Department makes no warranty or representation that compliance
by Contractor with this Exhibit F, HIPAA or the HIPAA regulations will be adequate
or satisfactory for Contractor's own purposes or that any information in Contractor's
possession or control, or transmitted or received by Contractor, is or will be secure
from unauthorized use or disclosure. Contractor is solely responsible for all
decisions made by Contractor regarding the safeguarding of the Department PHl,
Pl and Pll.

Amendment. The parties acknowledge that federal and state laws relating to
electronic data security and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this
Exhibit F may be required to provide for procedures to ensure compliance with such
developments. The parties specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to
implement the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, and the
HIPAA regulations, and other applicable state and Federal laws. Upon either party's
request, the other pafi agrees to promptly enter into negotiations concerning an
amendment to this Exhibit F embodying written assurances consistent with the
standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, and the HIPAA
regulations, and other applicable state and Federal laws. The Department may
terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice in the event:

A) Contractor does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend this
Exhibit F when requested by the Department pursuant to this section; or

B) Contractor does not enter into an amendment providing assurances
regarding the safeguarding of Department PHI that the Department
deems is necessary to satisfy the standards and requirements of HIPAA
and the HIPAA regulations.

Judicial or Administrative Proceedings. Contractor will notify the
Department if it is named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding for a
violation of HIPAA or other security or privacy law. The Department may
terminate this Agreement if Contractor is found guilty of a criminal violation of
HIPAA. The Department may terminate this Agreement if a finding or
stipulation that the Contractor has violated any standard or requirement of

2l

3)

4l

Page25 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

5)

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

HIPAA, or other security or privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil
proceeding in which the Contractor is a party or has been joined. DHCS will
consider the nature and seriousness of the violation in deciding whether or not
to terminate the Agreement.

Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings. Contractor shall
make itself and any subcontractors, employees, or agents assisting Contractor
in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, available to the
Department at no cost to the Department to testify as witnesses, or otherwise,
in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being commenced
against the Department, its directors, officers or employees based upon
claimed violation of HIPAA, or the HIPAA regulations, which involves inactions
or actions by the Contractor, except where Contractor or its subcontractor,
employee or agent is a named adverse party.

6) No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing expressed or implied in the terms and
conditions of this Exhibit F is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein
confer, upon any person other than the Department or Contractor and their
respective successors or assignees, any rights, remedies, obligations or
liabilities whatsoever.

lnterpretation. The terms and conditions in this Exhibit F shall be interpreted
as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, and the HIPAA regulations. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit F shall be resolved in favor of a meaning
that complies and is consistent with HIPAA, the HITECH Act and the HIPAA
regulations, and, if applicable, any other relevant state and Federal laws.

Conflict. ln case of a conflict between any applicable privacy or security rules,
laws, regulations or standards the most stringent shall apply. The most
stringent means that safeguard which provides the highest level of protection
to PHl, Pl and Pll from unauthorized disclosure. Further, Contractor must
comply within a reasonable period of time with changes to these standards
that occur after the effective date of this Agreement.

Regulatory References. A reference in the terms and conditions of this
Exhibit F to a section in the HIPAA regulations means the section as in effect
or as amended.

10) Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Contractor under Section 3,
Item D of Exhibit F-1, and Section 3, ltem B of ExhibltF-2, Responsibilities of
Contractor, shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

7l

8)

s)

Page 26 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 A.01

Exhibit F Al
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

111 No Waiver of Obligations. No change, waiver, or discharge of any liability or
obligation hereunder on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver
of performance of any continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit
enforcement of any obligation, on any other occasion.

121 Audits, lnspection and Enforcement. From time to time, and subject to all
applicable Federal and state privacy and security laws and regulations, the
Department may conduct a reasonable inspection of the facilities, systems,
books and records of Contractor to monitor compliance with this Exhibit F.

Contractor shall promptly remedy any violation of any provision of this Exhibit
F. The fact that the Department inspects, or fails to inspect, or has the right to
inspect, Contractor's facilities, systems and procedures does not relieve
Contractor of its responsibility to comply with this Exhibit F. The Department's
failure to detect a non-compliant practice, or a failure to report a detected non-
compliant practice to Contractor does not constitute acceptance of such
practice or a waiver of the Department's enforcement rights under this
Agreement, including this Exhibit F.

13) Due Diligence. Contractor shall exercise due diligence and shall take
reasonable steps to ensure that it remains in compliance with this Exhibit F and
is in compliance with applicable provisions of HIPAA, the HITECH Act and the
HIPAA regulations, and other applicable state and Federal law, and that its
agents, subcontractors and vendors are in compliance with their obligations as
required by this Exhibit F.

141 Term. The Term of this Exhibit F-1 shall extend beyond the termination of the
Agreement and shall terminate when all Department PHI is destroyed or returned
to the Department, in accordance with 45 CFR Section 16a.50a(e)(2)(ii)(l), and
when all Department Pl and Pll is destroyed in accordance with Attachment A.

15) Effect of Termination. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement for any
reason, Contractor shall return or destroy all Department PHl, Pl and Pll that
Contractor still maintains in any form, and shall retain no copies of such PHl, Pl
or Pll. lf return or destruction is not feasible, Contractor shall notify the
Department of the conditions that make the return or destruction infeasible, and
the Department and Contractor shall determine the terms and conditions under
which Contractor may retain the PHl, Pl or Pll. Contractor shall continue to
extend the protections of this Exhibit F to such Department PHl, Pl and Pll, and
shall limit further use of such data to those purposes that make the return or
destruction of such data infeasible. This provision shall apply to Department PHl,
Pl and Pll that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of Contractor.

Page 27 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

Bus i ness a""o"i#B:lI5S.: rity Req u i rem ents

l. Personnel Controls

Employee Training. All workforce members who assist in the
performance of functions or activities on behalf of DHCS, or access or
disclose DHCS PHI or Pl must complete information privacy and security
training, at least annually, at Business Associate's expense. Each
workforce member who receives information privacy and security training
must sign a certification, indicating the member's name and the date on
which the training was completed. These certifications must be retained
for a period of six (6) years following contract termination.

Employee Discipline. Appropriate sanctions must be applied against
workforce members who fail to comply with privacy policies and
procedures or any provisions of these requirements, including termination
of employment where appropriate.

Confidentiality Statemenf. All persons that will be working with DHCS
PHI or Pl must sign a confidentiality statement that includes, at a
minimum, General Use, Security and Privacy Safeguards, Unacceptable
Use, and Enforcement Policies. The statement must be signed by the
workforce member prior to access to DHCS PHI or Pl. The statement
must be renewed annually. The Contractor shall retain each person's
written confidentiality statement for DHCS inspection for a period of six (6)
years following contract term ination.

D. Background Check. Before a member of the workforce may access
DHCS PHI or Pl, a thorough background check of that worker must be
conducted, with evaluation of the results to assure that there is no
indication that the worker may present a risk to the security or integrity of
confidential data or a risk for theft or misuse of confidential data. The
Contractor shall retain each workforce member's background check
documentation for a period of three (3) years following contract
termination.

ll. Technical Security Controls.

WorkstationlLaptop encryption. All workstations and laptops that
process and/or store DHCS PHI or Pl must be encrypted using a FIPS
140-2 certified algorithm which is 128bit or higher, such as Advanced

A.

B

c

A.

Page28 of 32



B.

c.

D.

County of lnyo

17-94074 Al01

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

Encryption Standard (AES). The encryption solution must be full disk
unless approved by the DHCS lnformation Security Office.

Server Security. Servers containing unencrypted DHCS PHI or Pl must
have sufficient administrative, physical, and technical controls in place to
protect that data, based upon a risk assessmenUsystem security review.

Minimum l\lecessary, Only the minimum necessary amount of DHCS PHI
or Pl required to perform necessary business functions may be copied,
downloaded, or exported.

Removable media devices. All electronic files that contain DHCS PHI or
Pl data must be encrypted when stored on any removable media or
portable device (i.e. USB thumb drives, floppies, CD/DVD, smartphones,
backup tapes etc.). Encryption must be a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm
which is 128bit or higher, such as AES.

Antivirus software. Allworkstations, laptops and other systems that
process and/or store DHCS PHI or Pl must install and actively use
comprehensive anti-virus software solution with automatic updates
scheduled at least daily.

Patch Managemenf. Allworkstations, laptops and other systems that
process and/or store DHCS PHI or Pl must have critical security patches
applied, with system reboot if necessary. There must be a documented
patch management process which determines installation timeframe
based on risk assessment and vendor recommendations. At a maximum,
all applicable patches must be installed within 30 days of vendor release.

User lDs and Password Controls. All users must be issued a unique
user name for accessing DHCS PHI or Pl. Username must be promptly
disabled, deleted, or the password changed upon the transfer or
termination of an employee with knowledge of the password, at maximum
within 24 hours. Passwords are not to be shared. Passwords must be at
least eight characters and must be a non-dictionary word. Passwords
must not be stored in readable format on the computer. Passwords must
be changed every 90 days, preferably every 60 days. Passwords must be
changed if revealed or compromised. Passwords must be composed of
characters from at least three of the following four groups from the
standard keyboard:

. Upper case letters (A-Z)

. Lower case letters (a-z)

E

F

G

Page 29 of 32



H

County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit F Al
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

. Arabic numerals (0-9)

. Non-alphanumericcharacters (punctuation symbols)

Data Destruction. When no longer needed, all DHCS PHI or Pl must be
cleared, purged, or destroyed consistent with NIST Special Publication
800-88, Guidelines for Media Sanitization such that the PHI or Pl cannot
be retrieved.

Sysfem Timeout. The system providing access to DHCS PHI or Pl must
provide an automatic timeout, requiring re-authentication of the user
session after no more than 20 minutes of inactivity.

Warning Banners. All systems providing access to DHCS PHI or Pl must
display a warning banner stating that data is confidential, systems are
logged, and system use is for business purposes only by authorized
users. User must be directed to log off the system if they do not agree
with these requirements.

Sysfem Logging. The system must maintain an automated audit trail
which can identify the user or system process which initiates a request for
DHCS PHI or Pl, or which alters DHCS PHI or Pl. The audit trail must be
date and time stamped, must log both successful and failed accesses,
must be read only, and must be restricted to authorized users. lf DHCS
PHI or Pl is stored in a database, database logging functionality must be
enabled. Audit trail data must be archived for at least 3 years after
occurrence.

Access Controls. The system providing access to DHCS PHI or Pl must
use role based access controls for all user authentications, enforcing the
principle of least privilege.

Transmission encryption. All data transmissions of DHCS PHI or Pl
outside the secure internal network must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2
certified algorithm which is 128bit or higher, such as AES. Encryption can
be end to end at the network level, or the data files containing PHI can be
encrypted. This requirement pertains to any type of PHI or Pl in motion
such as website access, file transfer, and E-Mail.

Intrusion Detection. All systems involved in accessing, holding,
transporting, and protecting DHCS PHI or Pl that are accessible via the
lnternet must be protected by a comprehensive intrusion detection and
prevention solution.

J

K.

L.

M

N

Page 30 of 32



County of lnyo
17-94074 AO1

Exhibit F A1
Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

lll. Audit Controls.

System Security Review. All systems processing and/or storing DHCS
PHI or Pl must have at least an annual system risk assessmenVsecurity
review which provides assurance that administrative, physical, and
technical controls are functioning effectively and providing adequate levels
of protection. Reviews should include vulnerabili$ scanning tools.

Log Reviews, All systems processing and/or storing DHCS PHI or Pl
must have a routine procedure in place to review system logs for
unauthorized access.

Change Control. All systems processing and/or storing DHCS PHI or Pl
must have a documented change control procedure that ensures
separation of duties and protects the confidentiality, integrity and
availability of data.

lV. Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery Controls

Emergency Mode Operation Plan. Contractor must establish a
documented plan to enable continuation of critical business processes and
protection of the security of electronic DHCS PHI or Pl in the event of an
emergency. Emergency means any circumstance or situation that causes
normal computer operations to become unavailable for use in performing
the work required under this Agreement for more than 24 hours.

B. Data Backup Plan. Contractor must have established documented
procedures to backup DHCS PHI to maintain retrievable exact copies of
DHCS PHI or Pl. The plan must include a regular schedule for making
backups, storing backups offsite, an inventory of backup media, and an
estimate of the amount of time needed to restore DHCS PHI or Pl should
it be lost. At a minimum, the schedule must be a weekly full backup and
monthly offsite storage of DHCS data.

V. Paper Document Controls.

A. Superursion of Data. DHCS PHI or Pl in paper form shall not be left
unattended at any time, unless it is locked in a file cabinet, file room, desk
or office. Unattended means that information is not being observed by an
employee authorized to access the information. DHCS PHI or Pl in paper
form shall not be left unattended at any time in vehicles or planes and
shall not be checked in baggage on commercial airplanes.

A.

B.

c.

A.

Page 31 of 32



B

County of lnyo
17-94074 401

Exhibit F A1

Privacy and lnformation Security Provisions

Escorting Visitors. Visitors to areas where DHCS PHI or Pl is contained
shall be escorted and DHCS PHI or Pl shall be kept out of sight while
visitors are in the area.

Confidential Destruction, DHCS PHI or Pl must be disposed of through
confidential means, such as cross cut shredding and pulverizing.

Removal of Data. DHCS PHI or Pl must not be removed from the
premises of the Contractor except with express written permission of
DHCS.

Faxing. Faxes containing DHCS PHI or Pl shall not be left unattended
and fax machines shall be in secure areas. Faxes shall contain a
confidentiality statement notifying persons receiving faxes in error to
destroy them. Fax numbers shall be verified with the intended recipient
before sending the fax.

Mailing. Mailings of DHCS PHI or Pl shall be sealed and secured from
damage or inappropriate viewing of PHI or Pl to the extent possible.
Mailings which include 500 or more individually identifiable records of
DHCS PHI or Pl in a single package shall be sent using a tracked mailing
method which includes verification of delivery and receipt, unless the prior
written permission of DHCS to use another method is obtained.

c

D

E.

F

Page 32 of 32



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
E Consent I Departmental I Conespondence Action E Public Hearing

E Schedule time for E Closed Session E Informational

For ClerKs Use

Only:

AGENDA NUIiIBER

t8

FROM: Public Works Department

FORTHE BOARD MEETTNG OF: t/Yl,A/ZLtl talt ?Dtq
SUBJECT: Approve resolution authorizing and approving the treasury loan to the Public Works Department for the
Independence Water System

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATIONS: Request your Board to:

l. Approve resolution authorizing and approving the treasury loan to the Public Works Department for the
Independence Water System in the amount of Seventy Eight Thousand dollars ($78,000);

2. Authorize the Public Works Director accept the loan on behalf of the Public Works Department.

CAO RECOMMEITIDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

In December of 2017 the Independence Water System (WS) transmission main was facing imminent failure, with five
significant leaks springing up simultaneously. The ductile iron pipe had been in place since 1928, and is estimated to
have been ten to twenty years old at the time of installation. Efforts to repair the leaks were unsuccessful due to the
deteriorated, fragile condition of the pipe. On December 19th, 2017 the Public Works Department received permission
from the your Board to lease and install 2,840 feet of 12 inch High Density Poly-Ethylene (HDPE) pipe to act as the
temporary transmission main while a permanent solution was pursued.

It was initially assumed that the permanent replacement would be ductile iron; however after an analysis of the benefits of
ductile iron versus HDPE, the Public Works Department has determined that HDPE will be the best option for the
Independence system.

Public Works proposes to purchase the pipe that is currently in place, and to install the pipe underground once the design
process is complete. This will save the IWS the cost of a year or more of rental while the department pursues grant or
long term low interest loan funding for the pipe installation. The IWS is currently paying $4,019.73lmonth
($48,236.76/year) for the lease of these materials. The purchase price from the rental company, HercRentals, for all pipe
and fittings currently in place is $78,646.55.

The treasury loan application was presented to the Inyo County Financial Advisory Committee and the Treasury
Oversight Committee, and was approved by both entities.

ALTERNATIVES:

Your Board could choose not to approve treasury loan for IWS, and direct the Public Works Department to continue the
rental agreement with HercRental until the IWS is ready for construction on the new transmission line or to determine a
separate source offunding for the purchase ofthe pipe and fittings.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel to review and approve loan documents

FINAIICING: The loan payments will be paid through budget unit 152101: Independence Water System.



Ptge2

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) Date: kttl ,a7. r3

ACREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION
roviewed and approvcd by CoMty Couns6l prio,r io submission to lh6 board clcrk.)

h Cl,urll"

COUNSET,: AND RELATED ITEMS (MuTt be

RBLATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and rpprovod by tftc auditor/mnlrollcr prior toAC€OUNTINC/TINA}ICE AND
submission to lftc boad dle*.)

\l'l,lt()\ \1.\



Page2

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must beCOUNTYCOUNSEL

$ Cl'^U,1. 3A
reviewed and approved by County Counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

Approved:

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor/controller prior to

Approved:

submission to the board clerk.)

API'ROVALS

h

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) Date:



RESOLUTTON NUMBER 2OL9--
A RESOTUTION OF THE INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN
INYO COUNTYTREASURY LOAN TO

THE INYO COUNTY PUBTIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, Government Code section 53601(e) and the lnyo County lnvestment Policy authorize the
Treasurer-Tax Collector to purchase bonds, noted, warrants or other evidences of debt of any agency
formed within lnyo County; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined by the Treasurer-Tax Collector that there are funds available in this
investment category to provide short term, low interest treasury loans for local agencies (Treasury

Loans);

WHEREAS, after the failure of the lndependence water transmission main in December of 2OI7, the lnyo
County Public Works Department (Public Works) received the approval of the lnyo County Board of
Supervisors to rent and install 2840 feet of 12 inch high density polyethylene (HDPE) pipe and required
fittings to serve as the temporary water main;

WHEREA$ Public Works has determined that said HDPE pipe is the preferred alternative to permanently
replace the transmission main, and therefore wishes to purchase said pipe and fittings;

WHEREAS, the lnyo County Public Works Department submitted an application to the Treasurer-Tax
Collector's Office for a five (5) year Seventy Eight Thousand Dollars (578,000.00) Treasury Loan
(Application) from the lnyo County Treasury Pool's Local Debt Purchase Program to be used for the
purchase of HDPE pipe to serve as the water transmission main for the lndependence Water System.

WHEREA$ the lnyo County Treasury Oversight Committee reviewed the Application, determined the
INYO COUNW PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT is a qualified local agency eligible for a Bridge Loan and

submitted the Application to the Treasurer-Tax Collector for review with its recommendation for
approval; and

WHEREAS, the Treasurer-Tax Collector has determined there are funds available to make a Bridge Loan

to the INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT pursuant to its Application; and

WHEREAS, the Treasurer-Tax Collector approved the Application subject to approval of the Board of
Supervisors.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED

A. The lnyo County Board of Supervisors approves and authorizes the INYO COUNTY PUBLIC

WORKS DEPARTMENT to accept a loan in the amount of 578,000 with interest accruing at the
now current rate paid by LAIF plus one percent, 3.4O% for a term of five (5)years from the lnyo
County Treasury Pool's Local Debt Purchase Program (Loan) to provide funding for the Project;
and

B. The amount of the Loan will be paid in full, plus interest, under the terms and conditions of the
Loan Agreement and Promissory Note collectively attached hereto as Attachment "1"; and



C. The lnyo County Public Works Director is authorized to sign for the INYO COUNTY PUBLIC

WORKS DEPARTMENT all documents needed to implement and carry out the purpose of this
Resolution and to undertake all actions needed to undertake and complete the Project for which
the Loan is intended.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS _ DAY OF MARCH 2019 by the following vote

AYES

NOES

ABSTENTION

Richard Pucci, Chair
INYO COUNTV BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

ATTEST:

CLINT QUILTER
CLERK OF THE BOARD

Darcy Ellis



ATTACHMENT 1

INYO COUNW TREASURY IOAN AGREEMENT

This Loan Agreement (the "Agreement") by and between the INYO COUNTY TREASURY (the

"Treasury") and the Board of Supervisors on behalf of lnyo County (the "Borrower"), all

California public entities, is entered into as of the date set forth below. The lnyo County

Treasurer (the 'Treasurer") is the authorized representative for the Treasury.

L. STATUTORY AUTHORIW AND LOAN

a. Following review and recommendation by the lnyo County Treasury Oversight

Committee as allowed in California Government Code Section 53601(e) and the

County of lnyo Statement of lnvestment Policy, the Treasurer approves the

Borrower's loan application dated February LL,2OL9, which is not attached but

is expressly incorporated by reference herein.

b. Subject to the terms, covenants, and conditions contained herein, the Treasury

shall make a loan to the Borrower (the "Loan") in the amount of SEVENTY

EIGHT THoUSAND DoLLARS (578,000.00) evidenced by a Promissory Note (the

"Promissory Note"), for loan number 2Ot9-O4 for INDEPENDENCE WATER

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT ("Project"). A copy of the Promissory Note is attached

hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein by this reference as though set

forth fully.

2. PURPOSE

The Borrower agrees to expend all funds disbursed pursuant to this Agreement only for
the purpose of completing the Project.

3. IOAN DISBURSEMENT

The Treasury agrees to disburse funds to the Borrower upon receipt of a Resolution

authorizing and approving the Loan from the County of lnyo Board of Supervisors and

the Borrower's execution of the Promissory Note.

4. IOAN REPAYMENT AND INTEREST

All funds disbursed hereunder, together with all interest payable thereon, shall be

repaid to the Treasury in accordance with the terms of the Promissory Note. The loan

shall bear simple interest at the annual rate set forth in the attached Promissory Note

on the principal balance of Loan funds disbursed to the Borrower. Payment of said

interest shall be due at the time of the quarterly scheduled Loan repayment

LOAN AGREEMENT # 2OI9.O4
County of Inyo-Public Works & H2O Page 1



installments to the Treasury, Exhibit 1 to the Promissory Note, and interest shall accrue

from the time of disbursal of funds to the Borrower until receipt of the full Loan

repayment to the Treasury.

5. TERM

This Agreement shall commence on the date it has been executed by both parties, with

the date being inserted by the final party to sign, and shall continue for five (5) years

subject to the Treasury's right to terminate as discussed herein below in Paragraph LL.

6. PREPAYMENT

The Borrower shall have the right to prepay all or any part of this Loan at any time

without penalty.

7. PROMISSORV NOTE

ln order to evidence its debt to the Treasury hereunder, the Borrower agrees to,

contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement, execute and deliver to the

Treasury the Promissory Note.

8. ACCOUNTS, AUDITS, AND RECORDS

a. Borrower shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices,
vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents evidencing or
relating to charges for services, or expenditures and disbursements charged

against the Loan for a minimum period of three (3) years, or for any longer
period required by law, from the date the loan obligation is satisfied.

b. Borrower shall maintain all documents and records which demonstrate
performance under this Agreement for a minimum period of three (3)years, or
for any longer period required by law, from the date of termination or
completion of this Agreement.

c. Any records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this
Agreement shall be made available for inspection or audit at any time during
regular business hours, upon written request by the Treasurer or other
designated representative of the Treasury. Copies of such documents shall be
provided to the Treasurer for inspection at the Treasurer's office unless it is
impractical to do so; in which case the records shall be made available at
Borrower's address indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement.

d. lf requested by the Treasury the Borrower shall submit to an independent audit,
at its expense.

LOAN AGREEMENT # 20\9.04
County of Inyo-Public Works & HzO PageZ



9. SOURCE OF REPAYMENT

a. Annual payments due to the Treasury under this Agreement shall be made from

such legally available funds as the Borrower chooses.

b. The Borrower agrees to take all action necessary to include all payments due

hereunder in its annual budget and to make the necessary annual appropriations

for all such payments.

10. DEFAULT

a. ln the event of any default or breach of this Agreement by the Borrower, the

Treasury, without limiting any of its other legal rights or remedies, may, to the

extent permitted by law, declare the Promissory Note evidencing this Loan to be

immediately due and payable.

b. Each of the following occurrences shall constitute an event of default:

t. The Borrower's failure to comply with any of the terms of this

Agreement;

2. Failure of the Borrower to repay any principal or interest when due

under the terms of this Promissory Note;

3. Failure of the Borrower to undertake in a timely manner the express

and implied activities for which this Loan Agreement has been

executed;

4. The occurrence of any of the following:

(i) The Borrower becoming insolvent or bankrupt or being unable or

admitting in writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature or

making a general assignment for benefit of or entering into any

composition or arrangement with creditors;

(ii) Proceedings for the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or

liquidator of the assets of the Borrower or a substantial part

thereof, being authorized by or against the Borrower; or

(iii) Proceedings under any bankruptcy, reorganization, readjustment

of debt, insolvency, dissolution, liquidation or other similar law,

or any jurisdiction being authorized against the Borrower.

(iv) Reorganization of the Borrower in a manner that reduces the tax base from

which payments are due as determined in the discretion of the Treasurer.

LOAN AGREEMENT # 2079-04
County of Inyo-Public Works & H2O Page 3



11. TERMINATION

ln the event of default or any breach by the Borrower of the conditions set forth in this

Agreement, the Treasury may, without prejudice to any of its legal remedies, terminate

this Agreement for cause upon five (5) days written notice to the Borrower.

12. GENERALTERMS

a. lndependent Capacitv. The Borrower, and the agents and employees of the
Borrower, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an independent

capacity and not as agents ofthe Treasury.

b. Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable or transferable by the Borrower

either in whole or in part.

c. Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement. Borrower is

required to take timely actions which, taken collectively, move to the completion
of the purpose for which this Loan was awarded. lf the Treasurer determines
that the Borrower is not progressing toward completion within one (1) year after
the effective date of this Agreement, The Treasurer may, without penalty or
prejudice to any of the Treasury's other remedies, terminate this Agreement.

d. Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive
statement of Agreement between the Treasury and Borrower. All prior written
and oral communications, including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and

representations, are superseded in total by this Agreement.
e. Amendment. No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall

be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, and no oral

understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of
the parties hereto.

f. Severabilitv. ln the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable

or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree that all other provisions of
this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be effected thereby.

g. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement is governed by and shall be

interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be

in lnyo County.

h. Borrower Authorization. The Borrower certifies that it has full power and

authority to enter into this Agreement, and this Agreement has been duly

authorized, executed and delivered by the Borrower. The Borrower

acknowledges that the Resolution of its governing body or other official action

authorizing it to enter into this Agreement also authorizes such further acts as

LOAN AGREEMENT # 2079-04
County of Inyo-Public Works & HzO Page 4



are necessary, including execution of the Promissory Note, to implement and

further the intent of this Agreement.

Waiver: No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy

hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that party may

have hereunder.

13. NOTTCE

a. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication that either
party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing and

either served personally or sent prepaid, first class mail U.S. mail, overnight mail,

or personal delivery, providing evidence of receipt.

b. Any such notice, demand, etc., shall be addressed/delivered to the other party at

the address, set forth herein below. Either party may change its address by

notifying the other party of the change of address. Notice shall be deemed

communicated within 48 hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in

this section or on receipt.

lf to the TREASURY : lnyo County Treasurer-Tax Collector
Attn: Debt Purchase Program
P.O. Drawer O

lndependence, CA 93526

lf to BORROWER: County of lnyo
Attn : Chief Ad ministrative Officer
PO Drawer N

lndependence, CA 93526

c. Delivery by fax or e-mail is not considered notice for the purposes of this

Agreement.

LOAN AGREEMENT # 2OI9-04
County of Inyo-Public Works & HzO Page 5



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on

20

TREASURY BORROWER

Alisha McMurtrie
TREASURER

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Counsel

Richard Pucci

CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:

Board Clerk

By

LOAN AGREEMENT # 2OL9-04
County of Inyo-Public Works & HzO Page 6



Exhibit A

PROMISSORY NOTE

LOAN NUMBER 2019-04

S78,ooo.oo

3.40%

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:

INTEREST RATE:

L. For value received, the undersigned, (herein after referred to as the "Borrower"),

promises to pay to the order of the lnyo County Treasury (herein after referred to as the

"Treasury"), at its principal place of business at 168 N. Edwards Street, lndependence CA

93526-0614, or at such other places as the Treasury may designate the principal sum of

SEVENTY EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS and 00/100 (578,000.00) or such lesser amount as

shall equal the aggregate amount disbursed to the Borrower by the Treasury pursuant

to the lnyo County Treasury Loan Agreement (the "Loan Agreement") between the

Borrower and the Treasury, together with interest thereon at the rate of 3.40 percent

per annum on the unpaid principal. Principal, together with interest thereon, is due and

payable in quarterly installments as specified in the Estimated Amortizations Schedule,

attached hereto as Exhibit "1," beginning on _20_and continuing thereafter on

each Month/Day until said principal and interest shall be paid in full.

2. Payments received will be first applied to billed interest, if any, and the balance, if any,

to principal. lf all principal is repaid, the balance is applied to accrued interest.

3. Payments of any scheduled installment received within thirty (30) days of the due date

shall be considered to have been received on the due date. lnterest on the principal

portion of the payment shall accrue through the due date.

4. Payment of any scheduled installment received more than thirty (30) days after the due

date shall be considered late. lnterest on the principal portion of the payment shall

accrue through the actual date payment is received.

5. lf any installment is not paid within thirty (30) days after its due date, The Treasury, at

its option, may require the Borrower to pay a late charge equal to one percent (Lo/ol of

the amount of the installment.

6. The Borrower may prepay this Promissory Note in fullor in part, without penalty.

7. The Borrower agrees to take such action as may be necessary to include all payments

due herein in its annual budget and to make the necessary annual appropriations for all

such payments.

8. On the occurrence of any event of default, the Treasury, at its sole election and without

limiting any of its other legal rights or remedies, may, to the extent permitted by law,



declare all or any portion of the principal and accrued interest on this Promissory Note

to be immediately due and payable and may proceed at once without further notice to
enforce this Promissory Note according to law.

9. Each of the following occurrences shall constitute an event of default:

A. Failure of the Borrower to comply with any of the terms of the Agreement.

B. Failure of the Borrower to repay any principal or interest when due under the

terms of this Promissory Note;

C. Termination of the Loan Agreement pursuant to the terms thereof or breach by

the Borrower of any terms of said Loan Agreement;

D. Failure of the Borrower to undertake in a timely manner the express and implied

activities for which said Loan Agreement has been executed;

E. The occurrence of any of the following:

1. (l)the Borrower becoming insolvent or bankrupt or being unable or admitting in

writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature or making a general assignment

for benefit of or entering into any composition or arrangement with creditors;

2. Proceedings for the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or liquidator of the

assets of the Borrower or a substantial part thereof, being authorized by or against

the Borrower; or

3. Proceedings under any bankruptcy, reorganization, readjustment of debt,

insolvency, dissolution, liquidation or other similar law, or any jurisdiction being

authorized against the Borrower.

4. Reorganization of the Borrower in a manner that the Treasurer in the exercise of
discretion concludes reduces the tax base from which payment is to be made.

10. No delay or failure of the Treasury in the exercise of any right or remedy hereunder or
under any other agreement which secures or is related hereto shall affect any such right

or remedy, and no single or partial exercise of any such right or remedy shall preclude

any further exercise thereof, and no action taken or omitted by the Treasury shall be

deemed a waiver of any such right or remedy.

1L. Any notice to the Borrower provided for in this Promissory Note shall be given by

mailing such notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the

Borrower at the address stated in the Loan Agreement, or to such other address as the

Borrower may designate by notice to the Treasury. Any notice to the Treasury shall be

given by mailing certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Treasury at the address

stated in the Loan Agreement, or at such other address as may have been designated by

notice to the Borrower.



12. lf suit is brought to collect any part of this Promissory Note, the Treasury shall be

entitled to collect all reasonable costs and expenses of said suit and any appeal there

from, including reasonable attorney's fees.

13. This Promissory Note shall be binding upon the Borrower and its permitted successors

and assigns and upon the Treasury and its permitted successor and assigns. This

Promissory Note is not assignable nor transferrable by the Borrower.

14. This Promissory Note shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of
the State of California, with venue in the County of lnyo.

COUNW OF INYO

Richard Pucci

Chairman

DATE



3.40%

EXHIBIT "1"
AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

LOAN #20L9-O4

PRINCIPAT

TOTAT INTEREST

TOTAT COST

S 78,ooo.oo

s 7,148.00

S 85,148.00

PAYMENT PAYMENT PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL

NUMBER AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT BALANCE

OWED

L 5 4,257.40 S 3,594.40 s 663.00 s 74,405.60

2 5 4,257.40 5 3,624.95 s 632.4s s 70,780.65

3 5 4,257.40 5 3,655.76 s 501.64 5 67,t24.89
4 5 4,257.40 s 3,686.84 s s70.s6 s 63,438.05

5 5 4,257.40 s 3,7L8.18 s s39.22 s 59,719.87

6 5 4,257.40 5 3,749.78 s s07.62 s 55,970.09

7 5 4,257.40 s 3,781.65 5 47s.7s s 52,188.44

8 5 4,2s7.4o s 3,813.80 s 443.60 5 48,374.64

9 5 4,257.40 S 3,846.22 s 4L1.L8 s 44,528.42

10 s 4,257.40 s 3,878.91 s 378.49 S 40,649.51

11 5 4,257.4O s 3,91L.88 s 34s.s2 5 36,737.63
L2 s 4,257.40 s 3,945.L3 5 3L2.27 5 32,792.50

13 5 4,257.4O s 3,978.66 5 278.74 s 28,81_3.84

T4 5 4,257.4O 5 4,0L2.48 5 244.92 s 24,801".36

15 5 4,2s7.40 S 4,046.59 s 210.81 5 20,754.77

16 5 4,2s7.40 s 4,080.98 5 L76.42 5 16,673.79

T7 S 4,2s7.4o s 4,Lt5.67 5 L4L.73 S 12,558.12

18 5 q,zst.qo S +,rso.os 5 too.tq 5 8,qol.q6
T9 5 4,257.40 S +,t8s.9+ s 7r.46 5 q,zzt.sz

20 S 4,2s7.4o 5 4,22r.s2 5 gs.se s

S 85,148.00 S 78,ooo.oo s 7,148.00 s 85,L48.00



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO
E Consent I Departmental E Correspondence Action E Public Hearing

E Schedule time for I Closed Session E Informational

For Clerk's Use

Only:

AGENDA NUMBER

ft

FROM: Public Works Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING oF: ji,q]] I $ '1ut

SUBJECT: Approve the purchase order for HercRental for the purchase of HDPE pipe for the lndependence Water
System transmission main

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATIONS: Request your Board to:

l. Declare HercRental as a sole source provider for the supply of 2840 feet of 12 inch HDPE pipe and fittings;
2. Approve the purchase order for HercRental in the amount of $78,646.55;
3. Amend the Independence Water System budget (152101) by:

a. Increase appropriations in object code 4990: Loan Proceeds by $78,000.00 (4/5's vote required);
b. Decrease appropriations in object code 5281: Rents and Leases of Equipment by $647.00 (4/5's vote

required);
c. Increase appropriations in object code 5620: Infrastructure by $7&,647.00 (415's vote required).

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: In December of 2017 the Independence Water System (IWS) transmission main was facing
imminent failure, with five significant leaks springing up simultaneously. The ductile iron pipe had been in place since
1928, and is estimated to have been ten to twenty years old at the time of installation. Efforts to repair the leaks were
unsuccessful due to the deteriorated, fragile condition of the pipe. On December 19th, 2017 the Public Works Department
received permission from the your Board to lease and install 2,840 feet of 12 inch High Density Poly-Ethylene (HDPE)
pipe to act as the temporary transmission main while a permanent solution was pursued.

It was initially assumed that the permanent replacement would be ductile iron; however after an analysis of the benefits of
ductile iron versus HDPE, the Public Works Department has determined that HDPE will be the best option for the
Independence system.

Public Works proposes to purchase the pipe that is curently in place, and to install the pipe underground once the design
process is complete. This will save the IWS the cost of a year or more of rental while the department pursues gtant or
long term low interest loan funding for the pipe installation. The IWS is currently paying $4,019.73lmonth
($48,236.761year) for the lease of these materials. The purchase price from the rental company, HercRentals, for all pipe
and fittings currently in place is $78,646.55.

ALTERNATIVES:
Your Board could choose not to approve the sole source and purchase order, and direct the Public Works Department to
continue the rental agreement with HercRental until the IWS is ready for construction on the new transmission line.

OTHER AGENCY III"VOLVEMENT:
Purchasing department to issue a purchase order once approved.

FINANCING: Thepurchasewillbepaidthroughbudgetunitl52l0l:IndependenceWaterSystem,objectcode5620:
Infrastructure.



COUN"I"Y COUN$EL;

Wtlulwn
AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS A}.ID ORDINANCES AND CTOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (MuSt bc

revicwed and approvod by C,ounty Counsol prior to submission to thc boud clcrk.)

acstt{urnrvJiff Ncii AND RELATED

l\fr'ilIfrr
ITEMS (Must bo ruviowcd and approvcd by lhc auditor/controllc

\l'l,l'l()\ \l.s

HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be sigred until all approvals are roccived)

BUDGET OTFICER SIGN.{TURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

Date:Zg!.1*gf*U*

Date: 3



frFEnentals'o
2160 SATURN COURT
BAKERSFTELD, CA 93308
66]--399-2463

rTob Site:
INTERM TRANSMISSION MA]N
5OO BLOCK OF EDWARDS STREET
INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

C#: 760-873-7857 J#z 760-937-23L5

Customer: 2 s668s
INYO COUNTY WATER SYSTEMS
PO BOX Q
INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

Please make check payable to:
HERC Exchange LLC

Rernit To:
PO BOX 936257
ATI,ANTA, GA 31193
800-654-474A

EQUIPMENT SALE QUOTE

Invoice #.. . 51"970720
rnvoice dat.e Lz/2L/Le t-5:02
Employee-. -.
Quote date..
'Job Iroc
.fob No IIfrfERM TRANS - MAIN
P.O. , #.... . ; 12" TRANSFER WATER L
ORDERED BY: ASHLEY HELM
Terms .. Due Upon Receipt
Est#,Days: O / 0

Qty nquipment # Price Amount

2 9212025 CC: 92L-2O25
BACK UP RING F/HDPE FI,N.IGE ADAPTER ]-2

27.O0 54.00

2 92L2024 CC; 921-2024
HDPE FI,ANGE ADAPTER ].2

45-00 90 .00

2g4O 92118L8 CC: 921-18L8
FT OF FUSEABIJE HDPE PIPE 12

24 .49 69s5r-.60

2 9272228 CCz 92t-2228
HDPE FITTTNG 12X90 DEG

L92 -25 384 - s0

5 92t23L4 CC: 92L-23L4
TAPPING SADDLE F/HDPE PIPE 12

6s0.00 3250.00

Taxable Sub-Eota1: 938.74
Sub-totaI:

' Tdx:
Total:

73330. r.0
53L6 .45

78646.55

Herc Bentals lnc- does heraby ranster, set aside and assign all of its rights, (but not its obligatonsl,. to sell the equipmsnt described in this quots, to HERC Exchange
LLC pursuant to the HERC/HERC Exchange LLC Master Exchange AgrBement. Notice is hereby given rhat all of HEBC's rights, (but not its obligations). to sell the
equipment described in this quote, have been assigned to HERC Exchange LLC pursuant ro the I{ERC/HEBC Exchange LLC Master Exchange Agreemsfi.

Print Customer Name Tirls

Customor Signature Date

Carefully read the terms and conditions on reverse side of this page 
,



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

For Clerk's Use

Only:

AGENDA NUMBER

)o
[lconsent tr
tr Public Hearing

Departmental n Coo"rpondence Action

! s.h"dut" time for ! ctoseO Session ! Informational

FROM: Public works

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: Il/.Ji 1 9 zlis

SUBJECT: Road Closure on North Round Valley Road between Pine Creek Road and Vanadium Ranch Road
in Round Valley on Friday, May 31, 2019, between the hours of 8:00 AM and 10:30 AM.

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATIONS :

Request your Board approve the closure of a portion of Round Valley Road during the moming of May 31't,
2019 for the purpose of the annual Round Valley Jog-a-thon. The closure is shown in the attached drawing.

CAO RECOMMENDATIONS:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
The Round Valley Joint Elementary School District has submitted a Special Event Permit Application and is
requesting permission to close N. Round Valley Road as depicted in the attached map for the annual Round
Valley Jog-a-thon. There are altemate routes for the travelling public to take in order to avoid the half-mile
closure and public outreach is not warranted given the location and duration of the closure, and the close
proximity of alternate routes (Pine Creek Road and Vanadium Ranch Road).

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board could choose not to approve the Road Closure and the Round Valley Joint Elementary School
District could proceed with its event using intermittent traffic control. This is not recommended as this event is
an elementary school function and a road closure will decrease the risks of having students jogging on/near the
roadway.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

FINANCING:
Not Applicable

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (MuSt be
reviewed and approved by County Counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

COUNTY COUNSEL

v/e Approved: Date

/

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor/controller prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

AUDITOPJCONTROLLER

N/ A DateApproved:

r, ln
PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: D

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are a4/DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:



.1r*..:

nuffiW

,. I

;,iilri,"-'r, ;i+il',, -i'
/.

X

Round Vallev Jog-a-thon Route and Road Closure Location



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO

n Consent X Departmental lCorrespondence Action

n Scheduted Time for I CtoseO Session

I Puntic Hearing

tllnformational

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

at

FROM: Nathan D. Reade, Agricultural Commissioner

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: March 19,2019

SUBJECT: Commercial Cannabis Business License Worlshop

D E PARTME NTAL RE CO MME NDATION:

Request your Board conduct a workshop to discuss and provide direction to staff on several aspects of Inyo County's
Commercial Cannabis Permiffing Program in anticipation of forthcoming license issuance.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

The first commercial cannabis business licensing period is completed. During the first review and issuance period, staff
kept a list of questions received from applicants as well as issues encountered by staff with the goal of improving the
commercial cannabis business license application process for future applications windows.

Today's workshop is intended to present several minor recommended code amendments and process changes to your
board for discussion and staff direction. Information will also be provided that summarizes the results of the initial
application window to help provide context. The workshop will also include discussion of potential new license types
and existing license allocation. Feedback received from your board on the topic discussed today will inform an ordinance
to be brought for your consideration during a future board meeting.

Specific recommended code and process changes are outlined in the attached presentation.

ALTERNATIWS:

Your board could choose to not consider this workshop and leave current processes in place.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT :

FINANCING:

This item has no financial impact to the county

D EPARTM ENT H EAD SIG NATU RE :
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

of staff time

j-a-tq



3/6l2OLs

@ Counly of lnyo
Comh6r.lol Cdnnod. P.rmli O{11..

Boord Workshop
Morch 19,2019

@ County of lnyo
Comrerdql Conrobb P€rnl Ofllc€

lnitiol Connobis Licensing Recop

Recommended Code Amendments

Suggested Process Chonges

Discussion of License Types

Discussion of License Allocotion

a

O

a

o

a

Workshop Summory

t



316/2OLe

s Counly of lnyo
Conmorclol Conndbt P€rmit Oliic€

35 30 29
,Applicotions

Received

Applicolions
Moved to

Finol Scoring
Applicotions

Accepted

Initio I Conno bis Licensing Reco p

€
Countv of lnvo
Comh€rclol Connobk Permil Otli.e

,.' O',,,,
90 .O7o/o 

'',,'

\ o$l
'o:

o

5"o{"

56130

fveroge 
Score

tj

82.41 
o/o

;

High Score , i

lnitiol Connobis Licensing Recop

2



3/6/2OLe

@ Countv of lnvo
Comrerdol Conmbb Pornlt Ofli<e

Liconse Numbets by Zone cnd Type (Cuilenl li.enses in pcrenlhqis, bluo ihdicolo! dpproved, gray indirotes denied)

Muiong Meso, Dlxon
ldh. edd6w.rFF[

2 0 2 t2)L21 I

0

Wike@
Blg Piq 2 I 0

I

I

2 I o 0 I I

Oldo, Codogo

5(8 on 5 porcd.) I o r{r)(r; I r trxr)

Keeler, Dorwin I I 0 0 0 !

5 2 tt I 2 I

5 50) t00) I 2 2

ro (2) lo(2)5(5X| j

i

| (1) 2 2ll)

45{r3Xrl 30(3) 7 6(4){3j t2 I 0(2)(r )

No Llmcs Adltdzed h he 3

No Uc# Admrized h Zfl€ 58

All Oltivofior

Dbtibdor
fr.

JA

5B

5C

5D

5E

5F

5G

Reroiler Dhtlbdor

2

3

>5,000 fi<s,000f Level 2

The 30 viqble
opplicotions received

included:

Cultivotion - 577o

Monufocturing - l07o

Testlng - 0%

Retoil - 23%

Di$ribution - 07o

Microbusiness - I O7o

lnitio I Conno bis Licensing Reco p

@ Conm6r.lol Connobb Permlt Offico

lt
&

Initiol Connobis Licensing Recop

3



3/6/2}rs

@ County of lnyo
Comrerdd CdnMbk P€rnll Olflo

Round Volle/,
Austang Meso, Dixon 2 I o I o

2 2 I o o

M Llcnses Mldzed In Zom 3

Big Pine. 2 I o o 0

2 I o I o

Olenchq, Codogo Flo t 6s6 uhortzed h ?one 58

o I o I o o

2 I o o o

5 2 I I I 2

Te@po i 5 4 9 I 1 2 2

8 o I I o 2

32 27 , 2 72 a

All Oltlvotion AI MonufodurlE

Dlsrrlbdor

Teetlng

<5,OOOf fi. >5,OOO fr.Zone Aolor Communliles

I

2

3

5A

5g

5C

5D

5E

5F

Licenso Nvmbers by Zone qnd Type - Spring 2Ol 9

Cultlvorlon Culllvotion

5G

Level 2

lnitio I Conno bis Licensing Reco p

@
Countv of lnvo
Comm€r<lol Conndbk P6rmll Otllc6

Alignment of Tox, Connobis Business Licensg Zoning Code, "Connobis"

Tqx ond business license:

'Connobis" rneons oll porls of lhe plonl Connobis solivo lrnnoeus, Connobis indico, or Connobis
ruderoils, whelher growing or no!; the seeds fhereof,. the resin, whelher crude or purified, exlrocled from
ony porl of lhe plonl; ond every compound, monufoclure, soll, derivolive, mixlure, or preporolion of lhe
plonf; its seeds, or resrn. "Connobis" olso meons lhe seporoled resin, whelher crude or purified, obtoined
from connobis. "Connobis" olso meons moriiuono os defined by Section 1 101 I of lhe Colif ornio Heollh
ond Sofety Code ond is nol limiled lo medicol connobis.

Zoning:

'€onnobis" meons ol/ porls of lhe plonl Connobis solivo linnoeus., whelher growing or nof; lhe seeds
lhereof; fhe resin exlrocled lrom ony porl of lhe plonf; ond every compound, manufoclure, soh,
derivolive, mixlure, or preporofion of lhe plon|, ils seeds or resrn. lt does nol include (1) induslriol
hemp, os defined in Seclion 1 I Ol 8.5 of lhe Colifornio Heolth ond Sofefy Code os moy be omended,. or
(2) The weighl of ony olher ingredienl combined wilh connobrs fo prepore lopicol or oro/
odmrnislrolions, food, drink, or olher producf.

a

Recommended Code Amendments

4



3/6/201s

@ Counlv of lnva
Conrerdol Connobk Perd Olftco

Alignment of Tox, Connobis Business Licensg Zoning Code

Recommended "Connqbis" def inition:

'Connobrs" rneons oll porfs of lhe plonl Connobis solivo lrnnoeus, Connobrs indico, or Connobis
ruderolis, whether growing or nof; lhe seeds fhereof; the resin, whelher crude or purified, extrocled from
ony porl of lhe plont; ond every compound, monufoclure, soh, derivotive, mixlure, or preporolion of lhe
p/ont, its seeds, or resrn. "Connobis" olso meons fhe seporoted resin, whether crude or purified, obloined
from connobis. '€onnobis" does nol rnc/ude the moture sfolks of lhe plont, fiber produced from lhe
sfolks, oil or coke mode from lhe seeds of lhe plonl, ony olher compound, monufoclure, soh, derivotive,
mixlure, or preporolion of lhe molure sfolks (excepf lhe resin exfrocled lherefrom), fiber, oil, or coke, or
the slerilized seed of fhe plont which is rncopoble of germinolion, For lhe purpose of this division,
"connobis" does nof meon "industriol hemp" os defined by Seclion I I 0 l 8.5 of the Heolth ond Sofely
Code,

a

Recommended Code Amendments

@ Countv of lnvo
ComM<lol Cannobb P€rmlt Offl.€

Alignment of Tox, Connobis Business Licensg Zoning Code, "Connobis Product"

Tox ond business license:

"Connobis producl" meons row connobis thot hos undergone o process whereby lhe row ogriculturol
producl hos been lronslormed rnlo o concenfrole, on edib/e producf, or o lopicol product. 'Connobis
producf" o/so meons moriiuono products os defined by Section 1 1018.1 of lhe Coliformo Heo/th ond
Sofety Code ond rs nof limited to medicol connobis producfs.

Zoning:

"Connobis producfs" meons connobis thol hos undergone o process whereby the p/onf moleriol hos been
lronsformed inlo o concenlrole, including, but nol limited lo, concenlrofed connobis, or on edible or
fopico/ producl conloining connobis or concenlroled connobrs ond olher ingredienfs.

o

Recommended Code Amendments

5



3/6/207s

@ County of lnyo
Commerdol Conmbh P.rmll Ofll.e

Alignment of Tox, Connobis Business Licensg Zoning Code

Recommended "Connqbis Product" definiiion:
'Connobis product" meons connobis thot hos undergone o process whereby the plont moleriol hos been

Ironsformed rnlo o concenfrole, including, bul nol liniled fo, concenlrofed connobis, or on edible or
lopicol producl confoinrng connobis or concenlroled connobis ond olher ingredienls.

o

Recommended Code Amendments

@ Counly of lnyo
Conn€r<lol Conndbl! P€rn[ Olfr.6

"Commerciol connobis business license" meqns ihe license issued pursuont to this chopter, which is

required for oll commerciol cqnnobis business thql is iqxed pursuont to lnyo County Code Choprer
3,50 ond Colifornio Revenue ond Toxotion Section 7284, ond independent of ony Conditionol Use

Permit thot moy be required lo conduct q commerciol connobis business ot o specific locotion. The

word "license" is interchongeoble with the word "permit."

a "Commerciol connobis business license" Definition
. Recommended:

Recommended Code Amendnrents

6



3/6/20re

@ Comrerdd Cqnnobb Permt Olfic€

Corrntv af I

"lndoor" Definition
. Recommended:

"lndoor" meons wilhin o fully enclosed permonent building (e.g,, not o "hoop house") constructed in
such o monner thot does not ollow perceptible odor to escope to the exterior of the structure.

"Premises" meons the designoted structure or structures ondf or lond specified in the opplicotion for
o commerciol connobis business license thot is owned, leosed, or ofherwise held under ihe control of
the opplicont or licensee where lhe commerciol connobis business will be or is conducted. A premises
is not necessorily o porcel ond one or more licenses moy be required or issued per porcel, A
premises connot spon ocross multiple porcels.

O "Premises" Definition
. Recommended:

Recommended Code Amendments

@ Comrerdol Cdnmbt Pehh olfi@

Countv of

5.40.060 Time ef Procurement, end term, ond renewol
' (B) All Commerciol Connobis Business Licenses ore subiect to on onnuol renewol, The renewol period sholl

begin Moy I ond end July I of eoch yeor. The C3POsholl inform eoch Commerciol Connobis Business License
holder of the requirements of the requirements to renew their license.

' (C) As port of the onnuol renewol process, the countn octing through the boord of supervisors ot o public
heoring noticed ot leost ten doys in odvonce, moy:

' @rs of elossifieetien(s) of eommereiereenngbis business-rieenses Eveilqble

b€€fi€ense_€re
ll existing lieensees musl re-epply fer E eemmereiel

;+Y-€nd_€BBr€B+t€+e_rfi
the eounty's sgledisergtleni tlre eeulty mey grent e temporery exiens'en te Eny e#eeted existing lieense

' (D)(+fOperolors who foil. to onnuolly rene\M lheir Commerciol Connobis Business License prior to the
Julyleochyeorwillberequiredtosubmitonew

opplicotion, obtoin oll oppropriole opprovols, ond poy the opplicotion ond l'icense fees in oddition to
ony previous penolties due.

Recommended Code Amendments

7



3/6/2o7e

@ County of lnyo
Connerclal Cohmbb Pormil Oltl.o

5.40.O70
(A.) The number of Commerciql Cqnnobis Business Licenses ovqilqble for eqch closs of
commerciol cqnnobis octivitn qs set forth in lnyo County Code Section I 8.06.1 82, sholl be
limited by zone os described below, qnd qs shown for convenience purposes on lhe mops

oltoched herewith os Exhibit l.

he

number of ovoilqble licenses sholl be os set forth below, provided however ihot only one

license-clossificotion per porcel sholl count towqrd the opplicoble limii:

a

Recommended Code Amendments

@ Counly of lnyo
Conn€r<lol Connobk Pomh Otfl.€

5.40.070
(C.) The Boord of Supervisors moy reduce lhe number of Clossificotion(s) of Commerciol

Cqnnobis Business Licenses ovoilqble in o specific Zone following the County's Ordinonce
omendment process. Any omendmenl of this Ordinqnce reducing the number of Commerciql
Cqnnobis Business Licenses ovoiloble sholl not result in the revocotion of ony Commerciol
Connqbis Business License existing ond in good stonding ol the time of such o reduction. lf,

however, the numbers of q Clossificotion of Commerciol Connobis Business License ore reduced
in o given Zone, oll exisling licensees in ony such Zone must re-opply for o Commerciql
Connobis Business License during the renewol period for thol yeor, or if olreody possed the

following yeor, pursuont to section 5.40.090. lf necessory ond oppropriote in the Counly's

sole discretion, lhe County moy grqnt o temporqry exiension to ony offected existing license

to prevent it from expiring during the opplicotion process specified by section 5.40.090.

a

Recommended Code Amendments

8



3/6/z}re

@ Conmrdol Connobh P€rmlt Offl@

Carrnlv a{

5.40.080

' (C) Every opplicqlion for o commerciol cqnnobis business license ondf or renewql required
by this chopter sholl be signed by the opplicont under penohy of periury on o form
required for such opplicotion ond shqll include, but is not limited to, the following
informotion:

eemmer€lel €gnng

ift

o

Recommended Code Amendments

@ Codms.<lol Conebh Psret Otfte

lnvaofCorrnlv

5.40.090
. (D) lnitiol Applicqtion Evoluqtion

' (2) First Reiection. lf the C3PO reiects on opplicotion, rhe office sholl specify in writing the
reosons for the decision ond, except for on opplicotion ihot wos previously reiecied for ony of
lhe some reoson(s), notify the opplicont thot the decision sholl become finol unless the opplicont
files on omended opplicotion wiihin fourteen business doys of the doie thot the opplicont
receivedMhereiectionnoiiceviocertifiedmoil.onlyoneomended
opplicotion sholl be ollowed per review period. lf, ofter 30 colendor doys from the moiling of
rhe letler of first reieciion no delivery confirmotion hos been obtoined, the opplicotion will
receive o finol score bosed on the informotion contoined in the initiol opplicotion submission.

a

Recommended Code Amendments

9



@ County of lnyo
Commerciol ConNbb P€rmll Otfke

5.40.090
. (H) An opplicotion for q commerciol

connqbis business license must ochieve
q score of ot leqst eighty percent of
the lolql possible points on the finql
opplicotion scoring opprovol
evoluolion opproved by the boord of
supervisors in order to be oworded q

commerciql cqnnobis business license.

High score = 9O.O7o

Averoge score = 82.41o/o

Low score = 56.13oh

a

a

a

a

a

860/o of oll finol round opplicotions
met the 807o requirement

Recommended Code Amendments

3/6lzors

@
Corrntv of lnvo
Commr.ldl Cdnndbh P.rhh Otfl.e

(A) Any of the following sholl be grounds for revocotion of q Commerciol Connobis Business License:

' (5) The conviciion of ony person who is listed in the Applicotion os required by this chopter of o felony while
holding o Commerciol Connobis Business License during the previous three yeors. A conviction within the meoning
of this section meons o pleo or verdict of guilty or o conviction following o pleo of nolo contendere.

B. Notwithstonding ony provision in the lnyo County Code to the controry if the C3PO intends to
revoke o commerciol connobis business license, the C3PO or ony other county officer chorged wirh the
qdministrotion of the provisions of this chopter sholl specify in writing the reosons for the decision qnd
notify the opplicont thqt the decision sholl become finol unless the oppliconi seeks on oppeol pursuont
to Section 5.40.l50.

tlnis.eheptert The noiice sholl specify wheiher the revocqlion is immediotely imposed for public heolth or
sofety reosons or sholl be effective following the heoring. The notice of the decision sholl be served or
moiled to the opplicont ot the oddress indicoted on the opplicotion.

5.40.140

Recommended Code Amendments

10



@
Countv of lnva
comn6rdol Cdnmbb ?€mii Olti<6

5.40.r 50
.(A)Anyopplicont@whoollegesqnerrorbytheC3Powiih

respecl to ony second reieclion of on opplicotion for o second time sholl, within five (5)
business doys of the dote the reiection notice wos moiled, moke opplicqtion in writing io
the county odministrotive officer. or designee, for o heoring on the decision.

a

Recommended Code Amendments

3/6lz}Ls

@
Corrntv of lnvo
Commrdd Cdnmbb P6rnt Olll6

5.40.r 50
' (B) Any epptiee* Commerciol Connobis license holder oggrieved by ony decision of the C3PO with

respect lo the revocotion o commerciol connobis business license sholl, within ten (10) business doys of
the dote of service of the written decision of the C3PO or ony oiher county officer chorged with the
odministrotion of the provisions of this chopler, moke opplicotion in writing io the county qdministrotive
officer, or designeg for o heoring on ihe decision before the boord of supervisors.

' (D) lf such opplicolion is mode within the prescribed time period, the county odministrotive officer, or
designee, sholl give no fewer thon five (5) business doys written notice to the opplicont to show couse
ol o heoring ol o time ond ploce fixed in the notice why the decision should not be upheld.

' (E) Ai ihe heoring, the oppliconi moy oppeor ond offer evidence why such decision should be vocoted.
Within sixty (60) colendor doys ofter the heoring, the county odministrotive officer, or designeg sholl
determine if the decision sholl be upheld ond sholl thereofter give \Mritten notice to the opplicont. The
decision of the county odministrotive officer, or designee, sholl be finol ond not subiect to further
odministrotive oppeol.

a

Recommended Code Amendments

L1



@
Corrnlv of lnvo
Connerdol Cdnnobii P€rnil Offi.e

Add tox registrotion form to opplicotion pocket

Minor chonges to longuoge to better specify requirements

Attdch mo of bulnerr ldcoris dnJ fl*raioru tor ony bulldlrtgi lo opoll@liff o. Attodhenl 3. wlththc tollowJm
inforction indlcoted il opoligrble

Outlire of porcel to be used lor proposed
buslness

Roods

Bulldiqr
A|t eoiemenli on tlE property
Cultlvdtlon conopy petlreler ond setbock
motutemnls
Hqzqrdw: moteriqls rtarqge by t'ype ond
lcqtltr
Areor lo be u:ed for connoblr sloroge, sorllng,
ttlmmlng. crrttlhg. gradlng, drylng ord ony othcr
p.oer!lng
AacoJ to bc used for cdnnobl! wosto

Accss pgifih for erergercy persmrel such os
low srfotcflsl dnd lire

a

t

a

. Ltrqllons perllml lo laorlly sxi o comro
locolions. enlry polnls, oreor to be polrolled by
seorlly dnd letring

o Well ond sepilc locotlos
. Woler rtoroge locoliffi
r Slreom diwrtim locollore
. \Motsr loufces for <onrobis ollivollor or

monufoclurlng.

. Noturol wolerwoys, weilondr, sprlngs or ponds

. Cmpdllng oreo

Suggested Process Chonges - Applicotion

3/6/2OLs

@ Counly of lnyo
Conn€rclol Cannobb Pom[ Olfke

Add tox registrotion form to opplicotion pocket

Minor chonges to longuoge to better specify requirements

buslnst
o Roqds
. Bulldlngl
. Any ssemerllr on tt€ property
. Culilvofion corcpy perlrefer ond setbork

meoruremerilt
. Hozordous mot€ridls sloroge b/ t/pe ond

Itrollol
. Arao! lo ba ured for connobls:torog6, sorting,

trimmlng, cuttlng, grodirrg, drying ond ony other
proce3slng

. Areor lo be used for connobh wost€

Llghtlrg locotlm:
Lsoflffi pertlrenl io leorlly sKh o comro
locollo6, €niry polnlr, oreos 'lo be potrolled by
reorlfy ord temlng
Well ord repiic looiiom
Woler rtoroge laoflmr
Slreom diverrlff lootlons
Woler sources for conrubls cullivoilm or
monufdc'turlnq.

AcGs3 poinlr lor erergcrcy perrorml rwh os
low erlorcmenf qnd flre
Noturol woterwoys, wellondr, sprlngs or porrds

Cmporling oreo

a

a

a

irl{onrction t{UST be ir}dicoted at o siolrum, i{ opFlic6ble:

. Orrllrc of por@l to be uied f or proposad

Suggested Process Chonges - Applicotion

L2



@ Cotrntv of lnvo
Commrcbl Conmbb P€mll Ofll@

"Describe focility lighting ond explorn how it will help provide securily, loking into occount mointoining
consrslency with lnyo Counly Generol Plon requirements for lighting,"

a Section 4 - Security

' Added question on lighting:

Suggested Process Chonges - Applicotion

3/6/20Ls

@ Countv of lnvo
Comrer<lol Co.mbh Pormlr Oflic€

Section 5 - Operotions Plon

' Added question on weighmoster requirements, removed o question thot wos redundont
with Section Z - Communiry Mitigqtion Meqsures:

"Lisl equipment thot will be used to meosure or weight connobis products for sole. lf weighmoster lows
opply to your business, indicote how you will conform to stote lows ond regulotions."

Srggested Process Chonges - Applicotion

13



@
Countv of lnvo
Comm€rclol Cdnnobh P€rnh Offl..

Section 7 - Community Mitigotion Meosures

' Added two queslions to beller guide responses, refined the originol question:

"Describe ony meosures you inlend lo implement thol would ovoid impocls fo fire ond low enforcernenl ogencies
ond reduce collouts from lhese enfifies,"

"Exploin whol your busrness inlends lo do lo minimize olher lypes of impocls on surrounding communifies,"

,'Describeonyorrangemenlsorogreemenlsreochedwith@locologencies,
service dislricfs, nongovernmenlol groups, or olher communily reloled groups to minimize impocls lo lhe locol
community. Alloch copies of ony ogreemenfs. /f no wrillen ogreemenl(s) exrsfs, indicole whof benefils you are
com milling lo provide."

a

Srggested Process Chonges - Applicotion

3/6/zOLe

@ Counly of lnyo
Comm€rcrol Cdnnobii Perm[ Oflks

Section 9 - Community Benefit Plon

' Added q question regording locol employment ond recruitment

"Describe your slrolegies lo recruil ond hire locol employees."

I

Srggested Process Chonges - Applicotion

L4



@
Counfv of lnvo
Comrerdd Conrcbb P€rmil Olfi..

Mosi suggested chonges ore meqnt to clorify ond ossist in scoring process

' Creoted seporote poges for eoch section ond odded the questions from the opplicotion

Specific scoring chonges include:
. Securily scoring odiustmenl lo occommodote the exiro question on lighting
. Operotions plon scoring odiustment to moke up for removed question

Section Point Volue Percentoge Section Point Volue Percentoge

Security Plcn l75.+8e 1l% 4+e/o Security Plon r75.1€e 13%1#
Operotions Plon 280 +7e 18% l7elo Operotions Plon 280 274 2oo/o 2D91

Cultivotion Plqn 210 130h

Community lmpoA Mitigotion r80 1 loh Community lmpoct Mitigotion r80 t3%

Environmentol Considerotions 360 23% Environmentdl Consideroiions 360 26%
Communily Benefit Plon 380 24% Community Benefit Plqn 380 28%

a

a

Cullivolion Permils Non-Cullivotion Permits

Suggested Process Chonges - Scoring

3/6/2OLe

@
Couniv o{ lnvo
Commrddl Cdnmhk Pdrhh Otlid

lnfusion

' This license type would ollow infusion of connobis oil into edible producls similqr to o
bokery or condy mqking operotion. This would olign wifh Generol Commerciol, Light
lndustriol, Generol lndustriol, ond Heovy Commerciql zonings.

Non-storefront retoil

' This license type would include delivery-only relqil businesses. Businesses of this type
would be permitted in the some zoning types lhot trqditionol retoil is permiiled but lhey
would not be qllowed to sell producls to customers on site.

a

a

Discussion of Potentiol License Types

15



@
Countv of lnvo
Conmorclol Connobb P.rnir Ofil.e

Kouno voiley,
Muslong Meso, Dlxon

I dhF. Mr6ddw.r66k
2 o I I

2 2 o I o

Blg PhG? 2 o

No UGB6S Adblzed ln Zo. 3

Lone Pine, Aobomd
HIt< 2 I o o I I

Oldrcho, Co.bgo
w. soge Frdt Rood?

o I o o I o

2Keeler, Dorwh o o o I I

H6maw6dd adhw^h 5 2 I I 2 I

5 4 9 I 2 2

a o a o I

32 27 , 2 l2 a

License Nuhbers by Zone ond Type - Spring 2Ol 9

Mdlor communllles
Level 2

o

2

5A

5B

-5C

5D

5E

<5.OOOf sq. ft. >5,OOO sq. ft.

Discussion of License Allocotion

3/6/2OLe

L6


